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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
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2 W&Qpu 6KDWHY ShUYDOH SHU\KDH 1H <RIN6WHAN ( [ FKDQIH

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes o No &
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes o No a

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yes & No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-
T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes & No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of
registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an emerging
growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of
the Exchange Act.

”

Large accelerated filer & Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o Emerging growth company o

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised
financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes o No &

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2018 was approximately $2.8 billion based upon the closing price
on the New York Stock Exchange as of such date.

The registrant had 1,003,115,729 ordinary shares outstanding as of February 4, 2019.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s proxy statement for the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 25, 2019 are incorporated into Part III of this
Form 10-K.
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This report contains various statements relating to future financial performance and results, business strategy, plans, goals and objectives, including
certain projections, business trends and other statements that are not historical facts. These statements constitute forward-looking statements. These forward-
looking statements generally are identified by the words “believe,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” “budget,” “strategy,” “plan,”
“guidance,” “outlook,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “will,” “would,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely result,” and similar expressions, although not all
forward-looking statements contain these identifying words.

» <« » o« » <« ” <«

Forward-looking statements reflect our beliefs and expectations based on current estimates and projections. While we believe these expectations, and the
estimates and projections on which they are based, are reasonable and were made in good faith, these statements are subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. Accordingly, our actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what we have expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements. Furthermore, from time to time, we update the various factors we consider in making our forward-looking statements and the assumptions we use
in those statements. However, we undertake no obligation to correct, update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise, except to the extent required under federal securities laws. The following sets forth various assumptions we use in our forward-
looking statements, as well as risks and uncertainties relating to those statements. Certain of these risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to be
materially different from projected results contained in forward-looking statements in this report and in our other disclosures. These risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those described below under “Part I — Item 1A. — Risk Factors” and the following:

» the price and price volatility of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids;

» global political, economic and market conditions, political disturbances, war, terrorist attacks, changes in global trade policies, weak local economic
conditions and international currency fluctuations;

* nonrealization of expected benefits from our acquisitions or business dispositions and our ability to timely execute and close such acquisitions and
dispositions;

*  our ability to realize expected revenues and profitability levels from current and future contracts;

* our ability to manage our workforce, supply chain and business processes, information technology systems and technological innovation and
commercialization, including the impact of our organization restructure, business enhancements, transformation efforts and the cost and support
reduction plans;

» our high level of indebtedness and its impact on our ability to maintain sufficient liquidity to fund our operations or otherwise meet our obligations
as they come due in the future;

«  our ability to meet the continued listing standards required by the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”);

* increases in the prices and availability of our procured products and services;

+  potential non-cash asset impairment charges for long-lived assets, goodwill, intangible assets or other assets;

»  changes to our effective tax rate;

+  ability to realize cost savings and business enhancements from our transformation efforts;

*  downturns in our industry which could affect the carrying value of our goodwill, intangible assets or other assets and impact our ability to generate
sufficient liquidity or cash flow to fund our operations or otherwise meet our obligations as they come due in the future;

*  member-country quota compliance within the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”);

+ adverse weather conditions in certain regions of our operations;

*  our ability to maintain our Swiss tax residency;

+ failure to ensure on-going compliance with current and future laws and government regulations, including but not limited to environmental and tax
and accounting laws, rules and regulations;

+  our ability to attract, motivate and retain employees, including key personnel;

* limited authorized share capital, access to capital, significantly higher cost of capital, or difficulty or inability to raise additional funds in the equity
or debt capital markets or from other financing sources, as a result of changes in market conditions, our financial situation or our credit rating; and

» our ability to extend and/or refinance our Credit Agreements on terms favorable to the Company and comply with restrictions and covenants
contained therein.

Finally, our future results will depend upon various other risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those detailed in our other filings with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). For additional information regarding risks and uncertainties, see our other filings with the SEC.
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Weatherford International plc, an Irish public limited company and Swiss tax resident, was formed on June 17, 2014, after a change in our place of
incorporation from Switzerland to Ireland, together with its subsidiaries (“Weatherford,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our”), and is a multinational
oilfield service company. Weatherford is one of the world’s leading providers of equipment and services used in the drilling, evaluation, completion,
production and intervention of oil and natural gas wells. Many of our businesses, including those of our predecessor companies, have been operating for more
than 50 years.

We conduct operations in over 80 countries and have service and sales locations in virtually all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in the world.
Our operational performance is reviewed on a geographic basis and we report our Western Hemisphere and Eastern Hemisphere as separate and distinct
reporting segments.

Our headquarters are located at Weststrasse 1, 6340 Baar, Switzerland and our telephone number at that location is +41.22.816.1500. Our internet address
is www.weatherford.com. General information about us, including our corporate governance policies, code of business conduct and charters for the
committees of our Board of Directors, can be found on our website under the “Investor Relations” section. On our website we make available, free of charge,
our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant
to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish them to the SEC. The SEC maintains a
website that contains our reports, proxy and information statements, and our other SEC filings. The address of that site is www.sec.gov. Our ordinary shares
are listed on the NYSE under the symbol “WFT.”

6WDWD\

Our primary objective is to build stakeholder value through profitable growth in our core product lines with disciplined use of capital and a strong
customer focus.

Principal components of our strategy include the following:

*  Continuously improving the efficiency, productivity and quality of our products and services and theirrespective delivery to our customers, in order
to grow revenues and operating margins from our principal business operations (Production, Completions, Drilling and Evaluation and Well
Construction) in all of our geographic markets at a rate exceeding the underlying market;

* A commitment to the innovation, invention and integration, development and commercialization of new products and service that meet the evolving
needs of our customers across the reservoir lifecycle; and

«  Further extending the process, productivity, service quality, safety and competency across our global infrastructure to meet client demands for our
core products and services in an operationally efficient manner.

0 DUINHV

We are a leading provider of equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry. Demand for our industry’s services
and products depends upon commodity prices for oil and gas, the number of oil and natural gas wells drilled, the depth and drilling conditions of wells, the
number of well completions, the depletion and age of existing wells and the level of workover activity worldwide.

Technology is critical to the oil and natural gas marketplace as a result of the maturity of the world’s oil and natural gas reservoirs, the acceleration of
production decline rates and the focus on complex well designs, including deepwater prospects. Clients continue to seek, test and use production-enabling
technologies at an increasing rate. We have invested a substantial amount of our time and resources into building our technology offerings, which helps us to
provide our clients with more efficient tools to find and produce oil and natural gas. We believe our products and services enable our clients to reduce their
costs of drilling and production, increase production rates, or both. Furthermore, these offerings afford us additional opportunities to sell our core products
and services to our clients.
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In the fourth quarter of 2018, we completed the sale of a portion of the land drilling rigs operations we previously committed to divesting in the fourth
quarter of 2017, and received gross cash proceeds of $216 million. The sale represents two of a series of four closings pursuant to the purchase and sale
agreements entered into with ADES International Holding Ltd. (“ADES”) in July of 2018 to sell our land drilling rig operations in Algeria, Kuwait and Saudi
Arabia, as well as two idle land rigs in Iraq. The sale is for 31 land rigs and related drilling contracts, as well as the transfer of employees and contract
personnel, for an aggregate purchase price of $287.5 million, subject to regulatory approvals, consents and other customary closing conditions and includes
potential adjustments based on working capital, net cash, loss or destruction of rigs and drilling contract backlog. We expect to complete the remaining two
closings with ADES in the first quarter of 2019.

In December of 2018, we agreed to sell our surface data logging business to Excellence Logging for $50 million in cash, subject to customary post-
closing working capital adjustments. The transaction is expected to close in the first half of 2019.

In October of 2018, we agreed to sell our Reservoir Solutions business, also known as our laboratory services business to an affiliate of CSL Capital
Management, L.P., for an aggregate purchase price of $205 million in cash, subject to customary post-closing working capital adjustments. The transaction is
expected to close in the first quarter of 2019.

In December of 2017, we completed the sale of our U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down perforating assets for $430 million in cash. We sold our
related facilities, field assets, and supplier and customer contracts related to these businesses. Proceeds from the sale were used to reduce outstanding
indebtedness.

5 FSRUAQJ 6HIP HQW

The Company's chief operating decision maker (its chief executive officer) regularly reviews information by our two reportable segments, which are our
Western Hemisphere and Eastern Hemisphere segments. These reportable segments are based on management’s organization and view of Weatherford’s
business when making operating decisions, allocating resources and assessing performance. Research and development expenses are included in the results of
our Western and Eastern Hemisphere segments. Our corporate and other expenses that do not individually meet the criteria for segment reporting are reported
separately on the caption Corporate General and Administrative.

3 URGXRWDQG 6HIYFHY/

Our principal business is to provide equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry, both onshore and offshore.
Product and services include: (1) Production, (2) Completions, (3) Drilling and Evaluation and (4) Well Construction.

SURGXRMNRQoffers production optimization services and a complete production ecosystem, featuring our artificial-lift portfolio, testing and flow-
measurement solutions, and optimization software, to boost productivity and profitability.

$UNVIADY UW6\ WP Vprovides a mechanical method to produce oil or gas from a well lacking sufficient reservoir pressure for natural flow. We
provide most forms of lift, including reciprocating rod lift systems, progressing cavity pumping, gas-lift systems, hydraulic-lift systems, plunger-lift
systems, and hybrid lift systems for special applications. We also offer related automation and control systems.

SUWHMXH3 XP SQJoffers customers advanced chemical technology and services for safe and effective production enhancements. We provide pressure
pumping and reservoir stimulation services, including acidizing, fracturing and fluid systems, cementing and coiled-tubing intervention, however, our
U.S. pressure pumping assets were sold in December of 2017.

7THAMYI DG 3URGRIRY 6HMFHbrovides well test data and slickline and intervention services. The service line includes drillstem test tools, surface
well testing services, and multiphase flow measurement.

&RP SBINRMs a suite of modern completion products, reservoir stimulation designs, and engineering capabilities that isolate zones and unlock reserves in
deepwater, unconventional, and aging reservoirs.
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&RP SBIR) 6\ WP Voffers customers a comprehensive line of completion tools-such as safety systems, production packers, downhole reservoir
monitoring, flow control, isolation packers, multistage fracturing systems, and sand-control technologies-that set the stage for maximum production
with minimal cost per barrel.

/ LQHJB\ MP Mincludes liner hangers to suspend a casing string within a previous casing string rather than from the top of the wellbore. The service
line offers a comprehensive liner-hanger portfolio, along with engineering and executional experience, for a wide range of applications that include
high-temperature and high-pressure wells.

&HP HQMYJ 3URGXP\enables operators to centralize the casing throughout the wellbore and control the displacement of cement and other fluids for
proper zonal isolation. Specialized equipment includes plugs, float and stage equipment, and torque-and-drag reduction technology. Our cementing
engineers analyze complex wells and provide all job requirements from pre-job planning to installation.

" U@ DQG( YDXDWNRQcomprises a suite of services ranging from early well planning to reservoir management. The drilling services offer innovative
tools and expert engineering to increase efficiency and maximize reservoir exposure. The evaluation services merge wellsite capabilities including wireline,
logging while drilling, and surface logging with laboratory-fluid and core analyses to reduce reservoir uncertainty.

" U@ 6HMAMncludes directional drilling, logging while drilling, measurement while drilling, and rotary-steerable systems. This service line also
includes our full range of downhole equipment, including high-temperature and high-pressure sensors, drilling reamers, and circulation subs.

0 DRDIHG 3WHAXH' U@ helps to manage wellbore pressures to optimize drilling performance. The services incorporate various technologies,
including rotating control devices and advanced automated control systems as well as several drilling techniques, such as closed-loop drilling, air
drilling, managed-pressure drilling, and underbalanced drilling.

6XUCHH" DI/ RIJLQJ 6\ WM \provides real-time formation evaluation data by analyzing cuttings, gases, and fluids while drilling. Our offerings
include conventional mud-logging services, drilling instrumentation, advanced gas analysis, and wellsite consultants. In December of 2018, we agreed
to sell our surface data logging business, which is classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2018.

: WHDXCOH6HMBHvincludes openhole and cased-hole logging services that measure the physical properties of underground formations to determine
production potential, locate resources, and detect cement and casing integrity issues. The service line also executes well intervention and remediation
operations by conveying equipment via cable into oil and natural gas wells.

5 HHYRUGBROXWRQ\brovides rock and fluid analysis to evaluate hydrocarbon resources, advisory solutions with engineering strategy and technologies
to support assets at various development stages, and software products to optimize production and automate drilling. In October of 2018, we agreed to
sell our laboratory services business, which is classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2018.

: HD&RQWMKRNRQbuilds or rebuilds well integrity for the full life cycle of the well. Using conventional to advanced equipment, we offer safe and
efficient tubular running services in any environment. Our skilled fishing and re-entry teams execute under any contingency from drilling to abandonment,
and our drilling tools provide reliable pressure control even in extreme wellbores. We also include our land drilling rig business as part of Well Construction.

7XEX@US5 XQQQI 6HXMAprovides equipment, tubular handling, tubular management, and tubular connection services for the drilling, completion,
and workover of oil or natural gas wells. The services include conventional rig services, automated rig systems, real-time torque-monitoring, and
remote viewing of the makeup and breakout verification process. In addition, they include drilling-with-casing services.

, QMYHONRQ 6H M Fbrovides re-entry, fishing, wellbore cleaning, and well abandonment services as well as advanced multilateral well systems.

" U@) 7RRYDQGS HAEO( TXLSP H)WMelivers our patented tools and equipment, including drillpipe and collars, bottomhole assembly tools, tubular-
handling equipment, pressure-control equipment, and machine-shop services, for drilling oil and natural gas wells.
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/ DQG' U@ 5LI\provides onshore contract drilling services and related operations on a fleet of land drilling and workover rigs primarily operated in
the Eastern Hemisphere. With our technologically diverse fleet, we have the ability to perform a broad range of advanced drilling projects that include
multi-well pad drilling, high-pressure high-temperature drilling, deep gas drilling, special well design, and other unconventional drilling methods in
various climates. During 2018, we disposed of our Kuwait and Saudi Arabia land drilling rigs operations. Nearly all our remaining land drilling rigs
assets are classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2018.

2 WHJYSMQHY' Dl
&RP SHMRQ

We provide our products and services worldwide and compete in a variety of distinct segments with a number of competitors. Our principal competitors
include Schlumberger, Halliburton, Baker Hughes (a GE company), National Oilwell Varco, Nabors Industries and Frank’s International. We also compete
with various other regional suppliers that provide a limited range of equipment and services tailored for local markets. Competition is based on a number of
factors, including performance, safety, quality, reliability, service, price, response time and, in some cases, breadth of products. The oilfield services business
is highly competitive, which may adversely affect our ability to succeed. Additionally, the impact of consolidation and acquisitions of our competitors is
difficult to predict and may harm our business.

507 0 DMIDY

We purchase a wide variety of raw materials as well as parts and components made by other manufacturers and suppliers for use in our manufacturing.
Many of the products or components of products sold by us are manufactured by other parties. We are not dependent in any material respect on any single
supplier for our raw materials or purchased components.

&XVIRP HY

Substantially all of our customers are engaged in the energy industry. Most of our international sales are to large international or national oil companies.
As of December 31, 2018, the Eastern Hemisphere accounted for 55% of our net outstanding accounts receivables and the Western Hemisphere accounted for
45% of our net outstanding accounts receivables. As of December 31, 2018, our net outstanding accounts receivable in the U.S. accounted for 18% of our
balance and Mexico accounted for approximately 10% of our balance. No other country accounted for more than 10% of our net outstanding accounts
receivables balance. During 2018, 2017 and 2016, no individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues.

YCANRY

Our services are usually short-term in nature, day-rate based and cancellable should our customers wish to alter the scope of work. Consequently, our
backlog of firm orders is not material to the Company.

5 HHDURK ' HYHBSP HOADQG 3 DAQN

We maintain world-class technology and training centers throughout the world. Additionally, we have research, development and engineering facilities
that are focused on improving existing products and services and developing new technologies to meet customer demands for improved drilling performance
and enhanced reservoir productivity. Weatherford has also developed significant expertise, trade secrets, and know-how with respect to manufacturing
equipment and providing services.

As many areas of our business rely on patents and proprietary technology, we seek patent protection both inside and outside the U.S. for products and
methods that appear to have commercial significance. We amortize patents over the years that we expect to benefit from their existence, which typically
extends from the grant of the patent through and until 20 years after the filing date of the patent application.

Although in the aggregate our patents are important to the manufacturing and marketing of many of our products and services, we do not believe that the
expiration of any one of our patents would have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Weather and natural phenomena can temporarily affect the level of demand for our products and services. Spring months in Canada and winter months in
the North Sea and Russia can affect our operations negatively. Additionally, heavy rains or an exceedingly cold winter in a given region or climate changes
may impact our results. The unpredictable or unusually harsh weather conditions could lengthen the periods of reduced activity and have a detrimental impact
to our results of operations. The widespread geographical locations of our operations serve to mitigate the overall impact of the seasonal nature of our
business.

) HEH.DOB HIXOWRQ DQG( QLRGP HQBOD DALY

Our operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in general and the environment in particular. Our
2018 expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations were not material, and we currently do not expect the cost of compliance with
environmental laws and regulations for 2019 to be material.

(PSR HV

As of December 31, 2018, we employed approximately 26,500 employees, which is 9% and 12% lower than our workforce as of December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. In response to the price of crude oil and a lower level of exploration and production spending for the last three years, we have reduced our
overall costs and workforce to better align with activity levels. See “Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Note 5 — Restructuring
Charges” for details on our workforce reductions. In addition, our workforce has been reduced as a result of the dispositions of certain businesses. Certain of
our operations are subject to union contracts and these contracts cover approximately 17% of our employees. We believe we have a dedicated and capable
workforce despite the significant headcount reductions over the past three years, which were necessary to adapt our Company to the market conditions.
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The following table sets forth, as of February 15, 2019, the names and ages of the executive officers of Weatherford, including all offices and positions
held by each for at least the past five years.

10PH

$JIH

&XUHINB RIMRQ DQG) LYH < HDUYSXMQHW/( [ SHUHIFH

Mark A. McCollum

Christoph Bausch

Christina M. Ibrahim

Karl Blanchard @

Stuart Fraser

59

54

51

59

51

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of Weatherford International plc,
since April 2017

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Halliburton Company, July 2016 to March
2017

Executive Vice President and Chief Integration Officer of Halliburton Company, January 2015 to
June 2016

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Halliburton Company, January 2008 to
December 2014

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Weatherford International plc, since
December 2016

Controller — Product Lines of Weatherford International plc, May 2016 to November 2016

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Archer Limited,
May 2011 to April 2016

Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate Secretary of
Weatherford International plc, since October 2017

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Weatherford International plc,
May 2015 to September 2017

Vice President, Chief Commercial Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Halliburton Company, January
2015 to April 2015

Vice President, Corporate Secretary & Chief Commercial Counsel — Western Hemisphere of
Halliburton Company, January 2014 to December 2014

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Weatherford International plc, since August
2017

Chief Operating Officer of Seventy Seven Energy, June 2014 to April 2017

Vice President of Production Enhancement of Halliburton Company,
2012 to June 2014

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer of Weatherford International plc, since April 2018

Vice President and Controller Regions and Purchasing, Sourcing and Logistics of Weatherford
International plc, May 2017 to March 2018

Vice President and Global Controller — Operations of Weatherford International plc, March 2015 to
April 2017

Transformation Project Manager — Liquidity Optimization of Schlumberger, July 2014 to February
2015

Controller Global Drilling Group of Schlumberger, January 2011 to June 2014

(a) Prior to joining the Weatherford, Karl Blanchard served as the Chief Operating Officer of Seventy Seven Energy, Inc. (“SSE”), a position he started in June of 2014.
SSE and its subsidiaries voluntarily filed for relief under Chapter 11 in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware on June 7, 2016. SSE
continued to operate their business as “debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Bankruptcy Code. On July 14, 2016, the Bankruptcy Court issued an order confirming the Joint Pre-packaged Plan of Reorganization (the “SSE Reorganization
Plan”). The SSE Reorganization Plan became effective on August 1, 2016, pursuant to its terms and SSE emerged from its Chapter 11 case.

There are no family relationships between the executive officers of the registrant or between any director and any executive officer of the registrant.
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An investment in our securities involves various risks. You should consider carefully all of the risk factors described below, the matters discussed herein
under “Forward-Looking Statements” and other information included and incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K, as well as in other reports and
materials that we file with the SEC. If any of the risks described below or elsewhere in this Form 10-K were to materialize, our business, financial condition,
results of operations, cash flows or prospects could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of our ordinary shares could decline and
you could lose part or all of your investment. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also
materially adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

) ORXDARYY 1Q RODQG CDMUDOJDV SURH/ HGHADD D \KEWEQADORU H WGHG GHRICH Dl HAMKH GYHDR H SBUDARY  GHYHBSP HOWVDQG
SURGXPARQ CRAYW R RXU PXWRP H/ DQG WH GHP DQG | RU RXU SURGXPW DQG \VHYLFHY Z KLFK FRX@S KDYH D P DMUDODGYH)H H 1 HRARQ RXU EXMQHN

ILCDQADCARQAMRQ DQG LHKXOVR  RSH.DARYY

Demand for our services and products is tied to the level of exploration, development and production activity and the corresponding capital expenditures
by oil and natural gas companies, including national oil companies. The level of exploration, development and production activity is directly affected by
fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices, which historically have been volatile and are likely to continue to be volatile in the future, especially given current
geopolitical and economic conditions. Therefore, declines in oil and natural gas prices or sustained low oil and natural gas prices or customer perceptions that
oil and natural gas prices will remain depressed or will further decrease in the future could result in a continued reduction in the demand and pricing for our
equipment and will likely continue at lower rates for our services.

Prices for oil and natural gas are highly volatile and are subject to large fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand
for oil and natural gas. Factors that can or could cause these price fluctuations include: excess supply of crude oil relative to demand; domestic and
international drilling activity; global market uncertainty; the risk of slowing economic growth or recession in the United States, China, Europe or emerging
markets; the ability of OPEC to set and maintain production levels for oil; the decision of OPEC to abandon production quotas and/or member-country quota
compliance within OPEC; oil and gas production levels by non-OPEC countries; the nature and extent of governmental regulation, including environmental
regulation; technological advances affecting energy consumption; adverse weather conditions and a variety of other economic factors that are beyond our
control. Any perceived or actual further reduction in oil and natural gas prices will depress the immediate levels of exploration, development and production
activity and decrease spending by our customers, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sustained lower oil and natural gas prices have led to a significant decrease in spending by our customers over the past several years, and thus significant
decreases in our revenues. Further decreases in oil and natural gas prices could lead to further cuts in spending and lower revenues. Our customers also take
into account the volatility of energy prices and other risk factors when determining whether to pursue capital projects and higher perceived risks generally
mandate higher required returns. Any of these factors could affect the demand for oil and natural gas and could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flow.

2 XU EXMQHN LV G-BHIGHIWRQ FDSMIOVSHAQ) B\ RXU PXWIRP HYY DQG UHEXPARQY LQ FDSMIOVSHAQ) B\ RXU FXWRP H KDV KDG DQG FRX@S
FROAQXHVR KDYHDQ DGYHIWHH | HANRQ RUEXMGHW | LQDGADCFROGMRY DG LHAWWR RSHDARQY

Sustained low oil and natural gas prices have led to lower capital expenditures by our customers. Most of our contracts can be cancelled by our customer
at any time. Low commodity prices, the short-term tenor of most of our contracts and the extreme financial stress experienced by our customers (some of
whom may have to seek bankruptcy protection) have combined to generate demands by many of our customers for reductions in the prices of our products
and services. Further reductions in capital spending or requests for further cost reductions by our customers could directly impact our business by reducing
demand for our services and products and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Spending by
exploration and production companies can also be impacted by conditions in the capital markets, which have been volatile in recent years. Limitations on the
availability of capital or higher costs of capital may cause exploration and production companies to make additional reductions to capital budgets even if oil
and natural gas prices increase from current levels. Any such cuts in spending will curtail drilling programs as well as discretionary spending on well services,
which may result in a reduction in the demand for our services, the rates we can charge and the utilization of our assets. Moreover, reduced discovery rates of
new oil and natural gas reserves or a decrease in the development rate of reserves in our market areas, whether due to increased governmental regulation,
limitations on exploration and drilling activity or other factors, could also have a material adverse impact on our business, even in a stronger oil and natural
gas price environment. With respect to national oil company customers, we are also subject to risk of policy, regime, currency and budgetary changes all of
which may affect their capital expenditures.
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7 KHRIHAWUMNVR RUFRGAHOWDMS FXWRP HUEDHLQ WHHIHI\ LQGXWML FRX@S UHRK@NQ RSH.DAQ) GAMAYDQG QHIDAYHD LP SCRAITXIGIW

The concentration of our customer base in the energy industry may impact our overall exposure to credit risk as our customers may be similarly affected
by prolonged changes in economic and industry conditions. Some of our customers are experiencing financial distress as a result of continued low commodity
prices and may be forced to seek protection under applicable bankruptcy laws. Furthermore, countries that rely heavily upon income from hydrocarbon
exports have been negatively and significantly affected by low oil prices, which could affect our ability to collect from our customers in these countries,
particularly national oil companies. Laws in some jurisdictions in which we operate could make collection difficult or time consuming. We perform on-going
credit evaluations of our customers and do not generally require collateral in support of our trade receivables. While we maintain reserves for potential credit
losses, we cannot assure such reserves will be sufficient to meet write-offs of uncollectible receivables or that our losses from such receivables will be
consistent with our expectations. Additionally, in the event of a bankruptcy of any of our customers, we may be treated as an unsecured creditor and may
collect substantially less, or none, of the amounts owed to us by such customer.

6 HYHHRUXQWHDVRQDE®IZ HDMHJFRX@ DGYHWHD D THANGHP DQG T RURXUSURGXRW DQG VHIMAHY

Variation from normal weather patterns, such as cooler or warmer summers and winters, can have a significant impact on demand. Adverse weather
conditions, such as hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico or extreme winter conditions in Canada, Russia and the North Sea, may interrupt or curtail our
operations, or our customers’ operations, cause supply disruptions or loss of productivity or result in a loss of revenue or damage to our equipment and
facilities, which may or may not be insured. Any of these outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

1 RAHSRQAQ] WP HY VR FKDQIHY LQ WH P DUNHADQG FXWRP HJ LHIXWLHP HOW 1Q WH KLIKO® FRP SHARYH ROIHT \HYLIRH EXMQHW P D DGYHMVHD
D T HAARXU CELONV VRAXFRHHG $ GAWRDD WHLP SDRAR FRQRICEDARQ DQG DFTXIMWRQVR RXURRP SHAYRUY LV AL | LEXOWR SLHARWV

Our business is highly competitive, particularly with respect to marketing our products and services to our customers and securing equipment and trained
personnel. Currently the oilfield service industry has excess capacity relative to customer demand, and, in most cases, multiple sources of comparable oilfield
services are available from a number of different competitors. This competitive environment could impact our ability to maintain market share, defend,
maintain or increase pricing for our products and services and negotiate acceptable contract terms with our customers and suppliers. In order to remain
competitive, we must continue to add value for our customers by providing, relative to our peers, new technologies, reliable products and services and
competent personnel. The anticipated timing and cost of the development of competitive technology and new product introductions can impact our financial
results, particularly if one of our competitors were to develop competing technology that accelerates the obsolescence of any of our products or services.
Additionally, we may be disadvantaged competitively and financially by a significant movement of exploration and production operations to areas of the
world in which we are not currently active, particularly if one or more of our competitors is already operating in that area of the world.

Mergers, combinations and consolidations in our industry could result in existing competitors increasing their market share and may result in stronger
competitors, which in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We may not be able to compete
successfully in an increasingly consolidated industry and cannot predict with certainty how industry consolidation will affect our other competitors or us.

/ \DELOW FOIP V UHXOMY 1URP FDMVARSKLE LOAGHIN FRX@ KDYH D P DMLLDODGYHWVH H I HRARQ RXU EXMCHW 1 LQDQRDOFRQAMRY DG LKW R
RSH.DARY/

Drilling for and producing hydrocarbons, and the associated products and services that we provide, include inherent dangers that may lead to property
damage, personal injury, death or the discharge of hazardous materials into the environment. Many of these events are outside our control. Typically, we
provide products and services at a well site where our personnel and equipment are located together with personnel and equipment of our customer and third
parties, such as other service providers. At many sites, we depend on other companies and personnel to conduct drilling operations in accordance with
appropriate safety standards. From time to time, personnel are injured or equipment or property is damaged or destroyed as a result of accidents, failed
equipment, faulty products or services, failure of safety measures, uncontained formation pressures or other dangers inherent in drilling for oil and natural
gas. Any of these events can be the result of human error. With increasing frequency, our products and services are deployed on more challenging prospects
both onshore and offshore, where the occurrence of the types of events mentioned above can have an even more catastrophic impact on people, equipment
and the environment. Such events may expose us to significant
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potential losses.

HP D QRAEHIX® LQGHP QULHG DIDLOWA LQDGRDOBRWAY LQ DOALUFXP WECHHY Z KHH G@P DIH\R RUGW R SURSHIV SHORQDOIQWU GHDM RU
HOYLLRQP HQEICKDLP RAFXU

As is customary in our industry, our contracts typically require that our customers indemnify us for claims arising from the injury or death of their
employees (and those of their other contractors), the loss or damage of their equipment (and that of their other contractors), damage to the well or reservoir
and pollution originating from the customer’s equipment or from the reservoir (including uncontained oil flow from a reservoir) and claims arising from
catastrophic events, such as a well blowout, fire, explosion and from pollution below the surface. Conversely, we typically indemnify our customers for
claims arising from the injury or death of our employees, the loss or damage of our equipment (other than equipment lost in the hole) or pollution originating
from our equipment above the surface of the earth or water.

Our indemnification arrangements may not protect us in every case. For example, from time to time we may enter into contracts with less favorable
indemnities or perform work without a contract that protects us. Our indemnity arrangements may also be held to be overly broad in some courts and/or
contrary to public policy in some jurisdictions, and to that extent may be unenforceable. Additionally, some jurisdictions which permit indemnification
nonetheless limit its scope by statute. We may be subject to claims brought by third parties or government agencies with respect to which we are not
indemnified. Furthermore, the parties from which we seek indemnity may not be solvent, may become bankrupt, may lack resources or insurance to honor
their indemnities or may not otherwise be able to satisfy their indemnity obligations to us. The lack of enforceable indemnification could expose us to
significant potential losses.

Further, our assets generally are not insured against loss from political violence such as war, terrorism or civil commotion. If any of our assets are
damaged or destroyed as a result of an uninsured cause, we could recognize a loss of those assets.

HP D QRAEH CEG VR JHCHDM \XI  LHHOMDWK 1 GZ V VR VHUYLFH RXU LQGHEWECHWY DQG P D EH IRIAHG VR VENH DRARQY 1Q RUGHU VR DM\ RXU
REQIDARQY XQGHJ RXU LQGHEWECHWY |, | ZH DUH LHTXILHG VR VENH VXK DRARQY DQG VXK DRARQY DUH QRANXARHM X0 RXU LOGHEWEQHW DQG QDELDAR/
FRX@ H SRHXV R UMV WDAFRX@ DEYHIWHD D THRARXU EXMCHW 1LQDCADOFRQGEMRQ DG LHXAVR - RSHDARQY DQG P SDLU RXU DELOW VRADAM\ RXU
1LQDCADCREQI DARQY

As of December 31, 2018, we had approximately $7.6 billion of long-term debt with $2.6 billion maturing by 2021, primarily our senior notes. Based on
senior note obligations, we expect to have interest payments of approximately $553 million due during 2019. Our indebtedness could have significant
negative consequences for our business, results of operations and financial condition, including:

+ increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions;
*  limiting our ability to obtain additional financing;

* requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service our indebtedness, thereby reducing the amount of our
cash flow available for other purposes;

*  limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business;
*  limiting our access to the inventory and services needed to operate our business;

*  requiring us to secure additional sources of liquidity, which may or may not be available to us; and
* placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage with less leveraged competitors or competitors that may have better access to capital resources.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on, or to refinance, our debt obligations will depend on our financial and operating performance, which is
subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and certain financial, business and other factors beyond our control. Lower commodity prices and
in turn lower demand for our products and services have negatively impacted our revenues, earnings and cash flows, and sustained low oil and natural gas
prices could have an adverse effect on our liquidity position. We are in the process of evaluating various strategic alternatives to address our liquidity and
capital structure, including strategic and refinancing alternatives, but there can be no assurance that we will have the ability to borrow or otherwise raise the
amounts necessary to refinance our indebtedness as it matures. Any refinancing of our debt could be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply
with more onerous covenants, which could further restrict our business and operations. If we continue to experience operating losses and we are not able to
generate additional liquidity through the mechanisms described above or through some combination of other actions, including our proposed strategic
divestitures and other business operations, then our liquidity needs may exceed availability under our Revolving Credit Agreements and other facilities that
we may enter into in the
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future, and we might need to secure additional sources of funds, which may or may not be available to us. If we are unable to secure such additional funds, we
may not be able to meet our future obligations as they become due.

2 XUBXMCHWP D EHH SRHG VR XQQWUHG FOLP VDQG DV'D URKOVOW DARQ P LIKWHAXGNQ \LIQU LFDQASRMMPOBRMAY 7 KHFRWMR RXULQKUHG
UM P DQDIHP HABLRILLP P D\ LQRHDH

In the ordinary course of business, we become the subject of various claims and litigation. We maintain liability insurance, which includes insurance
against damage to people, property and the environment, up to maximum limits of $435 million, subject to self-insured retentions and deductibles.

Our insurance policies are subject to exclusions, limitations and other conditions and may not apply in all cases, for example where willful wrongdoing
on our part is alleged. It is possible an unexpected judgment could be rendered against us in cases in which we could be uninsured and beyond the amounts
we currently have reserved or anticipate incurring, and in some cases those potential losses could be material.

Our insurance may not be sufficient to cover any particular loss or our insurance may not cover all losses. For example, although we maintain product
liability insurance, this type of insurance is limited in coverage and it is possible an adverse claim could arise in excess of our coverage. Additionally,
insurance rates have in the past been subject to wide fluctuation and may be unavailable on terms that we or our customers believe are economically
acceptable. Reductions in coverage, changes in the insurance markets and accidents affecting our industry may result in further increases in our cost and
higher deductibles and retentions in future years and may also result in reduced activity levels in certain markets. Any of these events would have an adverse
impact on our financial performance.

2 XURSH.DARQY DLH \XEMPWIR QXP HRXV @Y V DQG LHIXOWRYV LOFXAQ) HIYILRCP HORO@Y V DG LHIXOMWRYY WDAP D H SRH XV VR LI QL LFDQA
@OELMAHY DQG FRX@ UHEXAH RXU EXMOHW RSSRUMQMHY DQG LHYHXHY

We are subject to various laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in general and the environment in particular. These laws are often complex
and may not always be applied consistently in emerging markets. These laws and regulations often change and can cover broad subject matters, including tax,
trade, customs (import/export) and the environment. In the case of environmental regulations, an environmental claim could arise with respect to one or more
of our current businesses, products or services, or a business or property that one of our predecessors owned or used, and such claims could involve material
expenditures. Generally, environmental laws have in recent years become more stringent and have sought to impose greater liability on a larger number of
potentially responsible parties. The scope of regulation of our industry and our products and services may increase further, including possible increases in
liabilities or funding requirements imposed by governmental agencies. We also cannot ensure that our future business in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, if any,
will be profitable in light of regulations that have been, and may continue to be, promulgated and in light of the current risk environment and insurance
markets. Additional regulations on deepwater drilling elsewhere in the world could be imposed, and those regulations could limit our business where they are
imposed.

In addition, members of the U.S. Congress, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and various agencies of several states within the U.S. frequently
review, consider and propose more stringent regulation of hydraulic fracturing, a service we previously provided (and may, in the future, resume providing) to
clients and regulators are investigating whether any chemicals used in the fracturing process might adversely affect groundwater or whether the fracturing
processes could lead to other unintended effects or damages. For example, in December 2016, the EPA released its final report regarding the potential impacts
of hydraulic fracturing on drinking water resources, concluding that water cycle activities associated with hydraulic fracturing may impact drinking water
resources under certain circumstances. In recent years, several cities and states within the U.S. passed new laws and regulations concerning or banning
hydraulic fracturing. A significant portion of North American service activity today is directed at prospects that require hydraulic fracturing in order to
produce hydrocarbons. Therefore, additional regulation could increase the costs of conducting our business by subjecting fracturing to more stringent
regulation. Such regulation, among other things, may change construction standards for wells intended for hydraulic fracturing, require additional
certifications concerning the conduct of hydraulic fracturing operations, change requirements pertaining to the management of water used in hydraulic
fracturing operations, require other measures intended to prevent operational hazards or ban hydraulic fracturing completely. Any such federal, state, local or
foreign legislation could increase our costs of providing services or could materially reduce our business opportunities and revenues if our customers decrease
their levels of activity in response to such regulation or if we are not able to pass along any cost increases to our customers. We are unable to predict whether
changes in laws or regulations or any other governmental proposals or responses will ultimately occur, and accordingly, we are unable to assess the potential
financial or operational impact they may have on our business.
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Finally, in December 2015, the U.S. joined the international community at the 21st Conference of the Parties of the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change in Paris, France (the “Paris Agreement”) that requires member countries to review and “represent a progression” in their
intended nationally determined contributions, which set greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission reduction goals every five years beginning in 2020. The
agreement entered into was in full force in November 2016. On June 1, 2017, the President of the U.S. announced that the U.S. planned to withdraw from the
Paris Agreement and to seek negotiations either to reenter the Paris Agreement on different terms or establish a new framework agreement. The Paris
Agreement provides for a four-year exit process beginning when it took effect in November 2016, which would result in an effective exit date of November
2020. The United States’ adherence to the exit process is uncertain and/or the terms on which the United States may reenter the Paris Agreement or a
separately negotiated agreement are unclear at this time. The implementation of this treaty and other efforts to reduce GHG emissions in the U.S. and other
countries could materially affect our customers by reducing demand for oil and natural gas, thereby potentially materially affecting demand for our services.

, I RXURQY QYHS DRWHV JRREZ L@ RIMHJ LOWQILE® DWAN DQG RMHJ DWHWV DLH I XUMHJ LP SDULHS ZHP D EH UHTXILHG VR UHARUG MJ QU LFDQACRQ
WK FKDUH/WRRXUHDWQQIV

We recognize impairments of goodwill when the fair value of any of our reporting units becomes less than its carrying value. Our estimates of fair value
are based on assumptions about future cash flows of each reporting unit, discount rates applied to these cash flows and current market estimates of value.
Based on the uncertainty of future revenue growth rates, gross profit performance, and other assumptions used to estimate our reporting units’ fair value,
future reductions in our expected cash flows could cause a material non-cash impairment charge of goodwill, which could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations and financial condition.

We also have certain long-lived assets, other intangible assets and other assets which could be at risk of impairment or may require reserves based upon
anticipated future benefits to be derived from such assets. Any change in the valuation of such assets could have a material effect on our profitability. For
example, we recognized a goodwill impairment charge of $1.9 billion in 2018 and long-lived asset impairment charges of $151 million, $928 million and
$436 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

$ VIQUIFDQASRUARQ R RXU LHYHXH LV GHUYHG TURP RXU QRQ 8 QWG 6V RSHLDWRQY Z KIFK H SRHY XV R UMV LQKHHINIQ GRQI EXMCHNV1Q
HAKR WHRYHU FRXQMH/IQZ KIFK Z HRSHDM

Our non-United States operations accounted for approximately $4.1 billion of our consolidated revenue in both 2018 and 2017 and $4.2 billion in
2016. Operations in countries other than the United States are subject to various risks, including:

+  volatility in political, social and economic conditions;

+  exposure to expropriation of our assets or other governmental actions;

»  social unrest, acts of terrorism, war or other armed conflict:

» confiscatory taxation or other adverse tax policies;

»  deprivation of contract rights;

» trade and economic sanctions or other restrictions imposed by the European Union, the United States or other countries;
»  exposure under the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) or similar legislation;
*  restrictions on the repatriation of income or capital;

* currency exchange controls;

« inflation; and

+ currency exchange rate fluctuations and devaluations.

» HXWI HOWHMYR ALHAMDQG SHURUP DORH DQG ELG ERQGYWR SLRYIGHRLHAWXSSRIUNR RUBXMRP HY | | WHEHH LIADUR/Z HHVWR FDOWH G
R AHAWXQEHJRXUFRP P MG | DHOWH/ RXU DYDIGEGI QI XIAW Z RX@ EHUHSXARHG B\ WH DP RXQAFD@G DQG MFRX@ KDYH DQ DGYHIMHLP SCRARQ RXU
BEXMOHW RSHDARQV DG [ LQDCHDCFRQGWRY

As of December 31, 2018, we had $495 million of letters of credit and performance and bid bonds outstanding, consisting of $291 million of letters of
credit under various uncommitted facilities and $204 million of letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Agreement. At December 31, 2018, we have cash
collateralized $81 million of our letters of credit, which is included in “Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. In
Latin America we utilize surety bonds as part of our customary business practice.These obligations could be called by the beneficiaries should we breach
certain contractual or performance obligations. If the beneficiaries were to call the letters of credit under our committed facilities, our available liquidity
would be reduced by the amount called and it could have an adverse impact on our business, operations and financial condition.
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&UHAWDA) DIHARY KDYH GZ HHE DG ARX@ | XUMHJ &Z HJ RXU AHAWWDAQIV 7 KHHRH FDSIMEOILQDCOAQ) P D QRAVEH DYDIME® VR XV DA
HRCRP LIF LDMY

Our credit ratings have been downgraded by multiple credit rating agencies and these agencies could further downgrade our credit ratings. On December
24, 2018, S&P Global Ratings downgraded our senior unsecured notes to CCC- from CCC+, with a negative outlook. Weatherford’s issuer credit rating was
lowered to CCC from B—. On December 20, 2018, Moody’s Investors Services downgraded our credit rating on our senior unsecured notes to Caa3 from
Caal and our speculative grade liquidity rating to SGL-4 from SGL-3, both with a negative outlook. Our non-investment grade status may limit our ability to
refinance our existing debt, could cause us to refinance or issue debt with less favorable and more restrictive terms and conditions, and could increase certain
fees and interest rates of our borrowings. Suppliers and financial institutions may lower or eliminate the level of credit provided through payment terms or
intraday funding when dealing with us thereby increasing the need for higher levels of cash on hand, which would decrease our ability to repay debt balances,
negatively affect our cash flow and impact our access to the inventory and services needed to operate our business.

Credit and equity markets have been highly volatile recently, the cost to obtain capital financing has increased, and some markets may not be available at
certain times. Credit and equity market conditions and the potential impact on liquidity of major financial institutions may have an adverse effect on our
ability to fund operational needs or other activities through borrowings under either existing or newly created instruments in the public or private markets on
terms we believe to be reasonable. In addition, our ability to raise capital through equity financing may be limited by the number of ordinary shares
authorized but unissued or reserved for issuance. If we are unable to enhance our borrowings via debt offerings or our credit facilities, or to obtain additional
equity financing, we could experience a reduction of liquidity and may result in difficulty funding our operations, repayment of short-term borrowings,
payments of interest and other obligations. This could be detrimental to our business and have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, consolidated results
of operations and financial condition.

, | Z HFDQCRWP HHAIH1 < 6(  VARQWXHE QWM LHTXILHP HOW WH1 <6( P D GHMV HOMHURUG, LHDQG VRUGQDU \KDUH/

In the future, if we are not able to meet the continued listing requirements of the NYSE, which require, among other things, that the average closing price
of our ordinary shares be above $1.00 over 30 consecutive trading days, our ordinary shares may be delisted. The closing price of our ordinary shares on
February 5, 2019 was $0.91 per share.

If we are unable to satisfy the NYSE’s criteria for continued listing, our ordinary shares would be subject to delisting. A delisting of our ordinary shares
could negatively impact us by, among other things, reducing the liquidity and market price of the ordinary shares; reducing the number of investors willing to
hold or acquire our ordinary shares, which could negatively impact our ability to raise equity financing; decreasing the amount of news and analyst coverage
of us; and limiting our ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future.

In addition, delisting from the NYSE might negatively impact our reputation and, as a consequence, our business. Moreover, a delisting of our ordinary
shares would constitute a “fundamental change” under the terms of indenture governing the exchangeable notes, which would require us to make an offer to
repurchase the exchangeable senior notes at an amount in cash equal to the principal amount of the exchangeable senior notes of $1.265 billion plus accrued
and unpaid interest on the exchangeable senior notes. We may not have enough available cash or be able to obtain financing at the time we are required to
make repurchases of the exchangeable senior notes. Our failure to repurchase notes when required in connection with a fundamental change would constitute
a default under the indenture. A default under the indenture or the fundamental change itself could also lead to a default under agreements governing our
other indebtedness. If the repayment of the other indebtedness accelerates, then we may not have sufficient funds to repay that indebtedness or repurchase the
notes when required.

,| ZHDIHXQDEGIVR ARP SO Z I WH URIMPARQY DQG FRYHDQWLQ WH DI UHP HOWJIRYHLQQ) WH5 HYROIQ) & UHAWVS JUHP HQWV FRP SUMHG R RXU
H MAQ) XQHXUHG VHIRU IWRMQ) AHAWDIUHP HQVWH $ 5 &UHAWS JUHP HQW DQG D 6HXUHG 6HRQG / 1Y ' D 5 HYROIQ) &UHAW
$ JUHP HOWV WH "D &UHEWS JUHP HQV DP HGHG DQG RU HOMHG LOR 1Q $ XIXWWR WH 7HP / RDQ $ JUHP HQADQG RXU RKHJ
IQGHEWEQHY LQFXAQ) RXU LQGHIMUAY DV\KSSGP HOMG RXU LQGHOMUHY  WHH FRX@ EH D GH DXOWKQGHJ WHWLP VR WHH DIUHP HOW Z KIFK
FRX@ LHXO\Q DQ DFFHBLDARQ R SD\ P HMAR 1XQGVWDWZ HKDYHERUURZ H3 DQG Z RX@ Dl 1 HAARXU DELOW VR P DNH SUGQASDCDQG LQMHXMED, P HOWRQ
WHQRM/

Any default under the agreements governing our indebtedness that is not cured or waived by the required lenders, and the remedies sought by the holders
of any such indebtedness, could make us unable to pay principal and interest on the notes and substantially decrease the market value of the notes. If we are
unable to generate sufficient cash flow and are otherwise unable to obtain funds necessary to meet required payments of principal and interest on our
indebtedness, or if we otherwise fail to comply
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with the various covenants, including financial and operating covenants, in the agreements governing our indebtedness (including covenants in the Revolving
Credit Agreements, the Term Loan Agreement and our indentures), we could be in default under the terms of such agreements. In the event of such default:

» the holders of such indebtedness could elect to declare all the funds borrowed thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest;

+ the lenders under such agreements could elect to terminate their commitment thereunder and cease making further loans; and

*  we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.

If our operating performance declines, we may in the future need to obtain waivers under the Revolving Credit Agreements, the Term Loan Agreement or
our indentures. If we breach our covenants under the Revolving Credit Agreements, the Term Loan Agreement or our indentures, and seek a waiver, we may
not be able to obtain a waiver from the required lenders or noteholders. If this occurs, we would be in default under such agreements, the lenders or trustee
could exercise their rights or remedies, as described above, and we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.

7KHWLP VR WH5 HYRVLQJ & UHAWS JUH-P HOWDQG 7THP / RDQ $ JUHHP HIAURWMPWDQG RXU LOGHMUAY FRXES URIMLFWRXU FXULHIADQG | XVMUH
RSH.DWRQV SDUARX@IUD RXUDELDN VR URSRQG R FKDQIH/RUVR SXUKHRXUEXMGHA VADWILHY/

The Revolving Credit Agreements and Term Loan Agreement contain, and our indentures contain, a number of restrictive covenants that could impose
significant operating and financial restrictions on us and may limit our ability to engage in acts that may be in our long-term best interest, including
restrictions on our ability to:

¢ incur additional indebtedness;

*  pay dividends and make other distributions;

«  prepay, redeem or repurchase certain debt;

« make loans and investments;

¢ sell assets and incur liens;

* enter into transactions with affiliates;

*  enter into agreements restricting our subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends; and

» consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets.

As aresult of these restrictions, we may be:

¢ limited in how we conduct our business;
* unable to raise additional debt or equity financing to operate during general economic or business downturns; or

* unable to compete effectively, execute our growth strategy or take advantage of new business opportunities.

In addition, the restrictive covenants in the Revolving Credit Agreements and Term Loan Agreement require us to maintain specified financial ratios. Our
ability to meet those financial ratios can be affected by events beyond our control.
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A breach of the covenants under the Revolving Credit Agreements, the Term Loan Agreement or our indentures could result in an event of default
thereunder. Such a default may allow the lenders or the trustee to accelerate the related indebtedness and may result in the acceleration of any other
indebtedness to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies. In addition, an event of default under the Revolving Credit Agreements or Term
Loan Agreement would permit the lenders thereunder to terminate all commitments. Furthermore, if we were unable to repay the amounts due and payable
under the Term Loan Agreement or the 364-Day Credit Agreement, the lenders thereunder could proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure that
indebtedness. In the event our lenders accelerate the repayment of our borrowings, we and our subsidiaries may not have sufficient assets to repay that
indebtedness. If we do not repay our debt out of cash on hand, we could attempt to (i) restructure or refinance such debt, (ii) sell assets or (iii) repay such debt
with the proceeds from an equity offering. We cannot assure you that we will be able to generate sufficient cash flows from operating activities to pay the
interest on our debt or that future borrowings, equity financings or proceeds from the sale of assets will be available to pay or refinance such debt. The terms
of our debt, including our bank credit facility, may also prohibit us from taking such actions. Factors that will affect our ability to raise cash through offerings
of our capital stock, a refinancing of our debt or a sale of assets include financial market conditions and our market value and operating performance at the
time of such offerings, refinancing or sale of assets. We cannot assure you that any such offerings, restructuring, refinancing or sale of assets will be
successfully completed.

: HP D QRAEHDE®I VR FRP SGIM RXU VADWILF AYHINXUH/ DQG ZHP D QRADRKIHYHWH L.OMGHS EHHIWR DQ. DFTXMWRQ GYHXAMUH RUNROQA
YHIMUH

From time to time, we may pursue strategic divestitures, acquisitions, investments and joint ventures (“transactions”). For example, we have signed
agreements to divest certain of our land drilling rigs (a portion of which have closed), our laboratories business and our surface data logging business and plan
to divest certain other non-strategic assets. Such divestitures can be complex in nature and may be affected by unanticipated developments, such as the recent
significant and sustained decrease in the price of crude oil, delays in obtaining regulatory, governmental, customer or other third party approvals and
challenges in establishing processes and infrastructure for both the underlying business and for potential investors or buyers of the business, which may result
in such divestiture being delayed, or in limited circumstances not being completed at all, any of which could have a negative impact on our ability to repay
indebtedness or our liquidity and otherwise expose us to increased competitive pressures and additional risks.

Even if successful, any of these contemplated or other future transactions may reduce our earnings for a number of reasons, and pose many other risks
that could adversely affect or operations or financial results, including:

+ these transactions have and do require significant investment of time and resources, may disrupt our business, distract management from other
responsibilities and may result in losses on disposal or continued financial involvement in any divested business, including through indemnification,
guarantee or other financial arrangements, for a period of time following the transaction, which may adversely affect our financial results, including
our cash flow, repayment of indebtedness or compliance with debt covenants;

* acquired entities or joint ventures may not operate profitably, which could adversely affect our operating income or operating margins, and we may
be unable to recover our investments;

* we may not be able to effectively influence the operations of our joint ventures, or we may be exposed to certain liabilities if our joint venture
partners do not fulfill their obligations; and

* we may not be able to fully realize the intended or expected benefits of consummating such transactions, including receiving the expected cash
proceeds.

,| DQRMHJ SDUN FOIP VWDWZ HKDYHLQ UQIHS IW IQMIBRMDOSURSHIV WKW ZHP D EHVXEMPAIR QMDARQ RUZHP D GHHG VR VENH UHP HADO
BV HIP LCOMRUP W DMQDELDV

A third party may claim that we sell equipment or perform services that infringes upon the third party’s patent rights or unlawfully uses the third party’s
trade secrets. Addressing such claims of patent infringement or trade secret misappropriation could result in significant legal and other costs and may
adversely impact our business. To resolve such claims, we may be required to enter into license agreements that require us to make royalty payments to
continue selling equipment or providing of services. Alternatively, the development of non-infringing technologies could be costly. If an allegation of patent
infringement or trade secret misappropriation cannot be resolved through a license agreement, we might not be able to continue selling particular equipment
or providing particular services, which could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flow.
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2 XUEXMQHNFRX@ EHQHIDAYHD DI HAMG E\ A EHOHRXUW LGAGHIVDQG RMHUWRKQRERI\ GMUXKSWRQY

We rely heavily on information systems to conduct and protect our business. These information systems are increasingly subject to sophisticated
cybersecurity incidents such as unauthorized access to data and systems, loss or destruction of data (including confidential customer, supplier and employee
information), computer viruses, or other malicious code, phishing and cyber attacks, and other similar events. These incidents arise from numerous sources,
not all of which are within our control, including fraud or malice on the part of third parties, accidental technological failure, electrical or telecommunication
outages, failures of computer servers or other damage to our property or assets, human error, complications encountered as existing systems are maintained,
repaired, replaced, or upgraded or outbreaks of hostilities or terrorist acts.

Given the rapidly evolving nature of cyber incidents, there can be no assurance that the systems we have designed and implemented to prevent or limit
the effects of cyber incidents or attacks will be sufficient in preventing all such incidents or attacks, or be able to avoid a material impact to our systems
should such incidents or attacks occur. A cyber incident or attack, could result in the disclosure of confidential or proprietary customer, supplier or employee
information, theft or loss of intellectual property, damage to our reputation with our customers, suppliers and the market, failure to meet customer
requirements or customer dissatisfaction, theft or exposure to litigation, damage to equipment (which could cause environmental or safety issues) and other
financial costs and losses. Moreover, we have no control over the information technology systems of our customers, suppliers and others with which our
systems may connect and communicate. As a result, the occurrence of a cyber incident could go unnoticed for a period time. As cybersecurity incidents
continue to evolve, we may also be required to devote additional resources to continue to enhance our protective measures or to investigate or remediate any
cybersecurity vulnerabilities. We do not presently maintain insurance coverage to protect against cybersecurity risks. If we procure such coverage in the
future, we cannot ensure that it will be sufficient to cover any particular losses we may experience as a result of such cyber attack or other incident. Any cyber
incident could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

7 KH DELOW VR LHALQ RU DMOPMVHP SR HY LCRXAQI H HRXWYH RITLEHY DQG RMHU NHL SHORQQHD ARX@ KDYH D P DMUIDODGYHMWH HIHAWRXU
BEXMHWV

Our business is dependent on our ability to attract, develop, and retain qualified employees. Our ability to meet our employment needs is subject to
external and internal factors such as the current and future prices of oil and natural gas, the demand for employees by companies in our industry, our
reputation within the labor market (particularly in our highly competitive industry), as well as our employees’ perception of opportunities with us as
compared to our peers (including as to our financial performance and incentives related thereto). If we are unable to attract and retain adequate numbers and
an appropriate mix of qualified employees, the quality of products and services we provide to our customers may decrease and our financial performance may
be adversely affected. Further, we depend on the contributions of key personnel for our future success. Departures of key employees can cause disruptions to,
and uncertainty in, our business and operations. Future departures of key employees, including changes in our senior management, could disrupt our business
and have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

$ GHUHFKDQIHY/ QW] @ VERW LQ WH 8 QMG 6V DQG DELRDG FKDQIHYIQ W LDM/ RUH SRUKUH VR DEAMRCDOLQARP HVE]  QDELOARY FRXGS
KDYHD P DMUDCDGYHIHH I HRQRXUHAGWVR RSHDARQY

In 2002, we reorganized from the United States to a foreign jurisdiction. There are frequent legislative proposals in the United States that attempt to treat
companies that have undertaken similar transactions as U.S. corporations subject to U.S. taxes or to limit the tax deductions or tax credits available to United
States subsidiaries of these corporations. Our tax expense could be impacted by changes in tax laws, tax treaties or tax regulations or the interpretation or
enforcement thereof or differing interpretation or enforcement of applicable law by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and other taxing jurisdictions, acting in
unison or separately. The inability to reduce our tax expense could have a material impact on our financial statements.

The Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development (“OECD”), which represents a coalition of member countries, has issued various white
papers addressing Tax Base Erosion and Jurisdictional Profit Shifting. The recommendations in these white papers are generally aimed at combating what
they believe is tax avoidance. Numerous jurisdictions in which we operate have been influenced by these white papers as well as other factors and are
increasingly active in evaluating changes to their tax laws. Changes in tax laws could significantly increase our tax expense and require us to take actions, at
potential significant expense, to seek to preserve our current level of tax expense.

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. enacted into law a comprehensive tax reform bill (the “Tax Cuts and Jobs Act,” or the “TCJA”), that significantly
reforms the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The TCJA, among other things, contains
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significant changes to corporate taxation, including a permanent reduction of the corporate income tax rate, a partial limitation on the deductibility of business
interest expense, limitation of the deduction for certain net operating losses to 80% of current year taxable income, an indefinite net operating loss
carryforward, immediate deductions for certain new investments instead of deductions for depreciation expense over time, modification or repeal of many
business deductions and credits (including certain foreign tax credits), a shift of the U.S. taxation of multinational corporations from a tax on worldwide
income to a partial territorial system (along with certain rules designed to prevent erosion of the U.S. income tax base, such as the base erosion and anti-abuse
tax), modifications to the rules used to determine whether an entity is a “controlled foreign corporation” and a one-time tax on accumulated offshore earnings
held in cash and illiquid assets (with the latter taxed at a lower rate). We continue to examine the impact of this tax reform legislation, as we note that the
TCJA could adversely affect our business and financial condition. The various impacts of the TCJA may materially differ from the impacts recognized due to
future treasury regulations, tax law technical corrections, and other potential guidance, notices, rulings, refined computations, actions the Company may take
as a result of the tax legislation, and other items.

Our effective tax rate has fluctuated in the past and may fluctuate in the future. Future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the composition
of earnings in countries in which we operate with differing tax rates, changes in tax laws, or changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities. We assess our
deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine whether a valuation allowance may be required. We have recorded a valuation allowance on substantially
all of our current and future deferred tax assets. A prolonged downturn could result in us not being able to benefit future losses, which would negatively
impact our financial results.

HP D EHSUIRKIEIWG ILRP IXA@ XMQJ RXU8 6 CQHARSH.DAQ) GRWFDU | REZ DGV Z KIFK FRX@ D HAARXU I LCDQADOSHI RP DOAH

As a result of the recent losses we have incurred in the U.S., we have recorded a valuation allowance against all future tax benefits of our U.S. net
operating loss carryforwards. As of December 31, 2018, we had gross net operating loss (“NOL”) and research tax credit carryforwards of approximately $2.0
billion and $34 million, respectively, for federal income tax purposes, expiring in varying amounts through the year 2037. Under Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if a corporation undergoes an “ownership change,” generally defined as a greater than 50% change (by value) in its
equity ownership over a three year period, the corporation’s ability to use its pre-change NOL carryforwards and other pre-change tax attributes (such as
research tax credits) to offset its post-change income may be limited. As of December 31, 2018, we have not experienced an ownership change. Therefore,
our utilization of NOL carryforwards was not subject to an annual limitation. However, we may experience ownership changes in the future as a result of
subsequent shifts in our stock ownership. As a result, if we earn net taxable income, our ability to use our pre-change NOL carryforwards to offset U.S.
federal taxable income may be subject to limitations, which could potentially result in increased future tax liability to us. In addition, at the state level, there
may be periods during which the use of NOL carryforwards is suspended or otherwise limited, which could accelerate or permanently increase state taxes
owed. Furthermore, these losses could expire before we generate sufficient income to utilize them.

.| D8 QWG 6\VBM/ SHIRQ LV WHOMG DV RZQQJ DAMBDWY R RXUKDLHY \KFK KRTHJP D EH \KEMPAMR DGYHOH 8 6 |HEHDOLQRRP H Vi
FROHTXHAV

As a result of the TCJA, many of our non-U.S. subsidiaries are now classified as “controlled foreign corporations” for U.S. federal income tax purposes
due to the expanded application of certain ownership attribution rules within a multinational corporate group. If a United States person is treated as owning
(directly, indirectly or constructively) at least 10% of the value or voting power of our shares, such person may be treated as a “United States shareholder”
with respect to one or more of our controlled foreign corporation subsidiaries. In addition, if our shares are treated as owned more than 50% by United States
shareholders, we would be treated as a controlled foreign corporation. A United States shareholder of a controlled foreign corporation may be required to
annually report and include in its U.S. taxable income, as ordinary income, its pro rata share of “Subpart F income,” “global intangible low-taxed income”
and investments in U.S. property by controlled foreign corporations, whether or not we make any distributions to such United States shareholder. An
individual United States shareholder generally would not be allowed certain tax deductions or foreign tax credits that would be allowed to a corporate United
States shareholder with respect to a controlled foreign corporation. A failure by a United States shareholder to comply with its reporting obligations may
subject the United States shareholder to significant monetary penalties and may extend the statute of limitations with respect to the United States
shareholder’s U.S. federal income tax return for the year for which such reporting was due. We cannot provide any assurances that we will assist investors in
determining whether we or any of our non-U.S. subsidiaries are controlled foreign corporations or whether any investor is a United States shareholder with
respect to any such controlled foreign corporations. We also cannot guarantee that we will furnish to United States shareholders information that may be
necessary for them to comply with the aforementioned obligations. United States investors should consult their own advisors regarding the potential
application of these
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rules to their investments in us. The risk of being subject to increased taxation may deter our current shareholders from increasing their investment in us and
others from investing in us, which could impact the demand for, and value of, our shares.

: HDQG RXUMKDUHKRTH FRX@ EHVKEMPAR LQRUHDHE V] DARQLL Z HOUHFRMGHHG\REHDWY  URIGHAIQ ERM 6Z WWHUDQG DQG, LHDQG

In 2014, we redomesticated from Switzerland to Ireland. While we moved our place of incorporation from Switzerland to Ireland in 2014, we continue to
be effectively managed from Switzerland. Under current Swiss law a company is regarded as a Swiss tax resident if it has its place of effective management
in Switzerland or is incorporated in Switzerland. Where a company is treated as a tax resident of Switzerland as a result of having its place of effective
management in Switzerland, Irish law provides Ireland will generally treat the company as not resident in Ireland for Irish tax purposes. We intend to maintain
our place of effective management in Switzerland and therefore qualify as a Swiss, but not Irish, tax resident. However, it is possible that in the future,
whether as a result of a change in law or tax treaty or how we manage our business that we could become a tax resident in Ireland in addition to Switzerland.
If we were to be considered to be a tax resident of Ireland, we could become liable for Irish and Swiss corporation tax and any dividends paid to its
shareholders could be subject to Irish and Swiss dividend withholding tax.

7KHUWKWR RXUNKDUHKRGHY DHIRMHHG B UMK @7, WMWK @2 ALITHWVILRP WH @7 V1Q HITHAMQ WH 8 QWG 6\ivd/ DQG P D DIRG GW
SIRMWRQWRKRGHIVR RXUVHRXUMHY/

As an Irish company, we are governed by the Irish Companies Act, which differs in some material respects from laws generally applicable to U.S.
corporations and shareholders, including, among others, provisions relating to interested directors, mergers and acquisitions, takeovers, shareholder lawsuits
and indemnification of directors. Likewise, the duties of directors and officers of an Irish company generally are owed to the company only. Shareholders of
Irish companies generally do not have a personal right of action against directors or officers of the company and may exercise such rights of action on behalf
of the company only in limited circumstances. Accordingly, holders of our securities may have more difficulty protecting their interests than would holders of
securities of a corporation incorporated in a jurisdiction of the United States. Additionally, while we are an Irish company, we hold shareholders meetings in
Switzerland, which may make attendance in person more difficult for some investors.

: HDHIQRRBRDMS LQ, LHDQG DQG D MJIQU LFDQASRUARQ R RXU DWHN DLH GFDMG RAMGHWHS QWS 6V $ VD LHXAOVIWP LIKWQRAEH SRME®
I RONKDUHKRTHIY VR HY RIFHAYIOTCELOW SLRYIMRQVR WH I HEH DCRUMBAWM\VHRXUMH/ QY. VR WHS QMG 6\VIdAY

We are organized under the laws of Ireland, and a significant portion of our assets are located outside the United States. The United States currently does
not have a treaty with Ireland providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters. As such, a shareholder
who obtains a court judgment based on the civil liability provisions of U.S. federal or state securities laws may be unable to enforce the judgment against us
in Ireland. In addition, there is some doubt as to whether the courts of Ireland and other countries would recognize or enforce judgments of U.S. courts
obtained against us or our directors or officers based on the civil liabilities provisions of the federal or state securities laws of the United States or would hear
actions against us or those persons based on those laws. The laws of Ireland do, however, as a general rule, provide that the judgments of the courts of the
United States have the same validity in Ireland as if rendered by Irish Courts. Certain important requirements must be satisfied before the Irish Courts will
recognize the U.S. judgment. The originating court must have been a court of competent jurisdiction, the judgment must be final and conclusive, and the
judgment may not be recognized if it was obtained by fraud or its recognition would be contrary to Irish public policy. Any judgment obtained in
contravention of the rules of natural justice or that is irreconcilable with an earlier foreign judgment would not be enforced in Ireland.

Similarly, judgments might not be enforceable in countries other than the United States where we have assets.

WP % 8 QARYHGEWI &RP P HQV

None.
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Our operations are conducted in over 80 countries and we have manufacturing facilities, research and technology centers, fluids and processing centers
and sales, service and distribution locations throughout the world. The following sets forth the locations of our principal owned or leased facilities for our
commercial operations by geographic segment as of December 31, 2018:

5HIRQ 6SHAILF/ RFDARQ

. B+ HP DNSKHH Pearland, Greenville, Houston, Huntsville, Katy, Longview, Odessa, Pasadena, and San Antonio, Texas; Broussard and
Schriever, Louisiana; Williston, North Dakota; Calgary, Edmonton, and Nisku, Canada; Neuquen, Argentina; Rio de Janeiro
and Macae, Brazil; Venustiano Carranza and Villahermosa, Mexico; and Anaco, Venezuela.

( DWMR+ HP DSKHH Langenhagen, Germany; Aberdeen, UK; Atyrau, Kazakhstan; Nizhnevartovsk, Russia; Port Harcourt, Nigeria; Sandnes and
Stavanger, Norway; Balkanabat, Turkmenistan; Hassi Messaoud, Algeria; Luanda, Angola; Cairo, Egypt; Dhahran, Saudi
Arabia; North Rumaila and Basra, Iraq; Mina Abdulla, Kuwait; Abu Dhabi, Dubai and Sharjah, United Arab Emirates;
Dongying, Jiangsu and Shifang, China; Barmer, India; and Singapore, Singapore.

Our corporate headquarters are in Baar, Switzerland. We own or lease numerous other facilities such as service centers, shops and sales and
administrative offices throughout the geographic regions in which we operate. Certain of our material U.S. properties are all mortgaged to the lenders under
our Term Loan. All of our remaining owned properties are unencumbered, however the lenders could require we mortgage them as well. We believe the
facilities that we currently occupy are suitable for their intended use.

WP/ HDBUWRAHEQIV

In the ordinary course of business, we are the subject of various claims and litigation. We maintain insurance to cover many of our potential losses, and
we are subject to various self-retention limits and deductibles with respect to our insurance.

Please see the following:

*  “Item 1A. — Risk Factors — We have been the subject of governmental and internal investigations related to alleged corrupt conduct and violations of
U.S. sanctioned country laws, which were costly to conduct, resulted in a loss of revenue and substantial financial penalties and created other
disruptions for the business. If we are the subject of such investigations in the future, it could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations, which is incorporated by reference into this item.

*  “Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 20 — Disputes, Litigation and Legal
Contingencies.”

Although we are subject to various on-going items of litigation, we do not believe it is probable that any of the items of litigation to which we are
currently subject will result in any material uninsured losses to us. It is possible, however, that an unexpected judgment could be rendered against us, or we
could decide to resolve a case or cases that would result in a liability that could be uninsured and beyond the amounts we currently have reserved and in some
cases those losses could be material.

WP 0 LCHEDHY' DWFRXUH

Not applicable.
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WP 0 DUNHVRUS HIMADQAY&RP P RQ (- TXLW 5 HIWG6\RFNKR@HUO DY/ DQG, WXHU3 XURKDVHY/R (| TXIW 6 HEXUMWY

Our ordinary shares are traded under the symbol “WFT” on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). As of February 4, 2019, there were 1,600
shareholders of record.

SHJIRP DOAH* DK

This graph compares the yearly cumulative return on our shares with the cumulative return on the Dow Jones U.S. Oil Equipment & Services Index and
the Dow Jones U.S. Index for the last five years. The graph assumes the value of the investment in our shares and each index was $100 on December 31,
2013. The stockholder return set forth below is not necessarily indicative of future performance. The following graph and related information shall not be
deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities
Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.
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The following table sets forth certain selected historical consolidated financial data and should be read in conjunction with “Item 7. — Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” which contain
information on the comparability of the selected financial data and are both contained in this report. Discussion of material uncertainties is included in “Item
8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 20 — Disputes, Litigation and Legal Contingencies.”
The following information may not be indicative of our future operating results. We have not declared dividends to shareholders’ in the periods listed below.

<HU( QGG' HHPEHJ

' RDWIQP IRV H AFBVEHINKDHDP RXQV

Statements of Operations Data:

Revenues $ 5744 % 5699 $ 5749 $ 9,433 $ 14,911
Operating Income (Loss) (2,084) (2,170) (2,245) (1,546) 505
Net Loss Attributable to Weatherford (2,811) (2,813) (3,392) (1,985) (584)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share Attributable To Weatherford (2.82) (2.84) (3.82) (2.55) (0.75)

Balance Sheet Data:

Total Assets $ 6,601 $ 9,747  $ 12,664 $ 14,760 $ 18,854
Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt 383 148 179 1,582 727
Long-term Debt 7,605 7,541 7,403 5,852 6,762
Total Shareholders’ (Deficiency) Equity (3,666) (571) 2,068 4,365 7,033
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WP 0 DQDIHP HQAV' WAXWIRQ DQG$ QDOMYVR ) LQDCHDORRQAWRQ DQG5 HXAWVR 2 SHDIRQV
As used herein, the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Weatherford International plc (“Weatherford Ireland”), a public limited company organized
under the laws of Ireland, and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in “Item 8. — Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.” Our discussion includes various forward-looking statements about our markets, the demand for our products and
services and our future results. These statements include certain risks and uncertainties. For information about these risks and uncertainties, refer to the
section entitled “Forward-Looking Statements” and the section entitled “Item 1A. — Risk Factors.”

2 YHMH
* HHDO

We conduct operations in over 80 countries and have service and sales locations in virtually all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in the world.
Our operational performance is reviewed on a geographic basis, and we report the following as separate, distinct reporting segments: Western Hemisphere
and Eastern Hemisphere.

Our principal business is to provide equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry, both onshore and offshore.
Products and services include: (1) Production, (2) Completions, (3) Drilling and Evaluation and (4) Well Construction.

3UWRGRNRQoffers production optimization services and a complete production ecosystem, featuring our artificial-lift portfolio, testing and flow-
measurement solutions, and optimization software, to boost productivity and profitability.

+  &RP SBWRQMs a suite of modern completion products, reservoir stimulation designs, and engineering capabilities that isolate zones and unlock
reserves in deepwater, unconventional, and aging reservoirs.

' U@ DQG( YDODWMRQcomprises a suite of services ranging from early well planning to reservoir management. The drilling services offer
innovative tools and expert engineering to increase efficiency and maximize reservoir exposure. The evaluation services merge wellsite
capabilities including wireline, logging while drilling, and surface logging with laboratory-fluid and core analyses to reduce reservoir uncertainty.

. : HOR ROQWWKRNRbuilds or rebuilds well integrity for the full life cycle of the well. Using conventional to advanced equipment, we offer safe and
efficient tubular running services in any environment. Our skilled fishing and re-entry teams execute under any contingency from drilling to
abandonment, and our drilling tools provide reliable pressure control even in extreme wellbores. During 2018, we disposed of our Kuwait and
Saudi Arabia land drilling rigs operations. Our remaining land drilling rig business is part of Well Construction and nearly all our remaining land
drilling rigs assets were classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2018.

We may sell our products and services separately or may bundle them together to provide integrated solutions up to, and including, integrated well
construction where we are responsible for the entire process of drilling, constructing and completing a well. Our customers include both exploration and
production companies and other oilfield service companies. Depending on the service line, customer and location, our contracts vary in their terms, provisions
and indemnities. We earn revenues under our contracts when products are delivered and services are performed. Typically, we provide products and services
at a well site where our personnel and equipment may be located together with personnel and equipment of our customer and third parties, such as other
service providers. Our services are usually short-term in nature, day-rate based and cancellable should our customer wish to alter the scope of work.
Consequently, our backlog of firm orders is not material to the Company.
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, QMM 7LHGY

The level of spending in the energy industry is heavily influenced by the current and expected future prices of oil and natural gas. Changes in
expenditures result in an increased or decreased demand for our products and services. Rig count is an indicator of the level of spending for the exploration
for and production of oil and natural gas reserves. The following chart sets forth certain statistics that reflect historical market conditions:

1 RUN
$ P HIFDQ , OMCDARQDCS L
7, 210P +HU +XE* DVE 5 L) &RXQAF &RXQW
2018 $ 4541 $ 2.94 1,223 988
2017 60.42 2.95 1,082 948
2016 53.72 3.68 639 955

(a) Price per barrel of West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) crude oil as of the last business day of the year indicated at Cushing Oklahoma — Source: Thomson Reuters
(b) Price per MM/BTU as of the last business day of the year indicated at Henry Hub Louisiana — Source: Thomson Reuters
(c) Average rig count — Source: Baker Hughes Rig Count

During 2018 oil prices ranged from a low of $42.53 per barrel in late December to a high of $76.41 per barrel in early October on the New York
Mercantile Exchange. Natural gas ranged from a low of $2.55 MM/BTU in mid-February to a high of $4.84 MM/BTU in mid-November. Factors influencing
oil and natural gas prices during the period include hydrocarbon inventory levels, realized and expected global economic growth, realized and expected levels
of hydrocarbon demand, level of production capacity and weather and geopolitical uncertainty.

2 X@BRN

Our results for 2018 improved in the Western Hemisphere primarily due to higher demand for our products and services in well construction, production,
and drilling services as the average rig count increased and supplies tightened, combined with the positive impact from our transformation initiatives. The
high volatility in oil prices will continue to negatively impact customer buying behavior and their demand for our services. North America growth was led by
the Permian Basin, and apart from increasing activity in Argentina, the overall market activity in Latin America remained relatively subdued. In the Eastern
Hemisphere, we experienced continued growth in the Gulf Cooperation Council (“GCC”) countries mainly as a result of market share gains and increased
activity levels in Russia while Africa, Asia and Europe remained relatively stable. We believe certain deepwater markets in the Eastern Hemisphere have
likely reached their bottom, with little expected improvements in the near term. Our expectations, however, regarding diligent improvement, are measured
from continued volatility in oil prices and the overall market contraction for our products and services.

In the absence of any geopolitical events, we believe our industry will remain within this ‘medium-for-longer’ price level paradigm for some time, until
production growth is moderated. In the interim, we expect continuous short-term cyclical fluctuations. We will continue to push innovation, both from a
technological and a business model perspective, and we will deliver operational excellence to bring the cost of production down to a point at which all market
participants can make acceptable returns. For us, this means continuous focus on our transformation program, which started late in the fourth quarter of 2017,
generating cost savings through the flattening of our organizational structure, driving process changes, improving the capabilities and the efficiency of our
supply chain, sales and general administrative organizations and continuing to rationalize our manufacturing footprint. Furthermore, through our
transformation program we will continue to see improvements in our operating efficiency, ongoing lowering of our non-productive time, improvements in our
collaboration with our customers and continuing our steady progress towards our transformation targets.

As production decline rates accelerate and reservoir productivity complexities increase, our clients will continue to face challenges associated with
decreasing the cost of extraction activities and securing desired rates of production. These challenges increase our customers’ requirements for technologies
that improve productivity and efficiency, which in turn puts pressure on us to deliver our products and services at competitive rates. We believe we are well
positioned to satisfy our customers’ needs, but the level of improvement in our businesses in the future will depend heavily on pricing, volume of work and
our ability to offer solutions to more efficiently extract hydrocarbons, control costs and penetrate new and existing markets with our newly developed
technologies.

For 2019, our North American customers are expected to have a flat or lower capital spending primarily related to the pricing pressures related to the
hydraulic fracturing market and its associated sub-sectors, where we are relatively insulated from due to
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our disposition of our pressure pumping business in the fourth quarter of 2017. The slowdown in activity in Canada as result of high crude oil price
differentials is also expected to lead to lower revenue in the short term. We expect activity levels in Latin America to remain constructive, as additional
contract wins will support our continued growth, partly offset by inflationary pressures in Argentina. In the Eastern Hemisphere, we anticipate growth in the
North Sea, Continental Europe and in the GCC countries as a result of an increase in activity combined with some market share growth. We expect activity
levels in Russia, Africa, and Asia to remain relatively stable.

We continually seek opportunities to maximize efficiency and value through various transactions, including purchases or dispositions of assets,
businesses, investments or joint ventures. In the first quarter of 2018, we acquired the remaining interest in our Qatari joint venture that we now consolidate.
In July of 2018, we entered into purchase and sale agreements to sell our land drilling rig operations in Algeria, Kuwait and Saudi Arabia as well as two idle
land rigs in Iraq, to ADES International Holding Ltd. (“ADES”), for a gross purchase price of $287.5 million. During the second quarter of 2018, we also
committed to plans to divest certain remaining land drilling rigs operations and other business operations for which we believe a sale is probable within the
next twelve months. In the third quarter of 2018, we completed the sale of an equity investment in a joint venture for $12.5 million. In October of 2018, we
agreed to sell our Reservoir Solutions business, also known as our laboratory services business to an affiliate of CSL Capital Management, L.P., for an
aggregate purchase price of $205 million, subject to customary post-closing working capital adjustments. In December of 2018, we agreed to sell our Surface
Data Logging business to Excellence Logging for $50 million in cash, subject to customary post-closing working capital adjustments. We evaluate our
disposition candidates based on the strategic fit within our business and/or our short and long-term objectives. Divestitures, however, can be complex and
may be affected by unanticipated developments, such as the significant decrease in crude oil prices in the fourth quarter of 2018 and delays in obtaining
regulatory, customer or third party approvals, which may result in the consummation of such divestitures, if agreed upon, being delayed or terminated, which
could have a negative impact on our liquidity position, ability to repay indebtedness and comply with certain covenants in our debt instruments.

Upon completion, the cash proceeds from any divestitures are expected to be used for working capital or repay or repurchase debt. Any such debt
reduction may include the repurchase of our outstanding senior notes prior to their maturity in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions.
We continue to be mindful of our debt and its maturities and we are evaluating options to ensure that our balance sheet and capital structure is aligned with
our business and the long-term health of our company.

The oilfield services industry growth is highly dependent on many external factors, such as our customers’ capital expenditures, world economic and
political conditions, the price of oil and natural gas, member-country quota compliance within the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries and
weather conditions and other factors, including those described in the section entitled “Forward-Looking Statements” and the section entitled “Item 1A. —
Risk Factors.”

2 SSRUMQUHYDQG&KDIHIHY

Our industry offers many opportunities and challenges. The cyclicality of the energy industry impacts the demand for our products and services. Certain
of our products and services, such as our drilling and evaluation services, well construction and well completion services, depend on the level of exploration
and development activity and the completion phase of the well life cycle. Other products and services, such as our production optimization and artificial lift
systems, are dependent on the number of wells and the type of production systems used. We have created a long-term strategy aimed at growing our
businesses, servicing our customers, and creating value for our shareholders. The success of our long-term strategy will be determined by our ability to
manage effectively any industry cyclicality, including the ongoing and prolonged industry downturn and our ability to respond to industry demands and
periods of over-supply or low oil prices, successfully maximize the benefits from our acquisitions and complete the disposition of businesses that are no
longer a strategic fit within our business and/or our short and long term objectives. There is no assurance that we will be able to execute on our long-term
strategy or achieve its intended benefits.

2 YHVHZ R 6LIQULFDQVS PRV
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In the fourth quarter of 2018, we completed the sale for a portion of the land drilling rigs operations we previously committed to divesting in the fourth
quarter of 2017 and received gross cash proceeds of $216 million. Proceeds from the sale were used to reduce outstanding indebtedness. The sale represents
two of a series of four closings pursuant to the purchase and sale agreements entered into with ADES in 2018 to sell our land drilling rig operations in
Algeria, Kuwait and Saudi Arabia, as well as two idle land rigs in Iraq, for a total of 31 land rigs and related drilling contracts, as well as transferring
employees and contract personnel, for an aggregate purchase price of $287.5 million, subject to regulatory approvals, consents and other customary closing
conditions including potential adjustments based on working capital, net cash, loss or destruction of rigs and drilling contract backlog.
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In December of 2018, we agreed to sell our surface data logging business to Excellence Logging for $50 million in cash, subject to customary post-
closing working capital adjustments. The transaction is expected to close in the first half of 2019.

In October of 2018, we agreed to sell our Reservoir Solutions business, also known as our laboratory services business to an affiliate of CSL Capital
Management, L.P., for an aggregate purchase price of $205 million in cash, subject to customary post-closing working capital adjustments. The transaction is
expected to close in the first quarter of 2019.

In December of 2017, we completed the sale of our U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down perforating assets for $430 million in cash and recognized a
$96 million gain on this sale. We sold our related facilities, field assets, and supplier and customer contracts related to these businesses. Proceeds from the
sale were used to reduce outstanding indebtedness.

6XPPDUY R 2 SHDWNY &KDUH/

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we recorded $1.9 billion of goodwill impairment charges related to our annual fair value assessment of our
business and assets, $151 million of long-lived asset impairments, $126 million of severance and restructuring charges and $89 million of other asset write-
downs.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, we incurred $928 million of long-lived asset impairments, $540 million inventory write-off and other related
charges including excess and obsolete, $230 million in the write-down of Venezuelan receivables and $183 million of severance and restructuring charges.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we incurred $436 million related to long-lived asset impairments, $280 million of severance and restructuring
charges, $220 million of litigation charges, $269 million of inventory write-downs and $194 million of asset-write downs and other charges primarily for
pressure pumping related charges related to the shutdown of our U.S. pressure pumping business.

* RRZIQDQG/ RY @HG$ WHWYP SOLP HOW

During 2018, we recorded a goodwill impairment of $1.9 billion which was based upon our annual fair value assessment of our business and assets. The
rapid and steep decline in oil prices and consequentially lower expectations for future exploration and production capital spending, resulted in a sharp
reduction in share prices in the oilfield services sector, including our share price, which triggered the goodwill impairment in line with U.S. GAAP. During
2018, we also recognized long-lived asset impairments of $151 million related to our land drilling rigs assets primarily to write-down our land drilling rigs
assets to the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. The 2018 impairments were due to the sustained downturn in the oil and gas industry that
resulted in a reassessment of our disposal groups for our land drilling rigs. The change in our expectations of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive
negative operating cash flows in certain disposal asset groups represented an indicator that those assets will no longer be recoverable over their remaining
useful lives.

During 2017, we recognized long-lived asset impairments of $928 million, of which $923 million was related to property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”)
impairments and $5 million was related to the impairment of intangible assets. The PP&E impairments include a $740 million write-down to the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell of our land drilling rigs classified as held for sale, $172 million related to segment product line assets and $11
million of long-lived impairments charges related to Corporate assets. The 2017 impairments were due to the sustained downturn in the oil and gas industry,
whose recovery was not as strong as expected and whose recovery in subsequent quarters was slower than had previously been anticipated. The change in the
expectations of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive negative operating cash flows in certain asset groups represented an indicator that those assets
will no longer be recoverable over their remaining useful lives.

During 2016, we recognized long-lived asset impairments of $436 million of which $388 million was related to product line PP&E impairments and $48
million was related to the impairment of intangible assets. The 2016 impairments were due to the prolonged downturn in the oil and gas industry, whose
recovery was not as strong as expected and whose recovery in subsequent quarters in 2016 was slower than had previously been anticipated. The change in
the expectations of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive negative operating cash flows in certain asset groups represented an indicator that those
assets will no longer be recoverable over their remaining useful lives.

See “Note 9 — Long-Lived Asset Impairments,” “Note 10 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets” and “Note 13 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Assets
and Other Assets” for additional information regarding goodwill and long-lived asset impairments.
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In 2016, the SEC and DOJ continued to investigate certain accounting issues associated with the material weakness in our internal control over financial
reporting for income taxes and the restatements of our historical financial statements in 2011 and 2012. As disclosed in a Form 8-K filed on September 27,
2016, the Company agreed to pay the SEC a total civil monetary penalty of $140 million to resolve the investigation. In addition, certain reports and
certifications regarding our internal controls over accounting for income taxes were delivered to the SEC during the two years following the settlement. We
have completed these reports as of April 2018 and our final payment for the civil monetary penalty was made in September 2017. For additional information
about this resolution, see “Note 20 — Disputes, Litigation and Legal Contingencies.”

' HBW WDQVDRNRQYDQG (| TXIWY, WXDQFHY

In February of 2018, we repaid in full our 6.00% senior notes due March 2018. On February 28, 2018, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal
amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2025.

The February 2018 debt offering partially funded a concurrent tender offer to purchase for cash any and all of our 9.625% senior notes due 2019. We
settled the tender offer in cash for the amount of $475 million, retiring an aggregate face value of $425 million and accrued interest of $20 million. In April
2018, we repaid the remaining principal outstanding on an early redemption of the bond. We recognized a cumulative loss of $34 million on these
transactions in “Bond Tender and Call Premium” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In June of 2017, we repaid our 6.35% senior notes on the maturity date. On June 26, 2017, we issued an additional $250 million aggregate principal
amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2024. These notes were issued as additional securities under an indenture pursuant to which we previously issued
$540 million aggregate principal amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2024.

During 2016, through a series of debt offerings we received net proceeds of $3.7 billion from the issuance of various unsecured debt instruments and a
secured term loan. We used certain proceeds from our debt offerings to fund tender offers to buy back our senior notes with a principal balance of $1.9 billion
and used the remaining proceeds to repay our revolving credit facility and for general corporate purposes. We recognized a cumulative loss of $78 million on
the tender offers buyback transaction.

During 2016, we received total cash proceeds of $1.1 billion from the issuance of 200 million ordinary shares of the Company. In addition, in November
2016 we issued one warrant that permits the holder to purchase 84.5 million ordinary shares on or prior to May 21, 2019 at an exercise price of $6.43 per

ordinary share.

See “Note 11 — Short-term Borrowings and Other Debt Obligations” and “Note 12 — Long-term Debt” for additional details of our financing activities.
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The following table contains selected financial data comparing our consolidated and segment results from operations for 2018, 2017 and 2016. See “Note
22 — Segment Information” for additional information regarding variances in operating income.

SHAHMH&KDQIH
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Revenues:
Western Hemisphere $ 3,063 $ 2,937 2,942 4% —%
Eastern Hemisphere 2,681 2,762 2,807 3)% 2)%
Total Revenues $ 5744  $ 5,699 5,749 1% (1%
Operating Income (Loss):
Western Hemisphere $ 208 $ (113) (407) 284 % 72 %
Eastern Hemisphere 119 (139) (157) 186 % 11 %
Total Segment Operating Income (Loss) $ 327 $ (252) (564) 230 % 55 %
Corporate General and Administrative $ (130) $ (130) (138) —% 6 %
Goodwill Impairment (1,917) — — —% —%
Long-Lived Asset Impairments, Write-Downs and Other (238) (1,711) (1,043) 86 % (64)%
Restructuring and Transformation Charges (126) (183) (280) 31 % 35 %
Litigation Charges, Net — 10 (220) (100)% 105 %
Gain from Disposition of U.S. Pressure Pumping Assets — 96 — (100)% —%
Total Operating Loss $ (2,084) $ (2,170) (2,245) 4% 3%
Interest Expense, Net $ 614) $ (579) (499) (6)% (16)%
Warrant Fair Value Adjustment 70 86 16 (19% 438 %
Bond Tender and Call Premium (34) — (78) —% 100 %
Currency Devaluation Charges (49) — (41) —% 100 %
Other Income (Expense), Net (46) 7 (30) (757)% 123 %
Loss before Income Taxes (2,757) (2,656) (2,877) 4)% 8 %
Income Tax Provision (34) (137) (496) 75 % 72 %
Net Loss (2,791) (2,793) (3,373) —% 17 %
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 20 20 19 —% (5)%
Net Loss Attributable to Weatherford $ (2,811) $  (2,813) (3,392) —% 17 %
Net Loss per Diluted Share (2.82) (2.84) (3.82) 1% 26 %
Weighted Average Diluted Shares Outstanding 997 990 887 )% (12)%
Depreciation and Amortization 556 801 956 31 % 16 %
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The following table contains the percentage distribution of our consolidated revenues by product lines for 2018, 2017 and 2016:

<HU( QGG HHPEHU

Production 27% 26% 29%
Completions 21 22 20
Drilling and Evaluation 25 24 22
Well Construction 27 28 29
Total 100% 100% 100%
&RARIEDWMG DQG 6 HIP HQ HHIXHY
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Consolidated revenues increased $45 million, or 1%, in 2018 compared to 2017.

*  Western Hemisphere revenues improved $126 million, or 4%, in 2018 compared to 2017 on higher activity levels in all product lines in the U.S. and
an improved product mix for the Production and Completions product lines in the U.S. Growth in Latin America was driven by higher demand for
Integrated Services and Projects and improved activity levels in Latin America. These improvements were partially offset by lower activity in
Canada due to a general slowdown and increasing crude oil differentials.

»  Eastern Hemisphere revenues declined $81 million, or 3%, in 2018 compared to 2017, respectively. The modest decline in revenues was primarily
due to fewer offshore projects in West Africa, the North Sea and Asia, partially offset with increased activity and higher product sales in the Gulf
Cooperation Countries.

W 5 HYHXH/

Consolidated revenues decreased $50 million, or 1%, in 2017 compared to 2016. Excluding revenues from U.S. pressure pumping operations and our
Zubair project in Iraq, consolidated revenues increased 5% in 2017 compared to 2016.

*  Western Hemisphere revenues declined slightly by $5 million in 2017 compared to 2016, primarily due to lower activity concentrated in Argentina,
Venezuela and Brazil in Drilling and Evaluation and Completions, the impact of the shutdown of our U.S. pressure pumping operations in the fourth
quarter of 2016, as well as the negative impact from the change in accounting for revenue in Venezuela. Western Hemisphere revenues, excluding
U.S. pressure pumping operations, improved $245 million, or 9%, in 2017 compared to 2016. These improvements were driven by higher activity
and sales in the U.S. and Canada related to the 46% increase in North American rig count since December 31, 2016 as well as improvements across
all our product lines in Colombia benefiting from an increase in the number of operating rigs.

»  Eastern Hemisphere revenues declined $45 million, or 2%, primarily due to lower activity related to the Zubair project, a non-renewal of a contract
in the United Arab Emirates and overall lower demand for services and continued pricing pressures for Well Construction. Throughout the Asia
markets we had a broad decline in demand across our product lines. Eastern Hemisphere revenues, excluding early production facility operations,
improved $30 million, or 1%, in 2017 compared to 2016. This improvement was driven by improved customer activity in Russia for Drilling
Services, Pressure Pumping and Well Construction operations, a full year for our Drilling Rigs contract in Algeria as well as overall improvements in
Kuwait.
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Consolidated operating results improved $86 million, or 4%, in 2018 compared to 2017 and segment operating income of $327 million improved $579
million, or 230%, in 2018 compared to 2017. Our consolidated operating loss improvement was primarily due to the following:

+ Higher activity and productivity related to the increase in Western Hemisphere rig count;

» Higher utilization in our product lines, improved sales mix and the continued realization of savings from cost reduction measures related to
headcount reductions and facility closures, and lower depreciation and amortization due to decreased capital spending;

* Through our transformation program we have improved our segment operating income following the positive structural changes, improvements
in our operating efficiency, ongoing lowering of our non-productive time, improvements in our collaboration with our customers by continuing
our steady progress on our transformation initiatives: and

» Lower long-lived asset impairments and asset write-downs compared to 2017.

Western Hemisphere 2018 segment operating income of $208 million improved $321 million, or 284% compared to 2017. The improvement was driven
by Production, Completions and Well Construction activity increases in the U.S. with a profitable product mix, and a decline in operating costs as a result of
our transformation efforts. Operating income also improved due to growth in Latin America driven by higher demand for Integrated Services and Projects and
improved activity levels in Latin America across all product lines. These improvements were partially offset by lower operating results in Canada as a result
of the difficult macro environment and adverse foreign exchange rate impacts in Latin America.

Eastern Hemisphere 2018 segment operating income of $119 million improved $258 million, or 186%, compared to 2017. The improvement is primarily
a result of improved product mix, a reduced cost structure and improved service quality resulting in greater operational efficiency.

W 2 SHDMY 5 HXOV

Consolidated operating results improved $75 million, or 3%, in 2017 compared to 2016 and segment operating loss improved $312 million, or 55%, in
2017 compared to 2016. Our consolidated operating loss improvement was primarily due to the following:

»  Higher activity and productivity related to the increase in Western Hemisphere rig count;

+ Higher utilization in our product lines, improved sales mix and the continued realization of savings from cost reduction measures related to
headcount reductions and facility closures, and lower depreciation and amortization due to decreased capital spending.

» Long-lived asset impairments, write-downs and charges increased in 2017, offset by reduced litigation and restructuring charges;

*  Reduced expenses from the shutdown of our U.S. pressure pumping operations; and

* A gain on sale of $96 million the U.S. pressure pumping assets.

The Western Hemisphere segment operating loss improved $294 million, or 72%, in 2017 compared to 2016. The improvement was due to increased
activity levels in North America for Artificial Lift, Well Construction, Completions and Drilling Services, cost savings from facility closures and cost
reductions as a result of the shutdown of our U.S. pressure pumping operations at the end of 2016. Offsets to the improvement were the deterioration of
results in Venezuela as a result of the change in revenue accounting, the difficult geopolitical situation and lower revenue in Argentina and Brazil, and the
suffering from pricing pressures and reduced demand for our products and services in most product lines.

The Eastern Hemisphere segment operating loss improved $18 million, or 11%, in 2017 compared to 2016. The improvement was primarily due to higher
activity and increased utilization rates in Russia, North Africa, parts of the Middle East, Continental Europe and the North Sea combined with lower costs
related to the Zubair project in Iraq. These improvements were partially offset by a non-renewal of a contract in the United Arab Emirates, continued pricing
pressure across most of our businesses as well as a decline in activity in offshore markets in Asia and Africa.
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Net interest expense was $614 million in 2018 compared to $579 million in 2017. This increased interest expense of $35 million, or 6%, was primarily as
result of higher average borrowings, higher average interest rates in 2018 and lower interest income.

Net interest expense was $579 million in 2017 compared to $499 million in 2016. This increased interest expense of $80 million, or 16%, was primarily
due to a full year of interest expense on higher interest rates from the senior notes and exchangeable notes issued in 2016.

: DULDQVY DLU9DOXHS GUWA HOW

We recorded a warrant fair value income of $70 million and $86 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, related to the fair value adjustment to our
warrant liability. The change in fair value of the warrant during 2018 was primarily driven by eliminating the warrant share value associated with any future
equity issuance and a decrease in Weatherford’s stock price. The change in fair value of the warrant during 2017 was principally due to a decrease in
Weatherford’s stock price.

2\WH),CFRPH ([SHOWH 1HWV

We incurred other expense of $46 million in 2018, other income of $7 million in 2017 and other expense of $30 million in 2016. In 2018, other expense
was primarily driven by foreign currency exchange losses, letter of credit fees, other financing fees and non-service periodic pension and other post-
retirement benefit expenses. In 2017, other income was primarily due to gains associated from our supplemental executive retirement plan and non-service
periodic pension and other post-retirement benefit expenses partially offset by foreign currency exchange losses, letter of credit and other financing fees. In
2016, other expense was primarily driven by foreign currency exchange losses. Foreign exchange losses are typically due to the strengthening U.S. dollar
compared to our foreign denominated operations.

&XUHRA ' HDXDWRQ &KDUH/

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we recognized currency devaluation charges of $49 million primarily related to the devaluation of the Angolan
kwanza due to a change in Angolan central bank policy in 2018. For the year ended December 31, 2017, we had no significant currency devaluation charges.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, we recognized currency devaluation charges of $41 million to include charges related to the Angolan kwanza of $31
million and the Egyptian pound of $10 million. Currency devaluation charges are included in current earnings in “Currency Devaluation Charges” on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. For additional information, see “Cash Requirements” under the “Liquidity and Capital Resources”
section.

,QFRPH7O W/

We provide for income taxes based on the laws and rates in effect in the countries in which operations are conducted, or in which we or our subsidiaries
are considered resident for income tax purposes. We are exempt from Swiss cantonal and communal tax on income derived outside Switzerland and are also
granted participation relief from Swiss federal tax for qualifying dividend income and capital gains related to the sale of qualifying investments in
subsidiaries. We expect that the participation relief will result in a full exemption of participation income from Swiss federal income tax.

The relationship between our pre-tax income or loss from continuing operations and our income tax benefit or provision varies from period to period as a
result of various factors, which include changes in total pre-tax income or loss, the jurisdictions in which our income is earned, the tax laws in those
jurisdictions, the impacts of tax planning activities and the resolution of tax audits. Our income derived in Switzerland is taxed at a rate of 7.83%; however,
our effective rate is substantially above the Swiss statutory tax rate as the majority of our operations are taxed in jurisdictions with much higher tax rates.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we incurred a tax expense of $34 million on a loss before income taxes of $2.8 billion.
Results for the year ended December 31, 2018 include losses with no significant tax benefit. The tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 also

includes withholding taxes and deemed profit taxes that do not directly correlate to ordinary income or loss. The primary driver of the tax expense was due to
profits in certain jurisdictions, deemed profit countries and withholding taxes on intercompany and third-party transactions.
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Our results for 2018 also include charges with $70 million tax benefit principally related to the $1.9 billion goodwill impairment. The other asset write-
downs and other charges, including $238 million in long-lived asset impairments, $126 million in restructuring charges and the warrant fair value adjustment
of $70 million resulted in no significant tax benefit.

Weatherford records deferred tax assets for net operating losses and temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities that are
expected to produce tax deductions in future periods. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those deferred tax assets would be deductible. The Company assesses the realizability of its deferred tax assets each
period by considering whether it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company considers all
available evidence (both positive and negative) when determining whether a valuation allowance is required. The Company evaluated possible sources of
taxable income that may be available to realize the benefit of deferred tax assets, including projected future taxable income, the reversal of existing temporary
differences, taxable income in carryback years and available tax planning strategies in making this assessment. The realizability of the deferred tax assets is
dependent upon judgments and assumptions inherent in the determination of future taxable income, including factors such as future operation conditions
(particularly as related to prevailing oil prices and market demand for our products and services).

The Company will continue to evaluate whether valuation allowances are needed in future reporting periods. Valuation allowances will remain until the
Company can determine that net deferred tax assets are more likely than not to be realized. In the event that the Company were to determine that it would be
able to realize the deferred income tax assets in the future as a result of significant improvement in earnings as a result of market conditions, the Company
would adjust the valuation allowance, reducing the provision for income taxes in the period of such adjustment.

In 2018, the income tax provision was $34 million compared to a tax provision of $137 million in 2017 and $496 million in 2016, respectively, which
resulted in an effective tax rate of (1)%, (5)% and (17)%, respectively. Our 2018 effective tax rate was driven by tax expense due to profits in certain
jurisdictions, deemed profit countries and withholding taxes on intercompany and third party transactions. Results for the year ended December 31, 2018 also
include a tax benefit of $70 million, primarily driven by the release of a deferred tax liability related to the $1.9 billion goodwill impairment.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, we had a tax expense of $137 million on a loss before income taxes of $2.7 billion. The primary driver of the tax
expense was due to profits in certain jurisdictions, deemed profit countries and withholding taxes on intercompany and third party transactions. In addition,
the Company concluded that it needed to record a valuation allowance of $73 million in the fourth quarter of 2017 against certain previously benefited
deferred tax assets since it cannot support that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. The additional valuation allowance was
partially offset by a one-time $52 million benefit as a result of the recent U.S tax reform. Our results for 2017 also include charges with no significant tax
benefit principally related to asset write-downs and other charges including $928 million in long-lived asset impairments, $540 million inventory charges
including excess and obsolete, $230 million in the write-down of Venezuelan receivables and $66 million of other write-downs charges and credits, $183
million in restructuring charges and the warrant fair value adjustment of $86 million.

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. enacted into law a comprehensive tax reform bill (the “Tax Cuts and Jobs Act,” or “TCJA”). The TCJA significantly
revises the U.S. corporate income tax by, among other things, lowering the statutory corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%, eliminating certain deductions,
imposing a mandatory one-time tax on accumulated earnings of foreign subsidiaries as of 2017 held in cash and illiquid assets (with the latter taxed at a lower
rate), and a shift of the U.S. taxation of multinational corporations from a tax on worldwide income to a partial territorial system (along with certain rules
designed to prevent erosion of the U.S. income tax base, such as the base erosion and anti-abuse tax). The permanent reduction in the U.S. statutory corporate
tax rate to 21% from 35% decreased the amount of the U.S. deferred tax assets and liabilities by $249 million with a decrease to the valuation allowance of
$301 million for a net tax benefit of $52 million recorded for the year ended December 31, 2017. The TCJA did not have other impacts on the Company’s
effective tax rate because of the valuation allowance against the U.S. deferred tax assets. Any potential impact would be offset by un-benefitted U.S. net
operating loss carryforwards. As we did not have all the necessary information to analyze all effects of this tax reform as of December 31, 2017, this was a
provisional amount which we believed represented a reasonable estimate of the accounting implications of TCJA. We finalized our accounting for this matter
during 2018 and concluded that no adjustment to the provisional amount recorded during 2017 was identified in the twelve months of 2018. We no longer
have any provisionally recorded items related to the enactment of the TCJA as of December 31, 2018. The various impacts of the TCJA may differ from the
estimated impacts recognized due to regulatory guidance that may be issued in the future, tax law technical corrections, refined computations, and possible
changes in the Company’s interpretations, assumptions, and actions as a result of the tax legislation.

Our effective tax rate for these periods was also negatively impacted by the taxing regimes in certain countries and our operating structure. Several of the
countries in which we operate, primarily in our Eastern Hemisphere, tax us based on "deemed",

32



Table of Contents

rather than actual, profits. We are not currently profitable in certain of those countries, which results in us accruing and paying taxes based on a "deemed
profit" instead of recognizing no tax expense or potentially recognizing a tax benefit. Our operating structure results in us paying withholding taxes on
intercompany and third party transactions for items such as rentals, management fees, royalties, and interest as well as on applicable third-party transactions.
Such net withholding taxes were $40 million in 2018, $43 million in 2017 and $88 million in 2016 prior to possibly receiving a tax benefit in the jurisdiction
of the payee. We also incur pre-tax losses in certain jurisdictions that do not have a corporate income tax and thus we are not able to recognize an income tax
benefit on those losses.

We are continuously under tax examination in various jurisdictions. We cannot predict the timing or outcome regarding resolution of these tax
examinations or if they will have a material impact on our financial statements. We anticipate that it is reasonably possible that the amount of uncertain tax
positions may decrease by up to $15 million in the next twelve months due to expiration of statutes of limitations, settlements and/or conclusions of tax
examinations.

5 RHMWXRXUQ) &KDLIH/

Due to the highly competitive nature of our business and the continuing losses we incurred over the last few years, we continue to reduce our overall cost
structure and workforce to better align our business with current activity levels. The ongoing transformation plan, which began in 2018 and is expected to
continue through 2019 (the “Transformation Plan”), included a workforce reduction, organization restructure, facility consolidations and other cost reduction
measures and efficiency initiatives across the company globally.

The cost reduction plan which began in 2016 and continued throughout 2017 (the “2016-17 Plan”), included a workforce reduction and other cost
reduction measures initiated across our geographic regions due to the ongoing levels of exploration and production spending. This plan was initiated to reduce
our overall cost structure and workforce to better align with current activity levels of exploration and production. Prior plans, including the 2016 cost
reduction plan (the “2016 Plan”) also included a workforce reduction and other cost reduction measures initiated across our geographic regions. Other
restructuring charges in each plan include contract termination costs, relocation and other associated costs.

In connection with the Transformation Plan, we recognized restructuring and transformation charges of $126 million in 2018, which include severance
charges of $61 million and other restructuring charges of $59 million and restructuring related asset charges of $6 million.

In connection with the 2016-17 Plan, we recognized restructuring charges of $183 million in 2017, which include severance charges of $109 million,
other restructuring charges of $62 million and restructuring related asset charges of $12 million.

In connection with the 2016 Plan, we recognized restructuring charges of $280 million in 2016, which include severance charges of $196 million, other
restructuring charges of $44 million and restructuring related asset charges of $40 million.

Please see “Note 5 — Restructuring Charges” to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details of our charges by segment.
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At December 31, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents of $602 million compared to $613 million at December 31, 2017 and $1.0 billion at
December 31, 2016. The following table summarizes cash provided by (used in) each type of business activity, for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017

and 2016:

<HU( QGG HHPEHJ

' RDWIQP LR/
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ 42) $ (388 $ (304)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 122 (62) (137)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 168 20 1,061
2 SHDIY $ P

Cash used in operating activities was $242 million in 2018 compared to $388 million in 2017. Cash used in operating activities in 2018 was driven by
working capital needs, cash payments for debt interest and cash severance and restructuring costs.

Cash used in operating activities was $388 million in 2017 compared to $304 million in 2016. The operating cash outflow in 2017 and 2016 was
primarily attributable to working capital outflows as well as increases in our cash payments for interest, taxes and litigation settlements.

, QXY $ AR/

Our investing activities provided cash of $122 million during 2018 and used cash of $62 million and $137 million during 2017 and 2016, respectively. In
2018, the primary drivers of investing activities were capital expenditures of $217 million for property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale, which
was partially offset by net proceeds from dispositions of assets and businesses and equity investments of $363 million.

On December 29, 2017, we completed the sale of our U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down perforating assets for $430 million in cash. As part of this
transaction, we sold our U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down perforating related facilities and supplier and customer contracts. In addition, during 2017,
we received cash proceeds of $51 million from the disposition of other assets.

The primary drivers of cash used in investing activities are capital expenditures for PP&E and the purchase of assets held for sale. Capital expenditures
were $186 million, $225 million and $204 million for 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. In addition, during 2018 we purchased assets totaling $31 million
related to our land drilling rigs business, which were impaired at the time of purchase as our land drilling rigs were classified as held for sale. Additionally, in
2017 we purchased assets held for sale of $244 million related to certain leased equipment utilized in our North America pressure pumping operations. The
amount we spend for capital expenditures varies each year based on the type of contracts that we enter, our asset availability and our expectations with respect
to industry activity levels in the following year. The decline in capital expenditures in 2018 compared to 2017 is due to the continued price fluctuation of
crude oil, continued weakness in demand and lower exploration and production spending and improved asset efficiency. The increased capital expenditures in
2017 compared to 2016 was due to higher anticipated activity in the oil and gas industry related to greater volumes of work and increased rig count.

Other investing sources of cash for 2018 included cash proceeds of $106 million from several asset dispositions and cash proceeds of $257 million from
the sale of our land drilling rigs businesses in Kuwait and Saudi Arabia, as well as the continuous sucker rod service business in Canada and the sale of an
equity investment. The cash sources were partially offset by cash paid of $28 million to acquire intellectual property and other intangibles.

Investing activities in 2017 also included the purchase of held-to-maturity Angolan government bonds of $50 million, payments of $15 million to acquire
intellectual property and other intangibles, and $7 million of business acquisition payments primarily related to our last installment payment for a previously

completed acquisition.

Investing activities in 2016 also included insurance proceeds of $39 million from the casualty loss of a rig in Kuwait, proceeds of $49 million from the
disposition of assets and $30 million on the promissory note from the prior sale of our equity investment
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in Borets International Limited. These proceeds were partially offset by payments of $36 million for working capital adjustment payments related to the sale
of our businesses and $15 million in payments related to acquisition of businesses and intangibles. See “Note 4 — Business Combinations and Divestitures”
for additional information.

) LODQAQT $ PV
Our financing activities provided cash of $168 million, $20 million and $1.1 billion during 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In February of 2018, we issued $600 million of our 9.875% senior notes due 2025 for net proceeds of $586 million. We used part of the proceeds from
our debt offering to repay in full our 6.00% senior notes due March 2018 and to fund a concurrent tender offer to purchase all of our 9.625% senior notes due
2019.

Net long- and short-term debt repayments, including the tender offer and borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, in 2018 totaled $378 million.
We settled the tender offer for $475 million, retiring an aggregate face value of $425 million and accrued interest of $20 million. In April 2018, we repaid the
remaining principal outstanding on an early redemption of the bond. We recognized a cumulative loss of $34 million on these transactions in “Bond Tender
and Call Premium” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. The debt repayments and bond tender premium payments were partially
offset by net borrowings primarily under our revolving credit facilities of $158 million. Other financing activities in 2018 primarily included the costs
incurred for the amended Credit Agreements and payments of non-controlling interest dividends.

During 2017, we received net proceeds of approximately $250 million from the June 2017 issuance of our 9.875% senior notes due in 2024. Long-term
debt repayments in 2017 were $69 million. Net short-term debt repayments of $128 million in 2017 included the repayment of our 6.35% senior notes with a
principal balance of $88 million. Other financing activities in 2017 related primarily to payments of non-controlling interest dividends.

During 2016, we received total cash proceeds of $1.1 billion from the issuance of 200 million ordinary shares of the Company. Our financing activities
also consisted of the borrowing and repayment of short-term and long-term debt. During 2016, through a series of offerings and transactions, we received
proceeds, net of underwriting fees, of $3.7 billion from the issuance of our $1.265 billion 5.875% exchangeable senior notes, $750 million 7.75% senior
notes, $750 million 8.25% senior notes, $540 million 9.875% senior notes and $500 million secured term loan.

We used the proceeds of certain debt offerings in 2016 to fund tender offers to buy back an aggregate principal balance of $1.9 billion of our 6.35%
senior notes, 6.00% senior notes, 9.625% senior notes and 5.125% senior notes and used the remaining proceeds to repay our revolving credit facility, term
loan and for general corporate purposes. We recognized a cumulative loss of $78 million on the tender offers buyback transaction. Financing activities during
2016 also included the payment of $87 million related to the purchase of previously leased rig equipment. See “Note 11 — Short-term Borrowings and Other
Debt Obligations
” and “Note 12 — Long-term Debt” for additional details of our financing activities.

6RXUAHVR / LTXIAW

Our sources of available liquidity include cash and cash equivalent balances, cash generated by our operations, accounts receivable factoring,
dispositions, and availability under committed lines of credit. We also historically have accessed banks for short-term loans from uncommitted borrowing
arrangements and have accessed the capital markets with debt and equity offerings. From time to time we may and have entered into transactions to dispose
of businesses or capital assets that no longer fit our long-term strategy.

5 HROLQ) &UHAVS JUHP HOWVDQG7HP / RDQ$ JUHP HOW

On August 16, 2018, we amended and restated our existing Revolving Credit Agreement (the “A&R Credit Agreement”), entered into a Secured Second
Lien 364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement (the “364-Day Credit Agreement”) and amended certain terms of our existing Term Loan Agreement (“Term
Loan Agreement”). At December 31, 2018, the A&R Credit Agreement and the 364-Day Credit Agreement have total commitments of $846 million,
comprised respectively of $529 million and a$317 million. At December 31, 2018, we have principal borrowings of $310 million under the Term Loan
Agreement. We collectively refer to our A&R Credit Agreement, 364-Day Credit Agreement and Term Loan Agreement as the “Credit Agreements.” Our
Credit Agreements contain customary events of default, including our failure to comply with the financial covenants.
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Under the terms of the A&R Credit Agreement, commitments of $226 million from non-extending lenders (“non-extending lenders”) will mature on July
12, 2019 and commitments of $303 million from extending lenders (“extending lenders”) will mature on July 13, 2020. The 364-Day Credit Agreement
matures on August 15, 2019 and the Term Loan matures in July of 2020. There is no guarantee that we will be able to refinance all or a portion of the non-
extending portion of our A&R Credit Agreement or the 364-Day Credit Agreement when they mature. Due to certain factors, including our credit rating
downgrade described below, any refinancing of the non-extending portion of our A&R Credit Agreement or the 364-Day Credit Agreement may be at higher
interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants than those described below, which could further restrict our business and operations.

The A&R Credit Agreement and Term Loan Agreement were amended to permit the debt and the liens to be incurred under the 364-Day Credit
Agreement and to make other modifications related to factoring of receivables, senior borrowings, permitted liens, and covenants.

At December 31, 2018, we had total borrowing availability of $325 million available under our Credit Agreements. The following table summarizes our
Credit Agreements borrowing capacity utilization and availability:

" HHP EHJ
" RDW/IQP LORY
Facilities $ 1,156
Less Uses of Facilities:
364-Day Credit Agreement 317
A&R Credit Agreement —
Letters of Credit 204
Term Loan Principal Borrowing 310
Borrowing Availability $ 325

If we continue to experience operating losses and we are not able to satisfy our cash requirements described below under “Cash Requirements”, then our
liquidity needs may exceed the availability under our Credit Agreements and other facilities that we may enter into in the future.

Our Credit Agreements require that we maintain the following financial covenants, with terms as defined in the Credit Agreements:
1) Leverage ratio of no greater than 2.5 to 1, which measures our indebtedness guaranteed by subsidiaries under the Credit Agreements and other
guaranteed facilities to the trailing four quarters consolidated adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and other
specified charges (“Adjusted EBITDA”);

2) Leverage and letters of credit ratio of no greater than 3.5 to 1, which is calculated as our indebtedness guaranteed by subsidiaries under the
Credit Agreements and other guaranteed facilities and all letters of credit to the trailing four quarters Adjusted EBITDA; and

3) Asset coverage ratio of at least 4.0 to 1, which is calculated as our asset value to indebtedness guaranteed by subsidiaries under the Credit
Agreements and other guaranteed facilities.

4) Current asset coverage ratio of at least 2.1 to 1, which is calculated as our current asset value to indebtedness under the Term Loan Agreement
and commitments under the 364-Day Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2018, we were in compliance with these financial covenants as defined in the Credit Agreements and in the covenants under our
indentures. We expect to remain in compliance with all our covenants in 2019. Should circumstances arise where we are not in compliance with our covenants
during any quarterly reporting period, we may have to seek a waiver from our lenders or take measures to reduce indebtedness under the Credit Agreements
to a level that would comply with the covenants. These measures include, among other things, issuing equity, but the proceeds we may be able to generate are
limited by the current trading price for our stock and the limited number of shares we have authorized to issue under our governing documents. Furthermore,
if we seek a waiver, we may not be able to obtain a waiver from the required lenders.
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We have short-term borrowings with various domestic and international institutions pursuant to uncommitted credit facilities. At December 31, 2018, we
had $9 million in short-term borrowings under these arrangements. At December 31, 2018, the current portion of long-term debt was primarily related to the
$50 million current portion of our Term Loan Agreement.

5 DNIVEHMAY &UHAVS DMV

On December 24, 2018, S&P Global Ratings downgraded our senior unsecured notes to CCC- from CCC+, with a negative outlook. Weatherford’s issuer
credit rating was lowered to CCC from B—. On December 20, 2018, Moody’s Investors Service downgraded our credit rating on our senior unsecured notes to
Caa3 from Caal and our speculative grade liquidity rating to SGL-4 from SGL-3, both with a negative outlook. While we expect to continue to have access to
credit markets, our non-investment grade status may limit our ability to refinance our existing debt, could cause us to refinance or issue debt with less
favorable and more restrictive terms and conditions, and could increase certain fees and interest of our borrowings. Suppliers and financial institutions may
lower or eliminate the level of credit provided through payment or intraday funding when dealing with us thereby increasing the need for higher levels of cash
on hand, which could decrease our ability to repay debt balances, negatively affect our cash flow and impact our access to the inventory and services needed
to operate our business.

&DWK 5 HIXIWHP HOV

During 2019, we anticipate our cash requirements will include payments for capital expenditures, repayment of debt, interest payments on our
outstanding debt, payments for short-term working capital needs and transformation costs, including severance and professional consulting payments. Our
cash requirements may also include opportunistic debt repurchases, business acquisitions, awards under our employee incentive programs if we do not have a
sufficient amount of authorized capital to grant equity awards, and other amounts to settle litigation related matters described in “Item 1A. — Risk Factors”
and “Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 20 — Disputes, Litigation and Legal
Contingencies.” While we anticipate funding these requirements from cash and cash equivalent balances, cash generated by our operations, availability under
our credit facilities, accounts receivable factoring, proceeds from disposals of businesses or capital assets that no longer fit our long-term strategy, we cannot
assure that cash flows and other internal and external sources of liquidity will at all times be sufficient to satisfy our cash requirements. We historically have
accessed banks for short-term loans from uncommitted borrowing arrangements and have accessed the capital markets with debt and equity offerings.

Capital expenditures for 2019 are projected to be approximately $200 million to $250 million due to anticipated activity in the oil and gas business
related to stabilizing active rig counts. The amounts we ultimately spend will depend on a number of factors including the type of contracts we enter into,
asset availability and actual industry activity levels in 2019. Expenditures are expected to be used primarily to support the ongoing activities of our core
business. If we are unable to generate positive cash flows or access other sources of liquidity described in the previous paragraph, we may need to reduce or
eliminate our anticipated capital expenditures in 2019.

Cash and cash equivalents of $600 million at December 31, 2018, are held by subsidiaries outside of Switzerland, the Company’s taxing jurisdiction.
Based on the nature of our structure, we are generally able to redeploy cash with no incremental tax. However, in 2016 we recorded tax expense of $137
million for a non-cash tax expense related to an internal restructuring of subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2018, $28 million of our cash and cash equivalents balance was denominated in Angolan kwanza. The National Bank of Angola
supervises all kwanza exchange operations and has limited U.S. dollar conversions. In January 2018, the Angolan National Bank announced a new currency
exchange policy and the Angolan kwanza subsequently devalued. As of December 31, 2018, the Angolan kwanza has devalued approximately 85% since
December 31, 2017. As a result, we recognized currency devaluation charges of $49 million in 2018, primarily for the Angolan kwanza. Sustained Angolan
exchange limitations may continue and has limited our ability to repatriate earnings and exposes us to additional exchange rate risk.
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From time to time, we participate in factoring arrangements to sell accounts receivable to third-party financial institutions. In 2018, we sold accounts
receivable of $382 million, recognized a loss of $2 million and received cash proceeds totaling $373 million on these sales. In 2017, we sold accounts
receivables of $227 million, recognized a loss of $1 million and received cash proceeds totaling $223 million on these sales. In 2016, we sold accounts
receivables of $156 million, recognized a loss of $0.7 million and received cash proceeds totaling $154 million on these sales. Our factoring transactions were
recognized as sales, and the proceeds are included as operating cash flows in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

In the first quarter of 2017, we converted trade receivables of $65 million into a note from a customer with a face value of $65 million. The note had a
three-year term at a 4.625% stated interest rate. We reported the note as a trading security within “Other Current Assets” at fair value on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at its fair value of $58 million on March 31, 2017. During the second quarter of 2017, we sold the note for $59 million.

During the second quarter of 2016, we accepted a note with a face value of $120 million from PDVSA in exchange for $120 million in net trade
receivables. The note had a three-year term at a 6.5% stated interest rate. We carried the note at the lower of cost or fair value and recognized a loss in the
second quarter of 2016 of $84 million to adjust the note to fair value. In the fourth quarter of 2016, we sold the economic rights in the note receivable for $44
million and recognized a gain of $8 million.

&ROADANDC? EQIDIRQY

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and contingent commitments by period. The obligations we pay in future periods may vary due to
certain assumptions including the duration of our obligations and anticipated actions by third parties.

3D PHOV' XHE\ 3HIRG

'"ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV DG DG 7 KHHDIWU 7REO
Short-term Debt $ 326 $ — 3 — $ — 5 326
Long-term Debt @) 57 2,654 1,410 3,684 7,805
Interest on Long-term Debt 553 997 666 2,543 4,759
Noncancellable Operating Leases 128 155 72 176 531
Purchase Obligations 320 40 — — 360

$ 1,384 § 3,846 $ 2,148 $ 6,403 $ 13,781

(a) Amounts represent the expected cash payments of principal associated with our long-term debt. These amounts do not include the unamortized discounts or deferred
gains on terminated interest rate swap agreements.

Due to the uncertainty with respect to the timing of future cash flows associated with our uncertain tax positions, we are unable to make reasonably
reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement, if any, to the respective taxing authorities. Therefore, $255 million in uncertain tax positions, including
interest and penalties, have been excluded from the contractual obligations table above.

We have defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefit plans covering certain of our U.S. and international employees. During 2018, we made

contributions and paid direct benefits of approximately $5 million in connection with those plans and we anticipate funding approximately $5 million during
2019. Our projected benefit obligations for our defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefit plans were $173 million as of December 31, 2018.
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During the fourth quarter of 2016, in conjunction with the issuance of 84.5 million ordinary shares, we issued a warrant that gives the holder the option to
acquire an additional 84.5 million ordinary shares. The exercise price on the warrant is $6.43 per share and is exercisable any time prior to May 21, 2019. The
warrant is classified as a liability and carried at fair value with changes in its fair value reported through earnings. The fair value of the warrant was nil and
$70 million on December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, generating an unrealized gain of $70 million in 2018 and $86 million in 2017. The change in fair
value of the warrant during 2018 was primarily driven by eliminating the warrant share value associated with any future equity issuance and a decrease in
Weatherford’s stock price. The change in fair value of the warrant during 2017 was principally due to a decrease in Weatherford’s stock price. See “Note 14 —
Derivative Instruments” for information related to the warrant.

) DLU9DOH+ HEJHY/

We may use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to changes in the fair values of fixed-rate debt. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we
had net unamortized premiums on fixed-rate debt of nil and $4 million, respectively, associated with fair value hedge terminations. These premiums were
being amortized over the remaining term of the originally hedged debt as a reduction to interest expense included in “Interest Expense, Net” on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. See “Note 14 — Derivative Instruments” to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
details.

&DK) BZ +HIW/

We may use interest rate swaps to mitigate our exposure to variability in forecasted cash flows due to changes in interest rates. In 2008, we entered into
interest rate derivative instruments to hedge projected exposures to interest rates in anticipation of a debt offering. These hedges were terminated at the time
of the issuance of the debt, and the associated loss is being amortized from “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss” to interest expense over the remaining
term of the debt. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had net unamortized losses of $8 million and $9 million, respectively, associated with our cash flow
hedge terminations. As of December 31, 2018, we did not have any cash flow hedges designated.

2\KHJ' HIYDIRYH, QXWKP HQV

We enter into contracts to hedge our exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts aggregating to $435 million and $767 million, respectively. The notional amounts of
our foreign currency forward contracts do not generally represent amounts exchanged by the parties and thus are not a measure of the cash requirements
related to these contracts or of any possible loss exposure. The amounts actually exchanged at maturity are calculated by reference to the notional amounts
and by other terms of the derivative contracts, such as exchange rates. See “Note 14 — Derivative Instruments” for additional information.

Our foreign currency derivatives are not designated as hedges under ASC 815, and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded in each period
in “Other Income (Expense), Net” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. See “Note 14 — Derivative Instruments” for additional
information.

211 YDDGPHEKHVS UDQIHP HOW
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Weatherford International plc (“Weatherford Ireland”), a public limited company organized under the laws of Ireland, a Swiss tax resident, and the
ultimate parent of the Weatherford group, guarantees the obligations of its subsidiaries — Weatherford International Ltd., a Bermuda exempted company
(“Weatherford Bermuda®), and Weatherford International, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Weatherford Delaware”), including the notes and
credit facilities listed below.

The 6.80% senior notes due 2037 of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. At
December 31, 2018, Weatherford Bermuda also guaranteed the 9.875% senior notes due 2025.

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017: (1) A&R
Credit Agreement, (2) Term Loan Agreement, (3) 6.50% senior notes due 2036, (4) 7.00% senior notes due 2038, (5) 9.875% senior notes due 2039, (6)
5.125% senior notes due 2020, (7) 6.75% senior notes due 2040, (8) 4.50%
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senior notes due 2022, (9) 5.95% senior notes due 2042, (10) 5.875% exchangeable senior notes due 2021, (11) 7.75% senior notes due 2021, (12) 8.25%
senior notes due 2023 and (13) 9.875% senior notes due 2024. Weatherford Delaware also guaranteed the 6.00% senior notes due 2018, which were repaid in
full in March 2018 and the 9.625% senior notes due 2019, which were repaid in full through early redemption of the bond in April 2018. At December 31,
2018, Weatherford Delaware also guaranteed the 364-Day Credit Agreement.

Certain of these guarantee arrangements require us to present condensed consolidating financial information. See guarantor financial information
presented in “Note 23 — Consolidating Financial Statements.”

/ HWLYR &UHAWDQG3 HIR P DFHDQG UG YR/

We use letters of credit and performance and bid bonds in the normal course of our business. As of December 31, 2018, we had $495 million of letters of
credit and performance and bid bonds outstanding, consisting of $291 million of letters of credit under various uncommitted facilities and $204 million of
letters of credit under the A&R Credit Agreement. At December 31, 2018, we have cash collateralized $81 million of our letters of credit, which is included
in “Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. In Latin America we utilize surety bonds as part of our customary
business practice. These obligations could be called by the beneficiaries should we breach certain contractual or performance obligations. If the beneficiaries
were to call the letters of credit under our committed facilities, our available liquidity would be reduced by the amount called and it could have an adverse
impact on our business, operations and financial condition.

& UMFDCH AARXQWQ] 3RTAHYDQG (WP DMV

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operation is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements. We prepare these
financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. As such, we are required to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. We
base our estimates on historical experience, available information and various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. On an
on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates; however, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The accounting
policies we believe require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments and are the most critical to our reporting of results of operations
and financial position are as follows:

MW &RP BECDIRQYVDG RRZ L@

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in a business combination. Goodwill is allocated to Weatherford’s reporting units when initially acquired. Reporting units are operating segments or one level
below the operating segment level. As of October 1, 2018, we performed a quantitative assessment under the revised reporting unit structure. Our reporting
units are based on our regions and include North America, Latin America, Europe and Sub-Sahara Africa, Russia/China, Middle East/North Africa, and Asia.

Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment. We perform an impairment test for goodwill annually as of October 1 or more frequently if
indicators of potential impairment exist that would more-likely-than-not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. We have the
option to assess qualitative factors to determine if it is necessary to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. If it is more-likely-than-not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we must perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. We also have the unconditional option to
bypass the qualitative assessment at any time and perform the quantitative step. The quantitative step of the goodwill impairment test involves a comparison
of the fair value of each of our reporting units with their carrying values.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we elected not to perform the optional qualitative assessment and instead proceeded directly to perform the
quantitative step for our annual testing as of October 1; however, impairment indicators during the fourth quarter required us to update our impairment test as
of December 31. The impairment indicators during the quarter included the steep decline in oil prices and expectations for lower exploration and production
capital spending that resulted in a sharp reduction in share prices in the oilfield services sector. In our assessment, the fair value of our reporting units is
determined using a combination of the income approach and the market approach. The income approach estimates fair value by discounting each reporting
unit’s estimated future cash flows. The income approach requires us to make certain estimates and judgments. To arrive at our future cash flows, we use
estimates of economic and market information, including growth rates in revenues and costs, working capital and capital expenditure requirements, and
operating margins and tax rates. Several of the assumptions used in our discounted cash flow analysis are based upon our annual financial forecast. Our
annual planning process takes into consideration many factors including historical results and operating performance, related industry trends, pricing
strategies, customer analysis, operational
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issues, competitor analysis, and marketplace data, among others. Assumptions are also made for periods beyond the financial forecast period. The discount
rate used in the income approach is determined using a weighted average cost of capital and reflects the risks and uncertainties in the cash flow estimates. The
weighted average cost of capital includes a cost of debt and equity. The cost of equity is estimated using the capital asset pricing model, which includes inputs
for a long-term risk-free rate, equity risk premium, country risk premium, and an asset beta appropriate for the assets in the reporting unit. The discount rates
for our reporting units ranged from 10.25% to 12.75% as of our December 31, 2018 impairment test. The market approach estimates fair value as a multiple
of each reporting unit’s actual and forecasted earnings based on market multiples of comparable publicly traded companies over a three-year period. The
market multiples for our reporting units ranged from 5x —7x as of our December 31, 2018 impairment test.

We used an independent valuation specialist for our annual impairment tests to assist us in our valuations under both methods. The final estimate of each
reporting unit’s fair value is determined by using an appropriate weighting of the values from each method, where the income method was weighted heavier
than the market method as we believe that the income method and assumptions therein are more reflective of a market participant’s view of fair value given
current market conditions.

The fair values estimated using the income approach and the market approach cannot be directly compared to our market capitalization due to several
factors, most importantly the premium that would be paid by a market participant to acquire a controlling interest in Weatherford, which is not reflected in the
price of our publicly traded stock.

Except as described below, the fair values of our reporting units that have goodwill were in excess of their carrying value and therefore no impairment
was recorded. These reporting units’ fair value exceeded their respective carrying values by at least 45%.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we recorded a total impairment charge to goodwill of $1.9 billion in our North America, Europe and Sub-Sahara
Africa, and Asia reporting units. The impairment reflects the overall decline in the fair value of the reporting units.

The carrying amounts of goodwill by reporting unit as of December 31, 2018, excluding a $7 million allocation to businesses classified as held for sale,
are as follows:

' RDWIQO AR
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North America $ 217
Latin America 282
Western Hemisphere $ 499
Russia/China $ 34
Middle East/North Africa 44
Asia 143
Eastern Hemisphere $ 221
Total $ 720

Our estimates of fair value are sensitive to the aforementioned inputs to the valuation approaches. If any one of the above inputs changes, it could reduce
the estimated fair value of the affected reporting unit and result in a potentially material impairment charge to goodwill. Some of the inputs, such as forecasts
of revenue and earnings growth, are subject to change given their uncertainty. Other inputs, such as the discount rate used in the income approach and the
valuation multiple used in the market approach, are subject to change as they are outside of our control. Except as described below, a hypothetical 700 basis
point increase in the discount rate used for our Latin America, Russia/China, and Middle East/North Africa reporting units, holding all other assumptions
constant, would not have resulted in the fair value being less than the carrying value. Likewise, a hypothetical twenty percentage point decrease in our growth
rate, holding all other assumptions constant, would not have resulted in a fair value being less than the carrying value for these reporting units. In addition, a
hypothetical decrease in our valuation multiple of 5x, holding all other assumptions constant, would not have resulted in a fair value being less than the
carrying value for these reporting units. For our North America and Asia reporting units:
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* A hypothetical 25 basis point increase in the discount rate used for North America or hypothetical 75 basis point increase in the discount rate used
for Asia, holding all other assumptions constant, could result in a potentially material impairment charge to goodwill for those reporting units.

* A hypothetical one percentage point decrease in the growth rate used for North America or hypothetical five percentage point decrease in the growth
rate used for Asia, holding all other assumptions constant, could result in a potentially material impairment charge to goodwill for those reporting

units.

* A hypothetical 2x decrease in our valuation multiple used for North America or hypothetical 4x decrease in our valuation multiple used for Asia,
holding all other assumptions constant, could result in a potentially material impairment charge to goodwill for those reporting units.

Based on the results of our impairment tests, we did not recognize a goodwill impairment charge in 2017 and 2016.

For further analysis and discussion of goodwill refer to “Item 8. — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements — Note 10 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets” of this Form 10-K.

/I RQ | (HGSWHV
Long-lived assets, which include PP&E and definite-lived intangibles, comprise a significant amount of our assets. We must make estimates about the
expected useful lives of the assets. The value of the long-lived assets is then amortized over its expected useful life. A change in the estimated useful lives of

our long-lived assets would have an impact on our results of operations. We estimate the useful lives of our long-lived asset groups as follows:

Estimated Useful Lives

Buildings and Leasehold improvements 10 — 40 years or lease term
Rental and Service Equipment 2 —15 years
Machinery and Other 2 — 12 years
Intangible Assets 2 — 20 years

In estimating the useful lives of our property, plant and equipment, we rely primarily on our actual experience with the same or similar assets. The useful
lives of our intangible assets are determined by the years over which we expect the assets to generate a benefit based on legal, contractual or regulatory terms.

Long-lived assets to be held and used by us are reviewed to determine whether any events or changes in circumstances indicate that we may not be able
to recover the carrying amount of the asset. Factors that might indicate a long-lived asset may not be recoverable may include, but are not limited to,
significant decreases in the market value of the long-lived asset, a significant change in the long-lived asset’s physical condition, the introduction of
competing technologies, legal challenges, a reduction in the utilization rate of the assets, a change in industry conditions, or a reduction in cash flows driven
by pricing pressure as a result of oversupply associated with the use of the long-lived asset. If these or other factors exist that indicate the carrying amount of
the asset may not be recoverable, we determine whether an impairment has occurred through the use of an undiscounted cash flow analysis. The undiscounted
cash flow analysis consists of estimating the future cash flows that are directly associated with, and are expected to arise from, the use and eventual
disposition of the asset over its remaining useful life. These cash flows are inherently subjective and require estimates based upon historical experience and
future expectations. If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying value of the long-lived asset, the asset is not recoverable and impairment is
recognized to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. The fair value of the asset is measured using market prices, or in
the absence of market prices, is based on an estimate of discounted cash flows. Cash flows are discounted at an interest rate commensurate with our weighted
average cost of capital for a similar asset.

Assets are grouped at the lowest level at which cash flows are identifiable and independent. We generally group operating assets by product line of the
respective region. We have long-lived assets, such as facilities, utilized by multiple operating divisions that do not have identifiable cash flows and
impairment testing for these long-lived assets is based on the consolidated entity.

During 2018, we recognized long-lived asset impairments of $151 million, of which $141 million ($43 million in our Western Hemisphere segment and
$98 million in our Eastern Hemisphere segment) was to write-down our land drilling rigs assets to the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell

and the remaining $10 million ($3 million was in our Western Hemisphere
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and $7 million is in our Eastern Hemisphere segment) of charges were for land drilling rigs assets charges not in held for sale. See “Note 4 — Business
Combinations and Divestitures” for more details. The impairments were due to the sustained downturn in the oil and gas industry that resulted in a
reassessment of our disposal groups for our land drilling rigs. The change in our expectations of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive negative
operating cash flows in certain disposal asset groups represented an indicator that those assets will no longer be recoverable over their remaining useful lives.
See “Note 13 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Assets and Other Assets” for additional information regarding the fair value determination used in the
impairment calculation.

In the fourth quarter of 2017, we recognized long-lived asset impairment charges of $928 million, of which $923 million was related to PP&E
impairments and $5 million was related to the impairment of intangible assets. The PP&E impairment charges of $740 million was attributable to the write-
down to the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell of our land drilling rigs assets classified as held for sale, PP&E impairment charges related
to our product lines of $135 million in the Western Hemisphere segment and $37 million in the Eastern Hemisphere segment. In addition, we recognized $11
million of long-lived impairment charges related to Corporate assets.

During 2016, we recognized long-lived asset impairment charges of $436 million, of which $388 million was related to product line PP&E impairments
and $48 million was related to the impairment of intangible assets. The PP&E impairment charges were related to our Pressure Pumping in the Eastern
Hemisphere segment and Well Construction, Drilling Services and Secure Drilling Service in the Western Hemisphere segment.

The long-lived assets impairment charges were due to the prolonged downturn in the oil and gas industry, whose recovery in the third quarter was not as
strong as expected and whose recovery in the fourth quarter of 2016 and in 2017 was and is expected to be slower than had previously been anticipated. The
change in the expectations of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive negative operating cash flows in certain asset groups represented an indicator
that those assets will no longer be recoverable over their remaining useful lives.

The decline and its impact on demand represent a significant adverse change in the business climate and an indication that some of our long-lived assets
may not be recoverable. Based on the impairment indicators noted we performed an analysis of our long-lived assets in 2018, 2017 and 2016 and recorded
long-lived and other asset impairment charges to adjust to fair value. See “Note 9 — Long-Lived Asset Impairments” for additional information regarding the
long-lived assets impairment.

Management cannot predict the occurrence of future impairment-triggering events, so we continue to assess whether indicators of impairment to long-
lived assets exist due to the current business conditions in the oilfield services industry.

FRPHTO HY

We take into account the differences between the financial statement treatment and tax treatment of certain transactions. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period
that includes the enactment date. Our income tax provision in 2018 was $34 million compared to $137 million in 2017 and $496 million in 2016, which
resulted in an effective tax rate of (1)%, (5)% and (17)%, respectively.

We recognize the impact of an uncertain tax position taken or expected to be taken on an income tax return in the financial statements at the
largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority.

We operate in over 80 countries through hundreds of legal entities. As a result, we are subject to numerous tax laws in the jurisdictions, and tax
agreements and treaties among the various taxing authorities. Our operations in these jurisdictions in which we operate are taxed on various bases: income
before taxes, deemed profits (which is generally determined using a percentage of revenues rather than profits), withholding taxes based on revenue, and other
alternative minimum taxes. The calculation of our tax liabilities involves consideration of uncertainties in the application and interpretation of complex tax
regulations in a multitude of jurisdictions across our global operations. We recognize potential liabilities and record tax liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues in the tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. As of December 31, 2018, we had
recorded reserves for uncertain tax positions of $195 million, excluding accrued interest and penalties of $60 million. The tax liabilities are reflected net of
realized tax loss carryforwards. We adjust these reserves upon specific events; however, due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate
resolution may result in a payment that is different from our current estimate of the tax liabilities.
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If our estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less than the ultimate assessment, an additional charge to expense would result. If payment of these amounts
ultimately proves to be less than the recorded amounts, the reversal of the liabilities would result in tax benefits being recognized in the period when the
contingency has been resolved and the liabilities are no longer necessary. Changes in tax laws, regulations, agreements and treaties, foreign currency
exchange restrictions or our level of operations or profitability in each taxing jurisdiction could have an impact upon the amount of income taxes that we
provide during any given year.

9DODNRY$ @ DFHIRY HHIHG 7O $WHV

We record a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of our deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will expire before realization of the benefit. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable
income of the appropriate character and in the related jurisdiction in the future. In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets, we consider
the available positive and negative evidence, including our past operating results, the existence of cumulative losses in the most recent years and our forecast
of future taxable income. In estimating future taxable income, we develop assumptions, including the amount of future pre-tax operating income, the reversal
of temporary differences and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment.

We have considered various tax planning strategies that we would implement, if necessary, to enable the realization of our deferred tax assets; however,
when the likelihood of the realization of existing deferred tax assets changes, adjustments to the valuation allowance are charged to our income tax provision
in the period in which the determination is made.

As of December 31, 2018, our gross deferred tax assets were $1.8 billion before a related valuation allowance of $1.7 billion. As of December 31, 2017,
our gross deferred tax assets were $2.1 billion before a related valuation allowance of $1.9 billion. The gross deferred tax assets were also offset by gross
deferred tax liabilities of $124 million and $251 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

$@ZDIHIRU REWKSSFFRXQV

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts in order to record accounts receivable at their net realizable value. Significant judgment is involved in
recognizing this allowance. The determination of the collectability requires us to use estimates and make judgments regarding future events and trends,
including monitoring our customers’ payment history and current creditworthiness to determine that collectability is reasonably assured, as well as
consideration of the overall business and political climate in which our customers operate. Provisions for doubtful accounts are recorded when it becomes
evident that customer accounts are uncollectible. The allowance in “Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Account” is $123 million, or
10%, and $156 million, or 12%, over total gross accounts receivable as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, we recognized bad debt expense of $5 million, $238 million and $69 million, respectively.

In the second quarter of 2017, we changed the accounting for revenue with our primary customer in Venezuela and reclassified net accounts receivable
for this customer as a net long-term receivable. In the fourth quarter of 2017, we changed the accounting for revenue with substantially all of our customers in
Venezuela due to the downgrade of the country’s bonds by certain credit agencies, continued significant political and economic turmoil and continued
economic sanctions around certain financing transactions imposed by the U.S. government. In connection with this development, we recorded a charge of
$230 million fully reserving our receivables for these customers in Venezuela. The long-term allowance related to our primary customer in Venezuela is $171
million and $173 million as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

We believe that our allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate to cover bad debt losses under current conditions. However, uncertainties regarding
changes in the financial condition of our customers, either adverse or positive, could impact the amount and timing of any additional provisions for doubtful
accounts that may be required. A 5% change in the current allowance for doubtful accounts would have had an impact on loss before income taxes of
approximately $6 million in 2018.
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Inventory represents a significant component of current assets and is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using either a first-in, first-out
(“FIFO”) or average cost method. To maintain a book value that is the lower of cost or net realizable value, we maintain reserves for excess, slow moving and
obsolete inventory. To determine these reserve amounts, we review inventory quantities on hand, future product demand, market conditions, production
requirements and technological obsolesce. This review requires us to make judgments regarding potential future outcomes. At December 31, 2018 and 2017,
inventory reserves represented 23%, and 34%, of gross inventory, respectively. During 2018, 2017 and 2016, we recognized inventory write-off and other
related charges, including excess and obsolete inventory charges totaling $80 million and $540 million and $269 million, respectively. These charges were
largely attributable to the downturn in the oil and gas industry, where certain inventory has been deemed commercially unviable or technologically obsolete
considering current and future demand. We believe that our reserves are adequate to properly value excess, slow-moving and obsolete inventory under current
conditions.

" VSRV / I DIRQDQG & RQMIHAH/

As of December 31, 2018, we have accrued an estimate of the probable and estimable cost to resolve certain legal and investigation matters. For matters
not deemed probable and reasonably estimable, we have not accrued any amounts in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our legal department manages all pending
or threatened claims and investigations on our behalf. The estimate of the probable costs related to these matters is developed in consultation with internal and
outside legal counsel. Our contingent loss estimates are based upon an analysis of potential results, assuming a combination of probable litigation and
settlement strategies. The accuracy of these estimates is impacted by the complexity of the issues. Whenever possible, we attempt to resolve these matters
through settlements, mediation and arbitration proceedings if advantageous to us. If the actual settlement costs, final judgments or fines differ from our
estimates, our future financial results may be adversely affected. For a more comprehensive discussion, see “Note 20 — Disputes, Litigation and Legal
Contingencies.”

1HZ $ FARXQAMY 3URQRXQRP HQW
See “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
WP S 4 XDQNBMYHDQGA XDDBMYH' WFRKUH/DERX\VO DUNH/AS N

We are currently exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates. From time to time, we may enter into derivative
financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk. A discussion of our market risk exposure in these financial instruments follows.

+ LIKO , QAR ( FRERP\

As of June 30, 2018, the economy of Argentina was deemed to be highly inflationary and, effective July 1, 2018, we changed the functional currency of
our Argentine operations from an Argentine peso functional currency to a U.S. dollar functional currency. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the
functional currency change resulted in an immaterial currency loss on the Argentine peso denominated net assets held by our subsidiaries.

) RHIQ&XUHGR ( [ FKDQIH5 DMVDQG, Q@ARD) |, P SDAW

We operate in virtually every oil and natural gas exploration and production region in the world. In some parts of the world, such as Latin America, the
Middle East and Southeast Asia, the currency of our primary economic environment is the U.S. dollar, and thus we use the U.S. dollar primarily as our
functional currency. In other parts of the world, we conduct our business in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, and the functional currency is the applicable
local currency.

Currency devaluation charges are included in current earnings in “Currency Devaluation Charges” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations. For the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2016, we recognized currency devaluation charges of $49 million and $41 million,
respectively, and primarily related to the devaluation of the Angolan kwanza. For additional details see “ &XUHRA ' HDOOWRQ&KDUHY sub-heading under
“Item 7. — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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Assets and liabilities of entities for which the functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date result in translation adjustments that are reflected in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in the Shareholders’ Deficiency
section on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Foreign currency translation comprehensive loss worsened $240 million in 2018 and improved $130 million in
2017.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with total notional amounts aggregating $435 million and
$767 million, respectively. These contracts were entered into in order to hedge our net monetary exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign
currencies. The total estimated fair value of these contracts and amounts owed associated with closed contracts at December 31, 2018 and 2017, resulted in a
net liability of approximately $4 million and a net asset $1 million, respectively. These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges, and the changes
in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings.

, QMHNE DMV

We are subject to interest rate risk on our long-term fixed-interest rate debt and variable-interest rate borrowings. Variable rate debt exposes us to short-
term changes in market interest rates. Fixed rate debt exposes us to changes in market interest rates reflected in the fair value of the debt and to the risk that
we may need to refinance maturing debt with new debt at a higher rate. All other things being equal, the fair value of our fixed rate debt will increase or
decrease inversely to changes in interest rates.

Our senior notes outstanding at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and that were subject to interest rate risk consist of the following:

" HHHPEHU
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" RDWIQP L@RV $ P RXQNV 9DOH $P RXQNV 9DOH
6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 — — 66 66
9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 — — 488 516
5.125% Senior Notes due 2020 364 266 364 364
5.875% Exchangeable Senior Notes due 2021 @ 1,194 792 1,170 1,221
7.75% Senior Notes due 2021 743 571 741 767
4.50% Senior Notes due 2022 644 373 643 587
8.25% Senior Notes due 2023 742 448 739 755
9.875% Senior Notes due 2024 781 486 780 840
9.875% Senior Notes due 2025 ® 588 363 — —
6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 447 223 447 378
6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 255 134 255 214
7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 456 241 456 396
9.875% Senior Notes due 2039 245 138 245 267
6.75% Senior Notes due 2040 457 230 456 391
5.95% Senior Notes due 2042 369 190 368 298
Total $ 7,285 $ 4,455 $ 7,218 $ 7,060

(a) The fair value of the Exchangeable Senior Notes due 2021 includes an exchange feature reported in Capital in Excess of Par Value, and a debt component further
described in “Note 12 — Long-term Debt.” In 2017, the fair value of the Exchangeable Senior Notes was separated into the exchange feature and the debt
component and was not included in the fair value of debt.

(b) On February 28, 2018, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2025.
We had various capital lease and term loan debt instruments of $377 million at December 31, 2018 but believe the impact of changes in interest rates in

the near term will not be material to these instruments. The carrying value of our short-term borrowings of $326 million at December 31, 2018 approximates
their fair value.
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As it relates to our variable rate debt, if market interest rates increase by an average of 1% from the rates as of December 31, 2018, interest expense for
2018 would increase by approximately $3 million. This amount was determined by calculating the effect of the hypothetical interest rate on our variable rate
debt. For purposes of this sensitivity analysis, we assumed no changes in our capital structure.

, QM RN DM6Z CEVDQG' HLYDAYH/

We manage our debt portfolio to limit our exposure to interest rate volatility and may employ interest rate derivatives as a tool to achieve that goal. The
major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest rates affecting the fair value of such instruments, potential increases in interest
expense due to market increases in floating interest rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions. The counterparties to our interest
rate swaps are multinational commercial banks. We continually re-evaluate counterparty creditworthiness and modify our requirements accordingly.

Amounts paid or received upon termination of the interest rate swaps represent the fair value of the agreements at the time of termination. Derivative

gains and losses are recognized each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income (loss), depending on whether the derivative is designated as
part of a hedge relationship, and if so, the type of hedge.
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To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Weatherford International plc:

2 SQRORQ\WWH&RQRICDAMS) LDGADOB\TAMP HQV

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Weatherford International plc and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2018
and 2017, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, shareholders’ (deficiency) equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes and financial statement schedule II (collectively, the “consolidated financial statements™).
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018
and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in , QM{DO&RAURO ,QMIDNG) IDPHZ RN issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 15, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

YOMVIRU2 SQRQ

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

[s/ KPMG LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2013.

Houston, Texas
February 15, 2019
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To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Weatherford International plc:

2 SQRYRY, QMODCRRQARR YHJ) LDGADCE HERIMY

We have audited Weatherford International plc and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on
criteria established in , QM{IDO&RQANRO, QMIUDIMG) DP HZRIN issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria
established in , QMO RQURO, QMIDMS) WDPHZ RN issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, shareholders’
(deficiency) equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes and financial statement
schedule IT (collectively, the consolidated financial statements), and our report dated February 15, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

YOMVIRU2 SQRQ

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

" HIQURQDQG/ LPWIRQ/R , QMO8 RQURR YHU) LCDGADCE HSRUMY

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl KPMG LLP
Houston, Texas

February 15, 2019
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Products $ 2,051 $ 2,116 $ 2,059
Services 3,693 3,583 3,690
Total Revenues 5,744 5,699 5,749
&RWWDQG( [ SHMH/

Cost of Products 1,887 2,142 2,143
Cost of Services 2,627 2,747 3,046
Research and Development 139 158 159
Selling, General and Administrative Attributable to Segments 764 904 965
Corporate General and Administrative 130 130 138
Goodwill Impairment 1,917 — —
Long-Lived Asset Impairments, Write-Downs and Other 238 1,711 1,043
Restructuring and Transformation Charges 126 183 280
Litigation Charges, Net — (10) 220
Gain from Disposition of U.S. Pressure Pumping Assets — (96) —
Total Costs and Expenses 7,828 7,869 7,994
Operating Loss (2,084) (2,170) (2,245)

2 WHJ, RP H ( [ SHOH

Interest Expense, Net (614) (579) (499)
Warrant Fair Value Adjustment 70 86 16

Bond Tender and Call Premium (34) — (78)
Currency Devaluation Charges (49) — (41)
Other Income (Expense), Net (46) 7 (30)
Loss Before Income Taxes (2,757) (2,656) (2,877)
Income Tax Provision (34) (137) (496)
Net Loss (2,791) (2,793) (3,373)
Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 20 20 19

Net Loss Attributable to Weatherford $ (2,811) $ (2,813) $ (3,392)

| RW3HJBKDLHS WUEXWEBIR:  HDMHI RUG
Basic & Diluted $ (2.82) $ (2.84) $ (3.82)

: HIKWG$ YHDIH6KDUHY/2 XWEQAQ)
Basic & Diluted 997 990 887

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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<HDU( QGG' HAHP EHU

'ROODUYV LQ PLOOLRQV

Net Loss $

Foreign Currency Translation
Defined Benefit Pension Activity
Other

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Weatherford $

(2,791) $ (2,793) $ (3,373)
(240) 130 (12)
12 (39) 42

1 — 1
(227) 91 31
(3,018) (2,702) (3,342)
20 20 19
(3,038) $ (2,722) $ (3,361)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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'"HFHPEHU

'ROODUYV DQG VKDUHV LQ PLOOLRQV H[FHSW SDU YDOXH
$VVHWYV
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 602 $ 613
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts of $123 in 2018 and $156 in 2017 1,130 1,103
Inventories, Net 1,025 1,234
Other Current Assets 428 569
Assets Held for Sale 265 359
Total Current Assets 3,450 3,878
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $5,786 in 2018 and $6,602 in 2017 2,086 2,708
Goodwill 713 2,727
Other Non-current Assets 352 434
Total Assets $ 6,601 $ 9,747
/I[LDELOLWLHV
Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt $ 383 $ 148
Accounts Payable 732 856
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 249 308
Income Taxes Payable 214 228
Other Current Liabilities 722 690
Total Current Liabilities 2,300 2,230
Long-term Debt 7,605 7,541
Other Non-current Liabilities 362 547
Total Liabilities 10,267 10,318
6KIHKROGHUYV 'HILFLHQF\
Shares - Par Value $0.001; Authorized 1,356 shares, Issued and Outstanding 1,002 shares and 993 shares at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively 1 1
Capital in Excess of Par Value 6,711 6,655
Retained Deficit (8,671) (5,763)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (1,746) (1,519)
Weatherford Shareholders’ Deficiency (3,705) (626)
Noncontrolling Interests 39 55
Total Shareholders’ Deficiency (3,666) (571)
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficiency $ 6,601 $ 9,747

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$FFXPXODWHG 7TRWDO
5HWDLQHG 2WKHU 6KMHKROGH
3DUDDXH R&DSLWDO ,Q ([REYQLQJV &RPSHKHQVLMYRQ FROQWUQJI'HILFLHQI

'ROODUYV LQ PLOOLRQV ,VVXHGH&KDWRI| 3DNOXH 'HILFLW ,QFRPH /RVV ,QWHWYV (TXLW\
%DODQFH DW '"HFHPEHU $ 1 3 5502 $ 442 $ (1,641) $ 61 § 4,365
Net Income (Loss) — — (3,392) — 19 (3,373)
Other Comprehensive Income — — — 31 — 31
Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests — — — — (24) (24)
Issuance of Common Shares — 894 — — — 894
Issuance of Exchangeable Notes — 97 — — — 97
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and
Exercised — 78 — — — 78
%DODQFH DW 'HFHPEHU § 1 3 6,571 $ (2,950) $ (1,610) $ 56 $ 2,068
Net Income (Loss) — — (2,813) — 20 (2,793)
Other Comprehensive Income — — — 91 — 91
Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests — — — — (21) (21)
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and
Exercised — 84 — — — 84
%DODQFH DW 'HFHPEHU $ 1 $ 6,655 $ (5,763) $ (1,519) $ 55 $ (571)
Net Income (Loss) — — (2,811) — 20 (2,791)
Other Comprehensive Loss — — — (227) — (227)
Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests — — — — (16) (16)
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and
Exercised — 52 — — — 52
Adoption of Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets
Other Than Inventory and Revenue from
Contracts with Customers — — 97) — — 97)
Other — 4 — — (20) (16)
%DODQFH DW 'HFHPEHU § 1 3 6,711  $ 8,671) $ (1,746) $ 39 § (3,666)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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'ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV

&DVK JORFPV2QIHUDWLQJI $FWLYLWLHYV

Net Loss $ (2,791) $ (2,793) $ (3,373)
$GMXVWPHQWY WR 5HFRQFLOH 1HW /RVV WR 1HW &DVK 8VHG LQ 2SHUDWLQJ $FWLYLWLHYV
Depreciation and Amortization 556 801 956
Goodwill Impairment 1,917 — —
Long-Lived Asset Impairments 151 928 436
Venezuelan Receivables Write-Down == 230 —
Inventory Write-off and Other Related Charges 80 540 269
Asset Write-Downs and Other Charges 89 38 194
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Gains — (47) —
Currency Devaluation Charges 49 41
Litigation Charges (Credits) 5 (10) 214
Bond Tender Premium 34 — 78
Employee Share-Based Compensation Expense 47 70 87
Bad Debt Expense 5 8 69
Gain on Sale of Assets and Businesses, Net (53) 91) (10)
Deferred Income Tax Provision (Benefit) (79) (25) 381
Warrant Fair Value Adjustment (70) (86) (16)
Other, Net 8 142 127
&KDQJH LQ 2SHUDWLQJ $VVHWYVY DQG /LDELOLWLHV 1HW
Accounts Receivable (70) (29) 214
Inventories 86 (37) 260
Other Current Assets (90) 107 67
Accounts Payable (90) 2) (21)
Accrued Litigation and Settlements (25) (123) 94)
Other Current Liabilities 48 20 (201)
Other, Net (49) (29) 18
1HW &DVK 8VHG LQ 2SHUDWLQJ $FWLYLWLHYV (242) (388) (304)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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<HDU (QGHG 'HFHPEHU

'ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV
&DVK JORPV , QN HVWLQJ $FWLYLWLHV

Capital Expenditures for Property, Plant and Equipment (186) (225) (204)
Acquisition of Assets Held for Sale (31) (244) —
Acquisitions of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired 4 7) 5)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets (28) (15) (10)
Insurance Proceeds Related to Asset Casualty Loss — — 39
Proceeds (Payment) from Disposition of Businesses and Investments 257 429 (6)
Proceeds from Disposition of Assets 106 51 49
Other Investing Activities — (51) —
1HW &DRXLIBTHG E\ 8VHG LQ ,QYHVWLQJ $FWLYLWLHYV 122 (62) (137)

&DVK )ORAV)IWMDQFLQJ $FWLYLWLHV

Borrowings of Long-term Debt 586 250 3,681
Repayments of Long-term Debt (502) (69) (1,963)
Borrowings (Repayments) of Short-term Debt, Net 158 (128) (1,512)
Proceeds from Issuance of Ordinary Common Shares and Warrant — — 1,071
Bond Tender Premium (34) — (78)
Payment for Leased Asset Purchase — — 87)
Other Financing Activities, Net (40) (33) (51)
1HW &DRXLIBHG E\ )LQDQFLQJ $FWLYLWLHYV 168 20 1,061
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents (59) 6 (50)
1HW HDAMWH HBFHB LQ &DVK DQG &DVK (TXLYDOHQWYV (11) (424) 570
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 613 1,037 467
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 602 $ 613 $ 1,037

6XSSOHPHQWDO &DVK )ORZ ,QIRUPDWLRQ

Interest Paid $ 584 § 538 $ 467
Income Taxes Paid, Net of Refunds $ 9 87 $ 161
Non-Cash Financing Obligations $ 23 8 24 % 25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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6XP P DU R 6LIQULFDQNS AFRXQAQ) 3RTAH/

2 WDQ] DIRQDQG1 DMHR 2 SHDIRYY

Weatherford International plc (“Weatherford Ireland”), an Irish public limited company and Swiss tax resident, together with its subsidiaries
(“Weatherford,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our”), is a multinational oilfield service company. Weatherford is one of the world’s leading providers of
equipment and services used in the drilling, evaluation, completion, production and intervention of oil and natural gas wells. We operate in approximately 80
countries, which are located in virtually all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in the world. Many of our businesses, including those of our
predecessor companies, have been operating for more than 50 years.

Our ordinary shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol “WFT.” The authorized share capital of Weatherford
Ireland includes 1.356 billion ordinary shares with a par value of $0.001 per share.

3UCASBVR &RQRIEDIR)

We consolidate all wholly owned subsidiaries and controlled joint ventures. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation, including those related to the adoption of new accounting
standards. Prior year net income and shareholders’ deficiency were not affected by these reclassifications. See subsection entitled “New Accounting
Pronouncements” for additional details. Our rental and service equipment and accumulated depreciation in 2017 have been revised to reflect certain net assets
reclassified to held for sale at December 31, 2017.

8\HR ( \I¥° DM/

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate
our estimates and assumptions, including those related to uncollectible accounts receivable, lower of cost or net realizable value of inventories, equity
investments, derivative financial instruments, intangible assets and goodwill, property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”), income taxes, accounting for long-
term contracts, self-insurance, foreign currency exchange rates, pension and post-retirement benefit plans, disputes, litigation, contingencies and share-based
compensation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

&DK DQG&DK ( TXLYDBRW
We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
$@ZDAHIRY RXBWKGB FFRXQWV

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based on various factors including historical experience, the current aging status of our customer
accounts, the financial condition of our customers and the business and political environment in which our customers operate. Provisions for doubtful
accounts are recorded when it becomes probable that customer accounts are uncollectible.

0 DNRU&XVIRP HY DQG & UHAVS MN

Substantially all of our customers are engaged in the energy industry. This concentration of customers may impact our overall exposure to credit risk,
either positively or negatively, in that customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic and industry conditions. We perform on-going credit
evaluations of our customers and do not generally require collateral in support of our trade receivables. We maintain allowances for potential credit losses.
International sales also present various risks, including risks of war, civil disturbances and governmental activities that may limit or disrupt markets, restrict
the movement of funds, or result in the deprivation of contract rights or the taking of property without fair consideration. Most of our international sales are
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to large international or national oil companies and these sales have resulted in a concentration of receivables from certain national oil companies. As of
December 31, 2018, the Eastern Hemisphere accounted for 55% of our net outstanding accounts receivables and the Western Hemisphere accounted for 45%
of our net outstanding accounts receivables. As of December 31, 2018, our net outstanding accounts receivable in the U.S. accounted for 18% of our balance
and Mexico accounted for 10% of our balance. No other country accounted for more than 10% of our net outstanding accounts receivables balance. During
2018, 2017 and 2016, no individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues.

» QHORUHY

We value our inventories at lower of cost or net realizable value using either the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) or average cost method. Cost represents third-
party invoice or production cost. Production cost includes material, labor and manufacturing overhead. Work in process and finished goods inventories
include the cost of materials, labor and manufacturing overhead. To maintain a book value that is the lower of cost or net realizable value, we regularly review
inventory quantities on hand and maintain reserves for excess, slow moving and obsolete inventory.

SURSHIV 3@QNDQG( TXLSP HQW

We carry our property, plant and equipment, both owned and under capital lease, at cost less accumulated depreciation. The carrying values are based on
our estimates and judgments relative to capitalized costs, useful lives and salvage value, where applicable. We expense maintenance and repairs as incurred.
We capitalize expenditures for improvements as well as renewals and replacements that extend the useful life of the asset. We depreciate our fixed assets on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, allowing for salvage value where applicable.

Our depreciation expense was $493 million, $749 million and $896 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The estimated useful lives of our major classes of PP&E are as follows:

(/AP DMG
0 DVWU&OWH/R 3URSHINV 3@OANDQG( TXLSP HQW 8\HXQ YH
Buildings and leasehold improvements 10 — 40 years or lease term
Rental and service equipment 2 — 15 years
Machinery and other 2 — 12 years

$WHV+ HB I RU6 DB

We consider businesses or assets to be held for sale when all of the following criteria are met: (a) management commits to a plan to sell the business or
asset and (b) the business or asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and (c) actions required to complete the sale of the business or asset
have been initiated and (d) the sale of the business or asset is probable and we expect the completed sale will occur within one year and (e) the business or
asset is actively being marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable given its current fair value, and (f) it is unlikely that the plan to sell will be significantly
modified or withdrawn.

Upon designation as held for sale, we record the carrying value of each business or asset at the lower of its carrying value or its estimated fair value, less
estimated costs to sell, and cease recording depreciation. If at any time these criteria are no longer met, subject to certain exceptions, the assets previously
classified as held for sale are reclassified as held and used and measured individually at the lower of the following: (a) the carrying amount before being
classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation (amortization) expense that would have been recognized had the asset been continuously classified as
held and used or (b) the fair value at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell. During 2018 and 2017, there were no reclassifications from held for sale
to held and used.
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* RRZ L@DQG, QEQILERIS WHV

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business
combination. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment. We perform an impairment test for goodwill annually as of October 1 or more
frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist that would more-likely-than-not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. We
have the option to assess qualitative factors to determine if it is necessary to perform the quantitative step of the impairment test. If it is not more-likely-than-
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, further testing is not required. If it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we must perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. We also have the unconditional option to bypass the
qualitative assessment at any time and perform the quantitative step. The quantitative step of the goodwill impairment test involves a comparison of the fair
value of each of our reporting units with their carrying values. If the carrying value of a reporting unit’s goodwill were to exceed its fair value, goodwill
impairment is recognized as the difference to the extent of the goodwill balance.

Our intangible assets, excluding goodwill, are acquired technology, licenses, patents, customer relationships and other identifiable intangible assets.
These are included in the caption “Other Non-current Assets” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated economic lives generally ranging from two to 20 years, except for intangible assets with indefinite lives, which are not amortized, but tested
for impairment. As many areas of our business rely on patents and proprietary technology, we seek patent protection both inside and outside the U.S. for
products and methods that appear to have commercial significance. We capitalize patent defense costs when we determine that a successful defense is
probable.

/ R | LYHG$ WHV

We record our long-lived assets at cost, and review on a regular basis to determine whether any events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount of the assets or asset group may not be recoverable. Factors that might indicate a potential impairment may include, but are not limited to, significant
decreases in the market value of the long-lived asset or asset group, a significant change in the long-lived asset’s physical condition, the introduction of
competing technologies, legal challenges, a reduction in the utilization rate of the assets, a change in industry conditions or a reduction in cash flows
associated with the use of the long-lived asset. If these or other factors indicate the carrying amount of the asset or asset group may not be recoverable, we
determine whether an impairment has occurred through analysis of undiscounted cash flow of the asset or asset group at the lowest level that has an
identifiable cash flow. If an impairment has occurred, we recognize a loss for the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset or
asset group. We estimate the fair value of the asset or asset group using market prices when available or, in the absence of market prices, based on an estimate
of discounted cash flows or replacement cost. Cash flows are generally discounted using an interest rate commensurate with a weighted average cost of
capital for a similar asset.

S5HHDUK DQG' HYHBSP HON [ SHOGAWUHY/

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred.

" HIYDH) LQDQRDO QIKP HOW

We record derivative instruments on the balance sheet at their fair value as either assets or liabilities. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded
each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income (loss), depending on whether the derivative is designated as part of a hedge relationship, and if
so, the type of hedge.

) RHJQ&XUHA

Results of operations for our foreign subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar are translated using average exchange rates during
the period. Assets and liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries are translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates, and the resulting
translation adjustments are included in “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss”, a component of Shareholders’ Deficiency.

For our subsidiaries that have a functional currency that differs from the currency of their balances and transactions, inventories, PP&E and other non-
monetary assets and liabilities, together with their related elements of expense or income, are remeasured into the functional currency using historical
exchange rates. All monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured into the functional currency at current exchange rates. All revenues and expenses are
translated into the functional currency at average exchange rates. Remeasurement gains and losses for these subsidiaries are recognized in our results of
operations during the period incurred. We
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record net foreign currency gains and losses on foreign currency derivatives (see “Note 14 — Derivative Instruments”) in “Other Income (Expense), Net” on
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Devaluation charges on foreign currencies are reported in “Currency Devaluation Charges” on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As of December 31, 2018, cash and cash equivalents denominated in Angolan kwanza was approximately $28 million.
6KDUH YDVHE&RP SHODWR)Q

We account for all share-based payment awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options, restricted shares, restricted
share units and performance units by measuring these awards at the date of grant and recognizing the grant date fair value as an expense, net of expected
forfeitures, over the service period, which is usually the vesting period.

,QFRPH7O W/

Income taxes have been provided based upon the tax laws and rates in the countries in which our operations are conducted and income is earned.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely than not that
some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The impact of an uncertain tax position taken or expected to be taken on an income
tax return is recognized in the financial statements at the largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing
authority.

" NSX\MY / M DINRQ DQG&RAMIHAH/

We accrue an estimate of costs to resolve certain legal and investigation matters when a loss on these matters is deemed probable and reasonably
estimable. For matters not deemed probable or not reasonably estimable, we have not accrued any amounts. Our contingent loss estimates are based upon an
analysis of potential results, assuming a combination of possible litigation and settlement strategies. The accuracy of these estimates is impacted by the
complexity of the associated issues.

5 HYHXH5 HFRIQURQ

As of January 1, 2018, we adopted the new revenue recognition guidance, ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), and all of
the related amendments, collectively Topic 606, using the modified retrospective method applied to those contracts which were not completed as of January 1,
2018. We recognized the cumulative effect of initially applying the new guidance as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January
1, 2018. The comparative period information has not been adjusted and continues to be reported under the previous revenue standard, the primary accounting
policies for which are discussed below.

Our services and products were generally sold based upon purchase orders, contracts or other persuasive evidence of an arrangement with our customers
that included fixed or determinable prices but do not generally include right of return provisions or other significant post-delivery obligations. Our products
were produced in a standard manufacturing operation, even if produced to our customer’s specifications. Revenue was recognized for products when title
passed to the customer, collectability was reasonably assured, delivery occurred as directed by our customer and when the customer assumed the risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue was recognized for services when they are rendered. Both contract drilling and pipeline service revenue is contractual by
nature and generally governed by day-rate based contracts. We recognized revenue for day-rate contracts as the services were rendered.

See “Note 2 — New Accounting Pronouncements” and “Note 3 — Revenues” for details on the impact of adoption of the new revenue recognition
guidance and our revenue recognition policies.

( DLQQIV / RW SHIBKDH

Basic earnings (loss) per share for all periods presented equals net income (loss) divided by the weighted average number of our shares outstanding
during the period including participating securities. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of our shares outstanding during the period including participating securities, adjusted for the dilutive effect of our stock options, restricted shares and
performance units.
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Unvested share-based payment awards and other instruments issued by the Company that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend
equivalents, whether paid or unpaid, are participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings per share following the two-class method.
Accordingly, we include our restricted share awards (“RSA”) and the outstanding warrant until it expires on May 21, 2019, which contain the right to receive
dividends, in the computation of both basic and diluted earnings per share when dilutive.

1H $ FRRXQMQ) 3LRCRXQRP HW
$ FARXQIY &KDQIHY/

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which
replaced most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. We adopted the new guidance and all of the related amendments, collectively Topic 606,
using the modified retrospective method applied to those contracts which were not completed as of January 1, 2018. We recognized the cumulative effect of
initially applying the new guidance as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2018. The comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under the accounting standards in effect for those periods. Net income for 2017 and shareholders’ equity as of
December 31, 2017 were not affected by the adoption of the new guidance. The impact of the adoption of the new guidance was immaterial to our
consolidated net loss.

The primary impact on adopting Topic 606 on our Consolidated Financial Statements is in our Well Construction product line, where we receive
customer payments related to the demobilization of drilling equipment and crew. Under the adoption of Topic 606, we now recognize revenue on
demobilization equally over the term of the contract, subject to any constraint as discussed in “Note 3 — Revenues” to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Prior to the adoption of Topic 606, we recognized demobilization revenue once the service was completed. These changes did not have any impact on our
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The cumulative effect of the changes made to our January 1, 2018 Consolidated Balance Sheet for the adoption of Topic 606, were as follows:

YDDAHDV
' HHHPEHU $ AKWR HQV' XH YDDOAHDW

" RDWIQP LAaRY \R7RSIF - QXY

$VHVDQG/ IDHOQWY
Other Current Assets $ 569 $ 10 $ 579
Other Current Liabilities 690 2 692
6KDUHKRTGHY ' HIHHRA
Retained Deficit (5,763) 8 (5,755)

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, ,QEQIIE®V * RRZI@DEG2\WH) QMO8 VHERWDWH 6XBEWSF &XVRP HUV $ FFRXQIMY

IRU, P SBP HQBWRQ &RWW , PXUHG 1Q D &BXG &RP S $UDQIHP HQA7KDW,V D 6HMFH & RQMCRMwvhich requires a customer in a cloud computing
arrangement that is a service contract to follow the internal-use software guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 350-40 to determine which
implementation costs to capitalize as assets. This standard will reduce diversity in practice in accounting for the costs of implementing cloud computing
arrangements that are service contracts. We elected to early adopt ASU 2018-15 as we currently apply such guidance to our cloud computing arrangements.
The adoption of this ASU has no material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, &RPSHQDWRQ SHNMHP HQMAHHIW 7RIF ,PSURMQ) \WH 3 URHIMRQ R 1 HABHIRAF 3HMRQ
&RWDG 1 HABHIRAF 3 RAHNIHP HOAAHHIW& RWAWwhich amends the presentation of net periodic pension and postretirement benefit costs (“net benefit
cost”). The service cost component of net benefit cost is required to be presented with other employee compensation costs, while other components of net
benefit costs are presented separately outside of income from operations. We adopted ASU 2017-07 in the first quarter of 2018 on a retrospective basis which
resulted in the reclassification of $41 million of income and $6 million of expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, from “Total
Costs and Expenses” to “Other Income (Expense), Net” on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-16, ,GFRPH7O0H/ 7TRIF ,QAD ( QMY 7UDQVHY/ R $WHNV2 \WHJ7KDQ, QHQRLY, which eliminates a
current exception in U.S. GAAP to the recognition of the income tax effects of temporary differences that result from intra-entity transfers of non-inventory
assets. We adopted ASU 2016-16 in the first quarter of 2018 on a modified retrospective basis. The impact that this new standard has on our Consolidated
Financial Statements is a reversal of $105 million of prepaid taxes through retained earnings. Prospectively, any taxes accrued that result from the intra-entity
transfers of non-inventory assets will be recognized in current tax expense.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, 6\ WP HIAR &DWK) ®ZV 7TRIF &OWIIFDNRQ R &HIMOQ &DK 5 HHSW DG &D\WK 3D PHQW
which reduces diversity in practice as to how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash flows. We adopted ASU 2016-15 in the first quarter of
2018 on a retrospective basis and the adoption of this ASU has no material impact on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

$ FFRXQI 6\BIQEDLGY, WKHE1 RAEH/S GROWMG

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-14, &RPSHODIRQ SHNMHP HQHHIW ' HIGGYHHMWB@Q/ * HHIDO 6XBWSIF ' WFRKH
) LPHZRN  &KDQIH/\RWH' VFRKUH S HIXUWHP HOVIRY' HIQHG HHIMB @QY which makes minor changes to the disclosure requirements for employers
that sponsor defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans. The ASU is effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020, but early
adoption is permitted. The ASU is required to be applied retrospectively. This new standard will not have a significant impact on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, ) DLU9DOHO HOVXUHP HQV7RSIF " DFRXUH) BPHZRIN &KDQIHWRWH' MFRAKUHS HIXUWHP HOV
IRU) DWIDOH 0 HDVKUHP HQMMwhich eliminates, adds and modifies certain disclosure requirements for fair value measurements as part of its disclosure
framework project. The ASU is effective beginning with the first quarter of 2020, and early adoption is permitted. The ASU is required to be applied
retrospectively, except the new Level 3 disclosure requirements which are applied prospectively. We have evaluated the impact that this new standard will
have on our Consolidated Financial Statements and concluded adoption of the ASU will not have a significant impact.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, ,@RPH 6\BWWP HQAb HSRINY &RP SIHHQUYH ,FRPH 7TRIF S5HHOWLLIFDNRQ R &HIRIQ 700
(HHAWIURP $H-XP XOWMG 2 \WWHU& RP SUHKHMYH, FRP Hwhich permits a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings
for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The standard is required to be applied in the period of adoption or on a retrospective basis to
each period affected, and will be effective beginning in the first quarter of 2019, although early adoption is permitted. We are evaluating the impact that this
new standard will have on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11, which amends the accounting for certain equity-linked financial instruments and states a down round
feature no longer precludes equity classification when assessing whether the instrument is indexed to an entity’s own stock. For an equity-linked financial
instrument no longer accounted for as a liability at fair value, the amendments require a down round to be treated as a dividend and as a reduction of income
available to common shareholders in basic earnings per share. The ASU is effective beginning with the first quarter of 2019, and early adoption is permitted.
The ASU is required to be applied retrospectively to outstanding instruments. Weatherford evaluated the impact that this new standard will have on our
Consolidated Financial Statements and concluded adoption of the ASU will not have a significant impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, ) LDEHDO, QMKPHIV  &UHAW RWHY 7TRIF 0 DXUHPHWR &UHAW RWHY RQ ) LQDAADC

, QXWKP HQV which replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current U.S. GAAP with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and
requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to determine credit loss estimates. The guidance requires entities to
measure all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and
supportable forecasts. The updated guidance applies to (i) loans, accounts receivable, trade receivables, and other financial assets measured at amortized cost,
(ii) loan commitments and other off-balance sheet credit exposures, (iii) debt securities and other financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and (iv) beneficial interests in securitized financial assets. The amended guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. We will adopt the new standard on the effective date of January 1, 2020 and are
evaluating the effect, if any, that the guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, / HDW 7RIF , which requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and lease
liability for most leases, including those classified as operating leases under existing U.S. GAAP. The
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ASU also changes the definition of a lease and requires expanded quantitative and qualitative disclosures for both lessees and lessors.

This standard, and all the related amendments, will be effective for us beginning January 1, 2019 and we have elected to adopt using the optional
adoption-date method and recognize a cumulative effect adjustment. In addition, we have elected certain available practical expedients. We will revise our
leasing policies to require most of the leases, where we are the lessee, to be recognized on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and lease liability whereas
currently we do not recognize operating leases on our balance sheet. Further, we will separate leases from other contracts where we are either the lessor or
lessee when the rights conveyed under the contract indicate there is a lease, where we may not be required to do so under existing policies.

Additionally, we are implementing changes to our systems, processes and internal controls to ensure we meet the standard’s reporting and disclosure
requirements. Adoption of the standard will result in the recognition of both additional ROU operating lease assets and lease liabilities of approximately $275
million to $315 million upon adoption.

5 HYHXH/
5 HYHXH5 HFRIQURQ

The majority of our revenue is derived from short term contracts. We account for revenue in accordance with Topic 606, which we adopted on January 1,
2018, using the modified retrospective method. See “Note 2 — New Accounting Pronouncements™ for further discussion of the adoption, including the impact
on our 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration we
expect to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

The following tables disaggregate our product and service revenues from contracts with customers by major product line and geographic region for year
ended December 31, 2018:

<HU( QGHG' HHP EHJ

D PIMOQ 7REQ [ FXAQ

' RDWIQP LARY +HP ( DR+ H DSKHH 5 HQMIGS HYHRXHY
SWIRGXFW IQHY

Production $ 1,176  $ 342 $ 1,518

Completions 609 604 1,213

Drilling and Evaluation 612 778 1,390

Well Construction 429 857 1,286
Total $ 2,826 $ 2,581 $ 5,407
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<HU( QGHG' HHP EHJ
' RIWIQPLARY/
* HRIWDBKLF $ UHDV

United States $ 1,435
Latin America 1,017
Canada 374
Western Hemisphere 2,826
Middle East & North Africa 1,376
Europe/Sub-Sahara Africa/Russia 920
Asia 285
Eastern Hemisphere 2,581
Total Product and Service Revenue before Rental Revenues 5,407
Rental Revenues 337
Total Revenues $ 5,744
&RQWDRAYDDRH

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in billed accounts receivable, unbilled receivables, contract assets, and customer
advances and deposits (contract liabilities classified as deferred revenues) on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Receivables for products and services with customers, under Topic 606, are included in “Accounts Receivable, Net,” contract assets are included in
“Other Current Assets” and contract liabilities are included in “Other Current Liabilities” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table provides information about receivables for product and services included in “Accounts Receivable, Net”
at December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2018, respectively:

* HHP EHU
" RIWIQPLARY/ - DQXDU

Receivables for Product and Services in Accounts Receivable, Net $ 1,051 $ 1,081

Consideration under certain contracts such as turnkey or lump sum contracts may be classified as contract assets as the invoicing occurs once the
performance obligations have been satisfied while the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided. We also have receivables for
work completed but not billed in which the rights to consideration are conditional and would be classified as contract assets. These are primarily related to
service contracts and are not material to our Consolidated Financial Statements. We may also have contract liabilities and defer revenues for certain product
sales that are not distinct from their installation.

We did not recognize any revenues during 2018 related to performance obligations satisfied prior to January 1, 2018.
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Significant changes in the contract assets and liabilities balances during the period are as follows:

SROMDAW  &ROMRPW

' RODWIQP LR $ WAV / |CELOAY
YODQRHDW DXDU $ 10 $ 42
Revenue recognized that was included in the deferred revenue balance at the beginning of the period — (112)
Increase due to cash received, excluding amount recognized as revenue during the period — 120
Increase due to revenue recognized during the period but contingent on future performance 14 —
Transferred to receivables from contract assets recognized at the beginning of the period (13) —
Changes as a result of adjustments due to changes in estimates or contract modifications — 21
Impairment of contract assets 5) —
Reclassification to held for sale and sold ) 7
YODQRHDW HAHP EHU $ 4% 64

3HJRP DFH2 EQIDIRYY

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer, and is the unit of account in Topic 606. A
contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied.

Our principal business is to provide equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry, both on land and offshore,
through our major product lines: Production, Completions, Drilling and Evaluation and Well Construction.

Generally, our revenue is recognized for services over time as the services are rendered and we primarily utilize an output method such as time elapsed or
footage drilled which coincides with how customers receive the benefit. Both contract drilling and pipeline service revenue is contractual by nature
and generally governed by day-rate based contracts. Revenue is recognized on product sales at a point in time when control passes and is generally upon
delivery but is dependent on the terms of the contract.

Our services and products are generally sold based upon purchase orders, contracts or call-out work orders that include fixed per unit prices or variable
consideration but do not generally include right of return provisions or other significant post-delivery obligations. We generally bill our sales of services and
products upon completion of the performance obligation. Product sales are billed and recognized when control passes to the customer. Our products are
produced in a standard manufacturing operation, even if produced to our customer’s specifications. Revenues are recognized at the amount to which we have
the right to invoice for services performed. Our payment terms vary by the type and location of our customer and the products or services offered. The term
between invoicing and when payment is due is not significant. For certain products or services and customer types, we require payment before the products or
services are delivered to the customer. We defer revenue recognition on such payments until the products or services are delivered to the customer.

From time to time, we may enter into bill and hold arrangements. When we enter into these arrangements, we determine if the customer has obtained
control of the product by determining (a) the reason for the bill-and-hold arrangement; (b) whether the product is identified separately as belonging to the
customer; (c) whether the product is ready for physical transfer to the customer; and (d) whether we are unable to utilize the product or direct it to another
customer.

We account for individual products and services separately if they are distinct and the product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the
contract and if a customer can benefit from it on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the customer. The consideration, including any
discounts, is allocated between separate products and services based on their standalone selling prices. The standalone selling prices are determined based on
the prices at which we separately sell our products and services. For items not sold separately (e.g. term software licenses in our Production product line), we
estimate standalone selling prices using the adjusted market assessment approach.
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Up-front payments for preparation and mobilization of equipment and personnel in connection with new drilling contracts are deferred along with any
related incremental costs incurred directly related to preparation and mobilization. The deferred revenue and costs are recognized over the contract term using
the straight-line method. Costs of relocating equipment without contracts are expensed as incurred. Demobilization fees received are recognized over the
contract period and may be constrained to the amount that it is probable a significant reversal in the fees will not occur. When determining if such variable
consideration should be constrained, management considers whether there are factors outside the Company’s control that could result in a significant reversal
of revenue as well as the likelihood and magnitude of such a potential reversal.

The nature of our contracts gives rise to several types of variable consideration, including claims and lost-in-hole charges. Our claims are not significant
and lost-in-hole charges are constrained variable consideration. We do not estimate revenue associated with these types of variable consideration.

We incur rebillable expenses including shipping and handling, third-party inspection and repairs, and customs costs and duties. We recognize the revenue
associated with these rebillable expenses when reimbursed by customers as “Product Revenues” and all related costs as “Cost of Products” in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We provide certain assurance warranties on product sales which range from one to five years but do not offer extended warranties on any of our products
or services. These assurance warranties are not separate performance obligations, thus no portion of the transaction price is allocated to our obligations under
the assurance warranties.

In the following table, estimated revenue expected to be recognized in the future related to performance obligations that are either unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied as of December 31, 2018 primarily relate to subsea services and an artificial lift contract:

' RDWIQP LARY 7 KHHIWU 7REO
Service revenue $ 57 $ 33 % 18 $ 18 $ 19 $ 145

All consideration from contracts with customers is included in the amounts presented above.

( DUD 3URSXRIRY) DAMNV/ RY 7HP &RNKRANRY &RDAW

We account for our long-term early production facility construction contracts in Iraq as our performance obligations under the terms of the contract are
satisfied, which generally occurs with the transfer of control of the goods or services to the customer. Our only remaining contract is the Zubair contract,
which is in its final warranty stage. There has been no change to our cumulative estimated loss of $532 million from all of the Iraq contracts since December
31, 2016. Our net billings in excess of costs as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were $31 million and $56 million, respectively, and are shown
in the “Other Current Liabilities” on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

9HH XHID5 HHXH5 HFRIQWRD

In the second quarter of 2017, we changed the accounting for revenue with our primary customer in Venezuela to record a discount reflecting the time
value of money and accrete the discount as interest income over the expected collection period using the effective interest method. In the fourth quarter of
2017, we changed the accounting for revenue with substantially all of our customers in Venezuela due to the downgrade of the country’s bonds by certain
credit agencies, continued significant political and economic turmoil and continued economic sanctions around certain financing transactions imposed by the
U.S. government. In connection with this development, we recorded a charge of $230 million to fully reserve our receivables for these customers in
Venezuela. We continue to monitor our Venezuelan operations and will actively pursue the collection of our outstanding invoices. During 2018, we collected
$16 million on previously fully reserved accounts receivable.

3URANDY( [ SHAHQW

We generally expense sales commissions paid when incurred as a result of obtaining a contract because the amortization period is one year or less. These
costs are recorded within “Selling, General and Administrative Attributable to Segments” on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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We do not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for (i) contracts with an original expected length of one year or less and (ii) contracts
for which we recognize revenue at the amount to which we have the right to invoice for services performed.

YOMOHW& RP ELCDARQVDQG' LYHXAUMUHAY
$ FIXMURYY

On March 26, 2018, we acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in our Qatari joint venture that we previously accounted for as an equity method
investment and consolidated the entity. The total consideration to purchase the remaining equity interest was $87 million, which is comprised of a cash
consideration of $72 million and an estimated contingent consideration of $15 million related to services the Qatari entity will render under new contracts. Of
the $72 million in cash consideration, $48 million was paid in accordance with closing terms through the joint venture, with the remaining payment of $24
million to be paid two years from closing. As a result of this step acquisition transaction with a change in control, we remeasured our previously held equity
investment to fair value and recognized a $12 million gain. The Level 3 fair value of the acquisition was determined using an income approach. The
unobservable inputs to the income approach included the Qatari entity’s estimated future cash flows and estimates of discount rates commensurate with the
entity’s risks. Upon consolidation, we recognized intangible assets of $22 million, PP&E of $25 million, goodwill of $27 million, other current assets of $16
million and other liabilities of $43 million as a result of the purchase accounting assessment and is remeasured in the allowable period as needed.

b IYHAYUH

In the fourth quarter of 2018, we completed the sale for a portion of our land drilling rigs operations and received gross cash proceeds of $216 million.
The sale represents two of a series of four closings pursuant to the purchase and sale agreements entered into with ADES International Holding Ltd.
(“ADES”) in July of 2018 to sell our land drilling rig operations in Algeria, Kuwait and Saudi Arabia, as well as two idle land rigs in Iraq, for an aggregate
purchase price of $287.5 million, subject to regulatory approvals, consents and other customary closing conditions to include potential adjustments based on
working capital, net cash, loss or destruction of rigs and drilling contract backlog.

The two closings were for our land drilling rigs operations in Kuwait and Saudi Arabia and included 23 of a total of 31 land rigs and related drilling
contracts, as well as transferring employees and contract personnel. The net loss on these first two closings was $9 million from primarily transaction costs to
close the dispositions. The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities held for sale sold in 2018 totaled $253 million and $36 million, respectively, to include
PP&E, inventory, accounts receivable and other assets and liabilities. We expect to complete the remaining two closings with ADES in the first quarter of
2019. In the third quarter of 2018, ADES advanced $43 million of the aggregate purchase price in the form of a deposit held in escrow, which was released at
each closing as credit towards the proceeds paid and as of December 31, 2018, there was $11 million remaining in escrow.

In March of 2018, we completed the sale of our continuous sucker rod service business in Canada for a purchase price of $25 million and recognized a
gain of $2 million. The carrying amounts of the major classes of assets divested total $23 million and included PP&E of $14 million, allocated goodwill of $8
million and inventory of $1 million. In the third quarter of 2018, we completed the sale of an equity investment in a joint venture for $12.5 million and
recognized a gain of $3 million.

In December of 2017, we completed the sale of our U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down perforating assets for $430 million in cash. As part of this
transaction, we disposed of our ownership of our U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down perforating related facilities and supplier and customer contracts.
Proceeds from the sale were used to reduce outstanding indebtedness. The net gain on the disposition of the U.S. pressure pumping and pump-down assets
was $96 million. The carrying amount of the major classes of assets divested total $391 million and included PP&E of $222 million, allocated goodwill of
$162 million and inventory of $7 million. The carrying amounts of the major classes of liabilities divested total $61 million and included other liabilities of
$52 million and long-term debt of $9 million.

+ HGIRJ6D®
Assets qualifying as held for sale total $265 million at December 31, 2018 and consist of PP&E and other net assets of $214 million, allocated goodwill
of $7 million, and inventory of $44 million. Liabilities in held for sale, which is included in “Other Current Liabilities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

totaled $17 million at December 31, 2018. These amounts primarily consist of our surface data logging and laboratory services business and our remaining
land drilling rigs operations held for sale.
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In December of 2018, we agreed to sell our surface data logging business to Excellence Logging for $50 million in cash, subject to customary post-
closing working capital adjustments. The transaction is expected to close in the first half of 2019.

In October of 2018, we agreed to sell our Reservoir Solutions business, also known as our laboratory services business to an affiliate of CSL Capital
Management, L.P., for an aggregate purchase price of $205 million in cash, subject to customary post-closing working capital adjustments. The transaction is
expected to close in the first quarter of 2019.

In July of 2018, we entered into an agreement with ADES to sell a majority of our land drilling rigs operations. The remaining two closings are expected
to be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2019. As a result of entering into certain purchase and sale agreements as asset sales, we recognized asset
write-down charges of $58 million for deferred mobilization costs and other rigs related assets as such costs were no longer recoverable.

During the third quarter of 2018, we recorded an $18 million charge to “Long-Lived Asset Impairments, Asset Write-Downs and Other” in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations to correct an immaterial error relating to our estimates of recoverability of certain assets associated with the original
and ongoing valuation of the assets and liabilities classified as held for sale associated with the planned disposition of our land drilling rig operations. The
charge would have affected “Long-Lived Asset Impairments, Asset Write-Downs and Other” expense, operating loss, and loss before income taxes for the
year ended December 31, 2017 by $18 million and would not have affected our compliance with financial covenants under our revolving and term loan credit
facilities if it had been recorded in prior periods or in the year ended December 31, 2018, and did not have an impact to cash flow from operating activities or
any other cash flow measures for those periods.

Assets qualifying as held for sale total $359 million at December 31, 2017. There were no liabilities in held for sale. These amounts primarily consist of
our land drilling rigs operations, laboratory services and surface data logging businesses, and include $276 million of PP&E and other assets and $64 million
of inventory. As of December 31, 2017, we also had $19 million of other PP&E held for sale. See “Note 9 — Long-Lived Asset Impairments” for further
details related to impairments and those specific to our land drilling rigs assets.
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5 HIMKPRXUQ) &KDUIH/

Due to the highly competitive nature of our business and the continuing losses we incurred over the last few years, we continue to reduce our overall cost
structure and workforce to better align our business with current activity levels. The ongoing transformation plan, which began in 2018 and is expected to
continue through 2019 (the “Transformation Plan”), included a workforce reduction, organization restructure, facility consolidations and other cost reduction
measures and efficiency initiatives across our geographic regions.

The cost reduction plan which began in 2016 and continued throughout 2017 (the “2016-17 Plan”), included a workforce reduction and other cost
reduction measures initiated across our geographic regions due to the ongoing levels of exploration and production spending. This plan was initiated to reduce
our overall cost structure and workforce to better align with current activity levels of exploration and production. Prior plans, including the 2016 cost
reduction plan (the “2016 Plan”) also included a workforce reduction and other cost reduction measures initiated across our geographic regions. Other
restructuring charges in each plan include contract termination costs, relocation and other associated costs.

In connection with the Transformation Plan, we recognized restructuring and transformation charges of $126 million in 2018, which include severance
charges of $61 million and other restructuring charges of $59 million and restructuring related asset charges of $6 million.

In connection with the 2016-17 Plan, we recognized restructuring charges of $183 million in 2017, which include severance charges of $109 million,
other restructuring charges of $62 million and restructuring related asset charges of $12 million.

In connection with the 2016 Plan, we recognized restructuring charges of $280 million in 2016, which include severance charges of $196 million, other
restructuring charges of $44 million and restructuring related asset charges of $40 million.

The following tables present the components of the restructuring charges by segment and plan for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.

<HU( QGG HHP EHJ

2WH) 7REO
' RDWIQP LR 6HYH.DOAH 5 HMXRAXMUQ] 6HYH.DCRHDQG
7 WDQVRP DARQ3@Q &KDUIH/ &KDUIH/ 2 WHJ&KDUIHY/
Western Hemisphere $ 21 $ 6 $ 27
Eastern Hemisphere 30 15 45
Corporate 10 44 54
Total $ 61 $ 65 126
<HU( QGH5' HHP EHU
2 WH) 7REO
' RDWIQP LR 6HYH.DOAH 5 HMXRAXMUQ] 6HYH.DOAHDQG
3@0Q &KDUIH/ &KDUIH/ 2 WHJ&KDUIH/
Western Hemisphere $ 42 3 28 70
Eastern Hemisphere 35 42 77
Corporate 32 4 36
Total $ 109 $ 74 183
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<HU( QGHG' HHP EHJ

2 WHJ 7REO
' RODW/IQP LORY 6HYH.DQH 5 HMXRXMUQ] 6HH.DQRHDQG
30Q &KOUH/ &KOUH/ 2 WHJ&KDUH/
Western Hemisphere $ 82 $ 71 $ 153
Eastern Hemisphere 62 13 75
Corporate 52 — 52
Total $ 196 $ 84 $ 280

The severance and other restructuring charges gave rise to certain liabilities, the components of which are summarized below, and largely relate to
liabilities accrued as part of the Transformation Plan, the 2016-17 and 2016 Plans that will be paid pursuant to the respective arrangements and statutory
requirements.

YODAHDW HRHP EHU

7 WDV RP DARQ3@MQ DQG 3oQV 7REO
6HYH.DORH
6 HYH.DCRH 2 WH) 6 HYH.DCHH 2 WH) DQG2 WHJ
' RDWIQP LR | |CELOW | |ICELON | |ICELON | |ICELON | |CELON
Western Hemisphere $ 6 $ — 9 3 $ 7 $ 16
Eastern Hemisphere 10 — 2 12 24
Corporate 2 16 1 — 19
Total $ 18 $ 16 $ 6 $ 19 $ 59
The following tables present the restructuring accrual activity for the year ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.
<HU( QGH5' HHP EHU
$ FRXHG YDDQHH
DW HHP EHU $ FRXHG ¥DOCRHDV
' RODW/IQP LORY &KDUIH/ &DK 3D P HQWV 2 WHJ " HRHP EHU
7DV RP DINRQ3@Q
Severance liability $ — 61 $ (35 $ @ $ 18
Other restructuring liability — 59 (43) — 16
DQG3URJ3@QV
Severance liability 21 — (15) — 6
Other restructuring liability 40 — (16) 5) 19
Total severance and other restructuring
liability $ 61 $ 120 $ (109) $ 3) $ 59
YODFHDV
YHILQQQI R YODFHDN QGR
3HIRG &KDUIH/ &DK 3D P HQWV 2 WHJ 3HIRG
<HU( QGH5' HRPEHU
Severance and restructuring liability $ 86 $ 171 $ (167) $ 9 $ 61
<HU( QG5 HHHP EHY
Severance and restructuring liability $ 51 § 240 $ (198) $ @7 3 86
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$ FFRXQW5 HAHYDE®) CRRUQI DQG2 WHUS HHYCE®Y

From time to time, we participate in factoring arrangements to sell accounts receivable to third-party financial institutions. In 2018, we sold accounts
receivable of $382 million, recognized a loss of $2 million and received cash proceeds totaling $373 million on these sales. In 2017, we sold accounts
receivables of $227 million, recognized a loss of $1 million and received cash proceeds totaling $223 million on these sales. In 2016, we sold accounts
receivables of $156 million, recognized a loss of $0.7 million and received cash proceeds totaling $154 million on these sales. Our factoring transactions were
recognized as sales, and the proceeds are included as operating cash flows in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

In the first quarter of 2017, we converted trade receivables of $65 million into a note from a customer with a face value of $65 million. The note had a
three-year term at a 4.625% stated interest rate. We reported the note as a trading security within “Other Current Assets” at fair value on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at its fair value of $58 million on March 31, 2017. The note fair value was considered a Level 2 valuation and was estimated using secondary
market data for similar bonds. During the second quarter of 2017, we sold the note for $59 million.

During the second quarter of 2016, we accepted a note with a face value of $120 million from PDVSA in exchange for $120 million in net trade
receivables. The note had a three-year term at a 6.5% stated interest rate. We carried the note at the lower of cost or fair value and recognized a loss in the
second quarter of 2016 of $84 million to adjust the note to fair value. In the fourth quarter of 2016, we sold the economic rights in the note receivable for $44
million and recognized a gain of $8 million.

» QHORURY 1HV

Inventories, net of reserves, by category were as follows:

" HHP EHU
'"ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV
Raw materials, components and supplies $ 131 $ 144
Work in process 47 47
Finished goods 847 1,043
$ 1,025 $ 1,234

During 2018, 2017 and 2016, we recognized inventory write-off and other related charges, including excess and obsolete charges, totaling $80 million,
$540 million and $269 million, respectively. These charges were largely attributable to the downturn in the oil and gas industry, where certain inventory has
been deemed commercially unviable or technologically obsolete considering current and future demand.

3URSHIV 3@QADQG( TXISP HQWL HV

Property, plant and equipment, net was composed of the following:

" HHPEHU
" RDWIQP L@RV

Land, Buildings and Leasehold Improvements $ 1,303 $ 1,551
Rental and Service Equipment 4,869 5,621
Machinery and Other 1,700 2,138

7,872 9,310
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 5,786 6,602
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net $ 2,086 $ 2,708
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/ RQ / LYHS$ WHWP SOILP HQV

During 2018, we recognized long-lived asset impairments of $151 million, of which $141 million ($43 million in our Western Hemisphere segment and
$98 million in our Eastern Hemisphere segment) was to write-down our land drilling rigs assets to the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell
and the remaining $10 million ($3 million was in our Western Hemisphere and $7 million is in our Eastern Hemisphere segment) of charges were for land
drilling rigs assets charges not in held for sale. See “Note 4 — Business Combinations and Divestitures” for more details. The 2018 impairments were due to
the sustained downturn in the oil and gas industry that resulted a reassessment of our disposal groups for our land drilling rigs. The change in our expectations
of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive negative operating cash flows in certain disposal asset groups represented an indicator that those assets will
no longer be recoverable over their remaining useful lives. See “Note 13 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Assets and Other Assets” for additional
information regarding the fair value determination used in the impairment calculation.

During 2017, we recognized long-lived asset impairments of $928 million, of which $923 million was related to PP&E impairments and $5 million was
related to the impairment of intangible assets. The PP&E impairments in our Eastern Hemisphere segment include a $740 million write-down to the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell of our land drilling rigs classified as held for sale, $135 million related to Western Hemisphere segment product
line assets and $37 million related to other Eastern Hemisphere segment product line assets. In addition, we recognized $11 million of long-lived impairment
charges related to Corporate assets. The 2017 impairments were due to the sustained downturn in the oil and gas industry, whose recovery was not as strong
as expected and whose recovery in subsequent quarters was slower than had previously been anticipated. The change in the expectations of the market’s
recovery, in addition to successive negative operating cash flows in certain asset groups represented an indicator that those assets will no longer be
recoverable over their remaining useful lives. See “Note 13 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Assets and Other Assets” for additional information
regarding the fair value determination used in the impairment calculation.

During 2016, we recognized long-lived asset impairment charges of $436 million, of which $388 million was related to PP&E impairments and $48
million was related to the impairment of intangible assets. The PP&E impairment charges by segment were $251 million in the Western Hemisphere related to
our Well Construction, Drilling Services and Managed Pressure Drilling assets and $137 million in the Eastern Hemisphere related to our Eastern Hemisphere
Pressure Pumping assets. The intangible asset charge is related to the Well Construction and Completions businesses with $35 million attributable to the
Western Hemisphere segment and $13 million related the Eastern Hemisphere segment. The 2016 impairments were due to the prolonged downturn in the oil
and gas industry, whose recovery was not as strong as expected and whose recovery in subsequent quarters in 2016 was slower than had previously been
anticipated. The change in the expectations of the market’s recovery, in addition to successive negative operating cash flows in certain asset groups
represented an indicator that those assets will no longer be recoverable over their remaining useful lives. See “Note 13 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
Assets and Other Assets” for additional information regarding the fair value determination used in the impairment calculation.
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In the fourth quarter of 2018, our annual and interim goodwill impairment tests indicated that our goodwill was impaired and as a result we incurred a
goodwill impairment charge of $1.9 billion. Impairment indicators during the fourth quarter required us to update our October 1 impairment test as of
December 31. The impairment indicators during the quarter included the steep decline in oil prices and expectations for lower exploration and production
capital spending that resulted in a sharp reduction in share prices in the oilfield services sector. In 2017 and 2016, our annual goodwill impairment test
indicated that goodwill was not impaired. Our cumulative impairment loss for goodwill was $2.7 billion at December 31, 2018. The changes in the carrying
amount of goodwill by reporting segment for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, are presented in the following table.

'"ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV : B+ HP VSKHH ( DWMLQ+ HP NSKHH 7REO

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 2,065 $ 732 $ 2,797
Disposals (162) — (162)
Foreign currency translation 55 37 92

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 1,958 $ 769 $ 2,727
Acquisitions — 27 27
Disposals (10) — (10)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (5) 2 )
Foreign currency translation (69) (38) (107)
Impairment (1,380) (537) (1,917)

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 494 $ 219 $ 713

, QEQILEBI$ WHNV

At December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our intangible assets were $213 million in both years. During 2016, we recognized $48 million of license
and patent impairment charges related to the Well Construction and Completions businesses. See “Note 9 — Long-Lived Asset Impairments” for additional
information regarding the impairment charges.

Amortization expense was $63 million, $52 million and $60 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Based on the
carrying value of intangible assets at December 31, 2018, amortization expense for the subsequent five years is estimated as follows (dollars in millions):

3HIRG $P RXQW
2019 $ 60
2020 46
2021 27
2022 17
2023 14
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6KRUAMLP %RURZ 1IQIVDQG2 WHU' HEW2 EQIDARQYY
Our short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt consists of the followings:

" HHHP EHU
'ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV
364-Day Credit Agreement $ 317 $ —
Other Short-term Loans 9 11
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 57 137
Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt $ 383 % 148

5 HROLQ) &UHAVS JUHP HOWDQG7HP / RDQ$ JUHP HOW

On August 16, 2018, we amended and restated our existing Revolving Credit Agreement, entered into a Secured Second Lien 364-Day Revolving Credit
Agreement and amended certain terms of our existing Term Loan Agreement. At December 31, 2018, we have two revolving credit agreements with total
commitments of $846 million, comprised of an unsecured senior revolving credit agreement (the “A&R Credit Agreement”) in the amount of $529 million,
and a Secured Second Lien 364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement (the “364-Day Credit Agreement” and, together with the A&R Credit Agreement, the
“Revolving Credit Agreements”) in the amount of $317 million. At December 31, 2018, we have principal borrowings of $310 million under the Term Loan
Agreement. We collectively refer to our Revolving Credit Agreements and Term Loan Agreement as the “Credit Agreements.”

Under the terms of the A&R Credit Agreement, commitments of $226 million from non-extending lenders (“non-extending lenders”) will mature on July
12, 2019 and commitments of $303 million from extending lenders (“extending lenders”) will mature on July 13, 2020. Commitments from our extending
lenders reduced by $54 million on November 14, 2018. The 364-Day Credit Agreement matures on August 15, 2019.

The A&R Credit Agreement and Term Loan Agreement were amended to permit the debt and the liens to be incurred under the 364-Day Credit
Agreement and to make other modifications related to factoring of receivables, senior borrowings, permitted liens, and covenants.

At December 31, 2018, we had total borrowing availability of $325 million available under our Credit Agreements. The following table summarizes our
Credit Agreements borrowing capacity utilization and availability:

" HHHP EHU
' RDWIQP AR
Facilities $ 1,156
Less Uses of Facilities:
364-Day Credit Agreement 317
A&R Credit Agreement —
Letters of Credit 204
Term Loan Principal Borrowing 310
Borrowing Availability $ 325

Loans under the Credit Agreements are subject to varying rates of interest based on whether the loan is a Eurodollar loan or an alternate base rate loan.
We also incur a quarterly facility fee on the amount of the A&R Credit Agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the interest rate for the A&R
Credit Agreement was LIBOR plus a margin rate of 3.55% for extending lenders and LIBOR plus a margin rate of 2.80% for non-extending lenders and the
interest rate for borrowings under the Term Loan Agreement and 364-Day Credit Agreement was LIBOR plus a margin rate of 2.30% and LIBOR plus a
margin rate of 3.05%, respectively.

Our Credit Agreements contain customary events of default, including in the event of our failure to comply with our financial covenants described above.
We must maintain a leverage ratio of no greater than 2.5 to 1, a leverage and letters of credit ratio of no greater than 3.5 to 1, an asset coverage ratio of at least
4.0 to 1 and a current asset coverage ratio of at least 1.5 to 1, in each case with the terms and definitions for the ratios as provided in the Credit Agreements.
We must also maintain a current asset coverage ratio of at least 2.1 to 1. The Term Loan Agreement and 364-Day Credit Agreement require us to
pledge assets
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as collateral in order to borrow under the credit facility. As of December 31, 2018, we were in compliance with these financial covenants.

2 \WHIBKRWHP YRIRZIQIVDQG' HEVE RRMW

In February 2018, we repaid in full our 6.00% senior notes due March 2018. In June 2017, we repaid in full our 6.35% senior notes on the maturity date.

We have short-term borrowings with various domestic and international institutions pursuant to uncommitted credit facilities. At December 31, 2018, we
had $9 million in short-term borrowings under these arrangements. In addition, we had $291 million of letters of credit under various uncommitted facilities
and $204 million of letters of credit under the A&R Credit Agreement. At December 31, 2018, we have cash collateralized $81 million of our letters of credit,
which is included in “Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

At December 31, 2018, the current portion of long-term debt was primarily related to the $50 million current portion of our Term Loan Agreement.

/| RY WLP ' HEW

Our long-term debt carrying value consisted of the following:

" P EHU
'ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV
6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 — 66
9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 — 488
5.125% Senior Notes due 2020 364 364
5.875% Exchangeable Senior Notes due 2021 1,194 1,170
7.75% Senior Notes due 2021 743 741
4.50% Senior Notes due 2022 644 643
8.25% Senior Notes due 2023 742 739
9.875% Senior Notes due 2024 781 780
9.875% Senior Notes due 2025 588 —
6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 447 447
6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 255 255
7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 456 456
9.875% Senior Notes due 2039 245 245
6.75% Senior Notes due 2040 457 456
5.95% Senior Notes due 2042 369 368
Term Loan Agreement due 2020 308 372
Capital and Other Lease Obligations 69 86
Other — 2
Total Senior Notes and Other Debt 7,662 7,678
Less: Amounts Due in One Year 57 137
Long-term Debt $ 7,605 $ 7,541
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The accrued interest on our borrowings was $140 million and $145 million at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The following is a summary of
scheduled long-term debt maturities by year (dollars in millions):

2019 $ 57
2020 622
2021 1,937
2022 644
2023 742
Thereafter 3,660

$ 7,662

7HP / RDQ$JUHP HQW

As of December 31, 2018, our borrowings, net of repayments, under the Term Loan Agreement were $310 million. The interest rate for borrowings under
our Term Loan Agreement is variable and is determined by our leverage ratio as of the most recent fiscal quarter, as either (1) the one-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a variable margin rate ranging from 1.425% to 3.2% or (2) the alternate base rate plus the applicable margin ranging
from 0.425% to 2.2%. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the interest rate for the Term Loan Agreement was LIBOR plus a margin rate of 2.3%. The
Term Loan Agreement requires a principal repayment of $12.5 million on the last day of each quarter.

( [ FKDQIHDEBISHIRUL R 6HIIRUL RM/DQG 7HOGHU2 1THY

We have issued various senior notes, all of which rank equally with our existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness, which have semi-annual
interest payments and no sinking fund requirements.

( [ FKDQIHDEBIBHIRUL R/

On June 7, 2016, we issued exchangeable notes with a par value of $1.265 billion and an interest rate of 5.875%. The notes have a conversion price of
$7.74 per share and are exchangeable into a total of 163.4 million shares of the Company upon the occurrence of certain events on or after January 1, 2021.
The notes mature on July 1, 2021. We have the choice to settle an exchange of the notes in any combination of cash or shares. As of December 31, 2018, the
if-converted value did not exceed the principal amount of the notes.

The exchange feature is reported with a carrying amount of $97 million in “Capital in Excess of Par Value” on the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The debt component of the exchangeable notes has been reported separately in “Long-term Debt” on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets
with a carrying value of $1.194 billion at December 31, 2018, net of remaining unamortized discount and debt issuance costs of $71 million. The discount on
the debt component is being amortized over the remaining maturity of the exchangeable notes at an effective interest rate of 8.4%. In 2018, 2017 and 2016,
interest expense related to accrued interest and amortization of the discount on the notes was $99 million, $97 million and $54 million. At December 31,
2018, $74 million was related to accrued interest and $25 million was related to amortization of the discount.

6HIRUL RM/

In February 2018, we repaid in full our 6.00% senior notes due March 2018. On February 28, 2018, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal
amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2025.

In June 2017, we repaid in full our 6.35% senior notes on the maturity date. On June 26, 2017, we issued an additional $250 million aggregate principal
amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2024. These notes were issued as additional securities under an indenture pursuant to which we previously issued
$540 million aggregate principal amount of our 9.875% senior notes due 2024.

THG2 1THY
The February 2018 debt offering partially funded a concurrent tender offer to purchase for cash any and all of our 9.625% senior notes due 2019. We

settled the tender offer in cash for the amount of $475 million, retiring an aggregate face value of $425 million and accrued interest of $20 million. In April
2018, we repaid the remaining principal outstanding on an early redemption
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of the bond. We recognized a cumulative loss of $34 million on these transactions in “Bond Tender and Call Premium” on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

In June 2016, we commenced a cash tender offer completed on July 1, 2016 for the repurchase of a portion of our 6.35% senior notes due 2017, 6.00%
senior notes due 2018, 9.625% senior notes due 2019, and 5.125% senior notes due 2020. We settled the June early tender offers in cash in the amount of
$1.972 billion, retiring an aggregate face value of senior notes tendered of $1.87 billion and accrued interest of $27 million. We recognized a cumulative loss
of $78 million on these transactions in “Bond Tender and Call Premium” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. On June 30, 2016, we
accepted additional tenders of $2 million of debt, which we settled in cash on July 1, 2016.

) DIU9DOHR ) LQDGRD] QUAXP HQV $ \WHVDQG 2 WHUS \WHV
) LQDQADO QUIKP HIVDQG2 \WHJS WHIVO HDWUHEDQG5 HRIQ] HE DV DLU9DOH

We estimate fair value at a price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market for the asset or liability. Our valuation techniques require inputs that we categorize using a three level hierarchy, from highest to lowest
level of observable inputs. Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices or
other market data for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through
market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based upon our own judgment and
assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value. Classification of a financial asset or liability within the hierarchy is determined based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Other than the derivative instruments discussed in “Note 14 — Derivative Instruments”
and held for sale assets and liabilities described in “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” and “Note 4 — Business Combinations and
Divestitures,” we had no other material assets or liabilities measured and recognized at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

) DWODOHR 2 \WHJ) LCDQADO QWKP HOW

Our other financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, held-to-maturity investments, short-term
borrowings and long-term debt. The carrying value of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and short-term borrowings
approximates their fair value due to their short maturities. These short-term borrowings are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. During 2017, we
purchased $50 million of held-to-maturity Angolan government bonds maturing in 2020. The carrying value of $50 million in both periods approximate their
fair value as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. We assess whether an other-than-temporary impairment loss on the investment has occurred due to a decline in
fair value or other market conditions. If the fair value of the security is below amortized cost and it is more likely than not that we will not be able to recover
its amortized cost basis before its stated maturity, we will record an other-than-temporary impairment charge in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The fair value of our long-term debt fluctuates with changes in applicable interest rates among other factors. Fair value will exceed carrying value when
the current market interest rate is lower than the interest rate at which the debt was originally issued and will be less than the carrying value when the market
rate is greater than the interest rate at which the debt was originally issued. The fair value of our long-term debt is classified as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy and is established based on observable inputs in less active markets.

The fair value and carrying value of our senior notes were as follows:

" HHP EHU
'ROODUV LQ PLOOLRQV
Fair Value $ 4,455 $ 7,060
Carrying Value 7,285 7,218

1 RQ UHRXWIQ] ) DIW9DHO HOKUHP HQW |, P SOLLP HQW

In the fourth quarter of 2018, our annual and interim goodwill impairment tests indicated that our goodwill was impaired and as a result three of our
reporting units were written down to their estimated fair values. The Level 3 fair values of our reporting units were determined using a combination of the
income and market approach. The unobservable inputs to the income approach included the reporting unit’s estimated future cash flows and estimates of
discount rates commensurate with the reporting unit’s
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risks. The market approach considered market multiples of comparable publicly traded companies to estimate fair value as a multiple of each reporting unit’s
actual and forecasted earnings.

During 2018, long-lived assets were impaired and written down to their estimated fair values due to the sustained downturn in the oil and gas industry
that resulted in a reassessment of our disposal groups for our land drilling rigs that were included in assets held for sale at December 31, 2018 and 2017. The
Level 3 fair values of the long-lived assets were determined using a combination of the market and income approach. The market approach considered market
sales values for similar assets. The unobservable inputs to the income approach included the assets’ estimated future cash flows and estimates of discount
rates commensurate with the assets’ risks.

During the fourth quarter of 2017, long-lived assets were impaired and written down to their estimated fair values. The Level 3 fair values of the assets
were determined using an income approach. The unobservable inputs to the income approach included the assets’ estimated future cash flows and estimates of
discount rates commensurate with the assets” risks.

During the third quarter of 2016, long-lived assets were impaired and written down to their estimated fair values. The Level 3 fair values of the long-
lived assets were determined using either an income approach or a market approach. The unobservable inputs to the income approach included the assets’
estimated future cash flows and estimates of discount rates commensurate with the assets’ risks. The market approach considered unobservable estimates of
market sales values, which in most cases was a scrap of salvage value estimate. During the second quarter of 2016, we adjusted a note for our largest
customer in Venezuela to its estimated fair value. The Level 3 fair value was estimated based on unobservable pricing indications.

" HLYDAYH, QWXP HOWV

From time to time, we may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk. We manage our debt portfolio to
achieve an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates, and we may employ interest rate swaps as a tool to achieve that goal. We enter into foreign
currency forward contracts and cross-currency swap contracts to economically hedge our exposure to fluctuations in various foreign currencies. The major
risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest rates affecting the fair value of such instruments, potential increases in interest expense due
to market increases in floating interest rates, changes in foreign exchange rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions.

We monitor the creditworthiness of our counterparties, which are multinational commercial banks. The fair values of all our outstanding derivative
instruments are determined using a model with Level 2 inputs including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and maturity dates.

: DUDQNV

During the fourth quarter of 2016, in conjunction with the issuance of 84.5 million ordinary shares, we issued a warrant that gives the holder the option to
acquire an additional 84.5 million ordinary shares. The exercise price on the warrant is $6.43 per share and is exercisable any time prior to May 21, 2019. The
warrant is classified as a liability and carried at fair value with changes in its fair value reported through earnings. The warrant participates in dividends and
other distributions as if the shares subject to the warrants were outstanding. In addition, the warrant permits early redemption due to a change in control.

The warrant fair value is considered a Level 2 valuation and is estimated using the Black Scholes valuation model. Inputs to the model include
Weatherford’s share price, volatility of our share price, and the risk free interest rate. The fair value of the warrant was nil and $70 million at December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively. We generated an unrealized gain of $70 million, $86 million and $16 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The change
in fair value of the warrant during 2018 was primarily driven by eliminating the warrant share value associated with any future equity issuance and a decrease
in Weatherford’s stock price. The change in fair value of the warrant during 2017 was principally due to a decrease in Weatherford’s stock price.

) DU9DOH+ HIIHY
We may use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to changes in the fair values of fixed-rate debt. The interest rate swap is recorded at fair
value with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. The carrying value of fixed-rate debt would be adjusted for changes in interest rates, with the changes

in value recorded in earnings. After termination of the hedge, any discount or premium on fixed-rate debt is amortized to interest expense over the remaining
term of the debt. As of December 31, 2018, we did not have any fair value hedges designated.
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As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had net unamortized premiums on fixed-rate debt of nil and $4 million, respectively, associated with fair value
hedge terminations. These premiums were amortized over the remaining term of the originally hedged debt as a reduction to interest expense included in
“Interest Expense, Net” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

&DK) ®Z + HEIH/

We may use interest rate swaps to mitigate our exposure to variability in forecasted cash flows due to changes in interest rates. In 2008, we entered into
interest rate derivative instruments to hedge projected exposures to interest rates in anticipation of a debt offering. These hedges were terminated at the time
of the issuance of the debt, and the associated loss is being amortized from “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss” to interest expense over the remaining
term of the debt. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had net unamortized losses of $8 million and $9 million, respectively, associated with our cash flow
hedge terminations. As of December 31, 2018, we did not have any cash flow hedges designated.

2\WHJ' HIYDIYH, QUIKP HOWV

We enter into contracts to hedge our exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts aggregating to $435 million and $767 million, respectively. The notional amounts of
our foreign currency forward contracts do not generally represent amounts exchanged by the parties and thus are not a measure of the cash requirements
related to these contracts or of any possible loss exposure. The amounts actually exchanged at maturity are calculated by reference to the notional amounts
and by other terms of the derivative contracts, such as exchange rates.

Our foreign currency derivatives are not designated as hedges under ASC 815, and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded in each period
in “Other Income (Expense), Net” on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The total estimated fair values of our foreign currency forward contracts and warrant derivative are as follows:

" HRHP EHU
' RDW/ILQP AR/ & OWILFDAR)
Derivative Assets not Designated as Hedges:
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts $ — 5 5 2 WHIEXUHY$WHV
Derivative Liabilities not Designated as Hedges:
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts 4) 4 2\WHIEXUWHWY IDEOW/
Warrant on Weatherford Shares — (70) 2 \WHJ&XUWHWY ICAOMNY/

The amount of derivative instruments’ gain or (loss) on the Consolidated Statements of Operations is in the table below.

<HU( QGHG' HAHP EHJ

' RDWIQP LR/ & OWILFDARQ
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts $ as) $ 25 $ (25 2WHJ,GRPH ([SHOH 1HWV
Warrant on Weatherford Shares 70 86 16 : DUDQY DLUIDOHS MR HQV
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Changes in our ordinary shares issued during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

6KDUHIQP LR/ , WKHG
Balance at December 31, 2015 779
Share Issuance 200
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and Exercised 4
Balance at December 31, 2016 983
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and Exercised 10
Balance at December 31, 2017 993
Equity Awards Granted, Vested and Exercised 9
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,002

In March 2016, we issued 115 million ordinary shares, and the amount in excess of par value of $623 million is reported in “Capital in Excess of Par
Value” on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On June 7, 2016, we issued exchangeable notes with a par value of $1.265 billion. The exchange feature carrying value of $97 million is included in
“Capital in Excess of Par Value” on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On November 21, 2016, we issued 84.5 million ordinary shares at a price of $5.40 per ordinary share, and a warrant to purchase 84.5 million ordinary
shares on or prior to May 21, 2019 at an exercise price of $6.43 per ordinary share to a selected institutional investor. Upon issuance of the warrant, the
amount in excess of par value for the ordinary shares net of warrant was $271 million and was recorded in “Capital in Excess of Par Value.” At December 31,
2018, the fair value of the warrant is nil.

$ FRXP XOM52 \WHIERP SIHKHMYH/ RW

The following table presents the changes in our accumulated other comprehensive loss by component for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

&XUHRA
7 DQMARY " HIHGYHHIW " HHUIHG/ RW
' RDWIQP L@RV $ GUWR HQWV SHMRQ RQ' HLYDAYH/ 7REO
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ (1,614) $ 13 3 9 $ (1,610)
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income before Reclassifications 130 1 — 131
Reclassifications — (40) — (40)
Net Activity 130 (39) — 91
Balance at December 31, 2017 (1,484) (26) ) (1,519)
Other Comprehensive Income before Reclassifications (240) 10 — (230)
Reclassifications — 2 1 3
Net Activity (240) 12 1 (227)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ (1,724) $ (14) $ @ $ (1,746)

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the defined benefit pension reclassifications represent the amortization of unrecognized net gains associated
primarily with our supplemental executive retirement plan.
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( DUQQIVSHUBKDLH

Basic earnings per share for all periods presented equals net income (loss) divided by the weighted average number of our shares outstanding during the
period including participating securities. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of our
shares outstanding during the period including participating securities, adjusted for the dilutive effect of our stock options, restricted shares and performance
units.

The following discloses basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding:

<HU( QG5' HRHP EHJ

6KDUHV LQ PLOOLRQV
Basic and Diluted Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 997 990 887

Our basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, are equivalent due to the net loss
attributable to shareholders. Diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, exclude potential shares for
stock options, restricted shares, performance units, exchangeable notes, the warrant outstanding and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) as we have
net losses for those periods and their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. The following table discloses the number of anti-dilutive shares excluded:

<HU( Q3G HHP EHU

6KDUHVY LQ PLOOLRQV
Anti-dilutive Potential Shares 251 250 104

6KDLH YDWHGE & RP SHWDWRQ

We have share-based compensation plans that permit the grant of options, stock appreciation rights, RSAs, restricted share units (“RSUs”), performance
share awards, performance unit awards (“PUs”), other share-based awards and cash-based awards to any employee, non-employee directors and other
individual service providers or any affiliate. In addition, we also have share-based compensation provisions under our Employee Share Purchase Plan
(“ESPP”). For RSAs and RSUs, compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the separately vesting
portion of each award. For PUs, compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

The provisions of each award vary based on the type of award granted and are determined by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors.
Those awards, such as stock options that are based on a specific contractual term, will be granted with a term not to exceed 10 years. Upon grant of an RSA,
the recipient has the rights of a shareholder, including but not limited to the right to vote such shares and the right to receive any dividends paid on such
shares, but not the right to disposition prior to vesting. Recipients of RSUs do not have the rights of a shareholder until such date as the shares are issued or
transferred to the recipient. As of December 31, 2018, approximately 18 million shares were available for grant under our share-based compensation plans.

BKDUHUDHGERP SHODIRY ( [ SHOH

We recognized the following share-based compensation expense during each of the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016:

<HU( QGHG' HHP EHJ

'ROODUYV LQ PLOOLRQV
Share-based Compensation $ 47 $ 70 $ 87

Related Tax (Provision) Benefit — — —
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2 SRV
Stock options were granted with an exercise p